
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




City of Carroll 
================================ ♦ ================================= 


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 


GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council 


DATE OF MEETING: March 8, 2021 


TIME OF MEETING: 5:15 P.M. 


FAX: (712) 792-0139 


LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers 


www.cityofcarroll.com 


NOTICE 


In support of Iowa Governor Kim Reynolds' proclamation declming a State of Public Health 
Disaster Emergency in Iowa, the cmTent COVID-19 situation makes it "impossible and 
impractical" to meet in one location. Due to this the Carroll City Hall will remain closed to the 
public for the March 8, 2021 City Council meeting. However, the meeting will be made 
available telephonically. The public will be able to hear and participate in the Council meeting 
by calling: 


United States: 1 (312) 626-6799 
Then when prompted, enter the following Access Code: 959 8347 1673# 


Individuals may start calling in at 5:00 PM for the meeting. 


Individuals may also join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smmiphone by using the 
following link: 


https: //zoom.us/j/959834 71673 


Similar to a regular City Council meeting, participants will be invited to provide feedback at 
various points dming the meeting. Pmiicipants are requested to keep their mies muted until 
invited by the Mayor or Council to provide feedback. Participants calling in can unmute and 
mute their phone by dialing *6. Participants using a computer, tablet or smartphone can umnute 
and mute themselves by clicking on the mute/umnute button in the bottom left comer of the 
zoom program. Pmiicipants who umnute themselves outside of feedback periods may be muted 
by the City and/or removed from the meeting. 


The public can watch the meeting live from the City's YouTube cham1el by going to: 
https://tinyurl.com/t64juzk To ensure you can access the meeting when we go live we suggest 
that you subscribe to the City's Y ouTube channel. The Y ouTube meeting is a view only option 
and you will not be able to participate in the meeting via Y ouTube. 


We thank you for your understanding of this change dming the current situation. 







GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council 


DATE OF MEETING: March 8, 2021 


TIME OF MEETING: 5:15 P.M. 


LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers 


www .cityofcarroll.com 


AGENDA 
I. Pledge of Allegiance 


II. Roll Call 


III. Consent Agenda 


A. Approval of Minutes of the February 22 Meeting 


B. Approval of Bills and Claims 


C. Licenses and Permits: 


1. Renewal Class "C" Liquor License with Brew Pub, Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales -


Carroll Brewing Co. 


2. Renewal of Class "E" Liquor License with Class "B" Wine Permit (Carryout Wine -


Includes Native Wine) and Class "C" Beer Permit (Carryout Beer) and Sunday Sales -


Casey's General Store #3082 


IV. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience 


V. Ordinances 


A. Carroll City Ordinance Chapter 43, Drug Paraphernalia, Addition - 3rd Reading 


VI. Resolutions 


A. FY 2021/2022 Budget 


1. Public Hearing 


2. Resolution Adopting the Annual Budget 


B. Professional Services Agreement - Northeast Park - Parking and Sidewalk Improvements Project - 2021 


C. Contract for Services Agreement - Carroll Recreation Center Building Improvements Project - 2021 


VII. Reports 


A. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) COVID-19 Grant- Public Hearing 


B. Sidewalk & Patio - Southside Shelter House - Parks Department 


1. Report of Bid Opening 


VIII. Committee Reports 


IX. Comments from the Mayor 


X. Comments from the City Council 


XL Comments from the City Manager 







XII. Housing Work Session 


XIII. Closed Session - Strategy Discussion with Legal Counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where 


litigation is imminent and where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the government 


XIV. Adjourn 


March/ April Meetings: 


Airport Commission - March 8, 2021 -Airport Terminal Building - 21177 Quail Avenue 


Planning and Zoning Commission - March 10, 2021 - City Hall - 627 N Adams Street 


Library Board of Trustees - March 15, 2021 - Carroll Public Library- 118 E 5th Street 


City Council- March 22, 2021 - City Hall- 627 N Adams Street 


Board of Adjustment-April 5, 2021 - City Hall- 627 N Adams Street 


City Council - April 12, 2021 - City Hall - 627 N Adams Street 


Airport Commission - April 12, 2021 - Airport Terminal Building - 21177 Quail A venue 


Planning and Zoning Commission -April 14, 2021- City Hall - 627 N Adams Street 


Library Board of Trustees -April 19, 2021 - Carroll Public Library- 118 E 5th Street 


City Council - April 26, 2021 - City Hall - 627 N Adams Street 


www .cityofcarroll.com 


The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with 
disabilities, please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at 
712-792-1000, should special accommodations be required. 








City of Carroll 
================================== ♦ =================================== 


627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139 


MEMO TO: 


FROM: 


DATE: 


SUBJECT: 


Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager Vv'5~,,,vJ 
Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and Recreation ~w 
March 2, 2021 


Bid Opening Results - Sidewalk & Patio - Southside Shelter House -
Parks Department 


• Report of Bid Opening 


Pre-Bid Estimate: $32,000.00 - 121-6-4040-37501- Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) -
Cultural and Recreation - Building Improvements 


On February 25, 2021 three bids were received at the time of the bid opening. Attached to 
this memorandum is a summary of the bid results. The lowest bid was from Concrete Creators 
- Carroll Iowa for $15,777.00. 


The current sidewalk is in need of replacement and the city parks staff wants to add a small 
patio on the east side of the shelter house. Attached to this memorandum is the sketch of the 
approximate 168 feet of concrete needed for the three sidewalks and a new patio around the 
enclosed shelter house. Construction will begin as weather permits and the contractor will 
work around any current reservations at the shelter house. 


RECOMMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council to consider and approve the bid from 
Concrete Creators - Carroll, Iowa for the bid price of $15,777.00. 







City of Carroll 


Parks & Recreation Department - Parks & Open Spaces 


2236 N. West Street 


Carroll, la 51401 
{712)792-3326 BID OPENING REPORT 
{712)792-0139 


Website: www.cityofcarroll.com 


Bids were opened: February 25, 2021 @ 2:00 PM 


For: Sidewalk Southside Shelter House - Parks Department 


Pre-Bid Estimate: $32,000 121-6-4040-37501 LOST - Cultural and Recreation - Building Improvements 


Bidder Total Cost 


1 Precision Concrete Services, Inc. - Atlantic, Iowa $18,850.00 


2 Ten Point Construction - Denison, Iowa $16,247.90 


3 Concrete Creators - Carroll, Iowa $15,777.00 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


\\\ ) 17'\I , 1 n Mz{-
Signature: )(l ~ ______ .....,......., __ ....,.~----------------


Date: 2/25/2021 







'I' ,-J-J JO 1 


> 
-----


r 


/-/ o LA..5 e 


fr1ilj :I 


"1/ urb cpo,i'"<j 
I C ' 


/ I 








03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S PAYABLE 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


01-001720 ACCESS SYSTEMS COPIER CONTRACT 139.15 
** TOTALS** 139 .15 


01-001704 ACCO WATER TESTING MACHINE 187.50 
** TOTALS** 187.50 


01-001621 ACE HARDWARE PAINT AND BRUSHES 46.97 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CASTERS - LANE ROPE REEL 67.96 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 9.99 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE PAINT 49.97 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 127 .48 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CLEANING SUPPLIES 41.98 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SCREWDRIVERS 61.93 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 41. 98 
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 7.98 


** TOTALS ** 456.24 


01-003484 ADAPTIVE AUDIOLOGY SOLUTI HEARING TEST - PRE EMPLOYMENT 35.00 
** TOTALS ** 35.00 


01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGE 579.90 
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI PRINTER REPAIRS 45.00 
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI PRINTER REPAIRS 39.90 


** TOTALS** 664.80 


01-001910 AHLERS & COONEY P.C. MISC PERSONNEL MATTER 88.50 
** TOTALS** 88.50 


01-002178 ALEX KLEVER EVIDENCE DCI EXPENSES 12.00 
** TOTALS** 12.00 


01-002816 ALL PRO DOOR COMPANY GARAGE DOOR REPAIRS 83.00 
**TOTALS** 83.00 


01-002080 AMAZON/SYNCHRONY BANK BOOKS AND VIDEOS 57.40 
** TOTALS ** 57.40 


01-002916 AMERICAN RED CROSS LIFEGUARD RECERTIFICATIONS 120.00 
** TOTALS ** 120.00 


01-029040 ANTHONY A. VONNAHME GREASE 87.20 
**TOTALS** 87.20 


01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY OIL 51.76 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 1 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 000000 0/00/00 139.15 
0.00 139 .15 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 187.50 
0.00 187.50 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 46.97 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 67. 96 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 9.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 49.97 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 127.48 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 41. 98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 61.93 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 41. 98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.98 
0.00 456.24 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 35.00 
0.00 35.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 579.90 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 39.90 
0.00 664.80 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 88.50 
0.00 88.50 


12.00- 120424 3/04/21 0.00 
12.00- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 83.00 
0.00 83.00 


57 .40- 120415 2/23/21 0.00 
57 .40- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 120.00 
0.00 120.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 87.20 
0.00 87.20 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 51.76 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S 
0 P E N I T E M 


PAYABLE 
R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


**TOTALS** 51. 76 


01-001557 ATCO INTERNATIONAL SUPPLIES 255.32 
**TOTALS** 255.32 


01-003050 AXON ENTERPRISE INC. TASER INSTRUCTOR 375.00 
**TOTALS** 375.00 


01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 29.99 
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 48.20 
01-003515 BOMGAARS #29 BRINE PUMP 273.96 
01-003515 BOMGAARS FUEL FILTER 14.99 
01-003515 BOMGAARS TUBING/GARDEN HOSE - SHOP 85.98 
01-003515 BOMGAARS BRINE TANK VALVE 38.99 
01-003515 BOMGAARS OIL 21.92 
01-003515 BOMGAARS BOLTS FOR SNOWBLOWERS 27.34 
01-003515 BOMGAARS CHAIR RACK 200.19 
01-003515 BOMGAARS DRILL BITS 9.67 


** TOTALS ** 751.23 


01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA SINK FAUCET REPLACEMENT 349.12 
** TOTALS ** 349.12 


01-003700 BSN SPORTS INC. BALLFIELD LINER PAINT 2,926.44 
** TOTALS** 2,926.44 


01-003140 CANINE TACTICAL K9 TRAINING 300.00 
**TOTALS** 300.00 


01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 161.38 
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 64.68 
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 109.00 


**TOTALS** 335.06 


01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY #36 FILTERS 140.88 
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY #36 FILTERS 20.40 


** TOTALS ** 161.28 


01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING CO. CARROLL FORWARD SURVEY ADS 720.00 
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING co. CARROLL FORWARD SURVEY ADS 720.00 
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING co. CARROLL FORWARD SURVEY ADS 360.00 
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING CO. RADIO ADS 100.00 
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING co. RADIO ADS 100.00 
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING CO. RADIO ADS 100.00 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 2 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 51. 76 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 255.32 
0.00 255.32 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 375.00 
0.00 375.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 29.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 48.20 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 273.96 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 14.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 85.98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 38.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 21. 92 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 27.34 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 200.19 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 9.67 
0.00 751.23 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 349.12 
0.00 349.12 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,926.44 
0.00 2,926.44 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 300.00 
0.00 300.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 161. 38 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 64.68 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 109.00 
0.00 335.06 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 140.88 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 20.40 
0.00 161. 28 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 720.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 720.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 360.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S P A Y A B L E 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING CO. SPRING SOCCER ADS 420.00 
** TOTALS** 2,520.00 


01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS #1 POOL HEATER REPAIRS 1,254.87 
** TOTALS** 1,254.87 


01-004155 CARROLL COUNTY GASOLINE 6,782.51 
** TOTALS** 6,782.51 


01-004173 CARROLL COUNTY 911 FUND COST SHARE - 2 PAGERS 225.68 
** TOTALS ** 225.68 


01-004183 CARROLL COUNTY TREASURER LEIN FILING FEE - 727 N COURT 5.00 
** TOTALS ** 5.00 


01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER PARK SIGN SUPPLIES 106.16 
**TOTALS** 106.16 


01-004137 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE WELLNESS 2020 FINAL 3,345.00 
**TOTALS** 3,345.00 


01-001393 CHAMPION FORD INC. VEHICLE REPAIRS 193.55 
** TOTALS ** 193.55 


01-003633 CLEANING SOLUTIONS INC FEB. CITY HALL CLEANING 2,080.00 
01-003633 CLEANING SOLUTIONS INC FEBRUARY PD CLEANING 624. 00 
01-003633 CLEANING SOLUTIONS INC FEB. REC CENTER CLEANING 2,268.00 


** TOTALS ** 4,972.00 


01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK STOP PAYMENT FEE 12.00 
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEB WATER ACH FEE 123.60 
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK DEPOSIT SLIPS 27.05 
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS 12,565.58 
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FICA WITHHOLDING 14,187.62 
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MEDICARE WITHHOLDING 4,303.48 


** TOTALS ** 31,219.33 


01-001539 CONFLUENCE PHASE 10 DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE 357.50 
** TOTALS ** 357.50 


01-004862 CONTINENTAL RESEARCH CORP CHEMICALS 651.39 
** TOTALS ** 651.39 


01-001384 COPY SYSTEMS INC. SERVICE POSTAGE MACHINE 279.75 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 3 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 000000 0/00/00 420.00 
0.00 2,520.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,254.87 
0.00 1,254.87 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 6,782.51 
0.00 6,782.51 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 225.68 
0.00 225.68 


5.00- 120429 3/04/21 0.00 
5.00- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 106.16 
0.00 106.16 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,345.00 
0.00 3,345.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 193.55 
0.00 193.55 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,080.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 624.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,268.00 
0.00 4,972.00 


12.00- 000000 2/23/21 0.00 
123.60- 000000 2/23/21 0.00 
27.05- 000000 2/24/21 0.00 


12,565.58- 001012 2/25/21 0.00 
14,187.62- 001012 2/25/21 0.00 
4,303.48- 001012 2/25/21 0.00 


31,219.33- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 357.50 
0.00 357.50 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 651.39 
0.00 651. 39 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 279.75 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM A C C O U N T S PAYABLE 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 
SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION 


**TOTALS** 


01-005395 D & K PRODUCTS ICE MELT 
**TOTALS** 


01-006270 DREES HEATING & PLUMBING EAST ENTRY DOOR ACCESS RIGHTS 
**TOTALS** 


01-006810 ECOWATER SYSTEMS 


01-003403 FAST LANE AUTO CARE 
01-003403 FAST LANE AUTO CARE 


01-001291 FEH DESIGN 


01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 


SOFTNER SALT 


SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 


STREET MAINT. BLDG 


**TOTALS** 


**TOTALS** 


**TOTALS** 


FIRE ALARM INSPECTIONS 
AIR PACK REPAIRS 


**TOTALS** 


01-003754 FIELD TRAINING SOLUTIONS FTO TRAINING 
**TOTALS** 


01-000633 FILTER CARE FILTER CLEANING 
**TOTALS** 


01-000013 FIRE/POLICE RETIREMENT SY MFPRSI CONTRIBUTIONS 
**TOTALS** 


01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING 


01-003534 FUSEBOX MARKETING 


01-009315 GALL'S INC. 
01-009315 GALL'S INC. 


01-003752 GARY STARK 


**TOTALS** 


WEB MAINTENANCE MARCH 
**TOTALS** 


UNIFORM PANTS 
KIRSCH BOOTS 


**TOTALS** 


REFUND GOLF ACH MEMBERSHIP 
**TOTALS** 


GROSS AMT 


279.75 


285.00 
285.00 


190.00 
190.00 


73.00 
73.00 


51. 95 
71.50 


123.45 


5,045.85 
5,045.85 


395.00 
27.12 


422.12 


590.00 
590.00 


30.85 
30.85 


12,253.10 
12,253.10 


2,278.65 
2,278.65 


255.00 
255.00 


52.45 
221.27 
273.72 


113.52 
113.52 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 4 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


0.00 
0.00 


000000 0/00/00 


0.00 
0.00 
0.00 


000000 0/00/00 
000000 0/00/00 


0.00 
0.00 


000000 0/00/00 


0.00 000000 
0.00 000000 
0.00 


0/00/00 
0/00/00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


12,253.10- 001013 2/25/21 
12,253.10-


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


0.00 000000 
0.00 000000 
0.00 


0/00/00 
0/00/00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 
0.00 


279.75 


285.00 
285.00 


190.00 
190.00 


73.00 
73.00 


51.95 
71. 50 


123 .45 


5,045.85 
5,045.85 


395.00 
27.12 


422.12 


590.00 
590.00 


30.85 
30.85 


0.00 
0.00 


2,278.65 
2,278.65 


255.00 
255.00 


52 .45 
221.27 
273.72 


113 .52 
113 .52 







03-04-202l l2:2l AM 
VENDOR SET: 0l City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S P A Y A B L E 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/19/202l THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


0l-009535 GENERAL RENTAL SHARPENED BLADES l6.00 
**TOTALS** 16.00 


01-010150 GRAINGER PARTS SAFETY SIGNS 68.26 
** TOTALS ** 68.26 


01-0l0660 HAWKEYE TRUCK EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT MAINT. SUPPLIES 91. 00 
** TOTALS ** 91. 00 


01-010680 HAWKINS WATER TREATMENT WATER TREATMENT SUPPLIES 15.00-
01-010680 HAWKINS WATER TREATMENT WATER TREATMENT SUPPLIES 902.50 


** TOTALS ** 887.50 


0l-0054l0 HERALD PUBLISHING COMPANY SPRING/SUMMER BROCHURE 8,922.00 
01-005410 HERALD PUBLISHING COMPANY LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 757.89 


** TOTALS** 9,679.89 


01-001549 INLAND TRUCK PARTS COMPAN #26 PARK CONTROL VALVE 432.72 
** TOTALS** 432.72 


01-012666 IOWA ONE CALL JAN. 2021 LOCATES 95.80 
**TOTALS** 95.80 


01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER REPAIR PARTS 52.32 
01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER REPAIR PARTS 38 .13 
0l-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER REPAIR PARTS 4.2l 
01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER GEARBOX GREASE 6.99 


**TOTALS** l0l. 65 


01-012706 IPERS IPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 18,261.82 
0l-012706 IPERS IPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 18.90 
01-012706 IPERS IPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 35.8l 


**TOTALS** 18,316.53 


01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ PRODUCTION COSTS 870.00 
** TOTALS ** 870.00 


01-003753 JAY WEISENBORN REFUND GOLF ACH MEMBERSHIP l22.34 
** TOTALS ** l22.34 


01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. DISTR. MAINT REPLACEMENT 2020 1,852.50 
0l-0l3917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. 2020 WELL REPLACEMENT 7,911.25 


** TOTALS ** 9,763.75 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 5 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 000000 0/00/00 l6.00 
0.00 16.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 68.26 
0.00 68.26 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 91.00 
0.00 9l. 00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 15.00-
0.00 000000 0/00/00 902.50 
0.00 887.50 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 8,922.00 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 757.89 
0.00 9,679.89 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 432.72 
0.00 432.72 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 95.80 
0.00 95.80 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 52.32 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 38 .13 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.21 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 6.99 
0.00 101.65 


18,261.82- 0010l4 2/25/2l 0.00 
18.90- 001014 2/25/21 0.00 
35.81- 001014 2/25/2l 0.00 


18,3l6.53- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 870.00 
0.00 870.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 122.34 
0.00 l22.34 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,852.50 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 7,911.25 
0.00 9,763.75 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S PAYABLE 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL #26 ELECTRICAL CONNECTION 4.80 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL SUPPLIES 1. 70 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AIR AND OIL FILTERS 105.04 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 16.82 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 85.44 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL V-BELT 148.93 
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL WASHERS AND BOLTS 2.91 


**TOTALS** 365.64 


01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER MATS FOR CAST SWIM 100.84 
**TOTALS** 100.84 


01-003481 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC COPIER CONTRACT 41.76 
**TOTALS** 41.76 


01-017133 MASTERCARD VEHICLE SUPPLIES/BACKGROUND CK 135 .45 
01-017133 MASTERCARD SUPPLIES 1,159.36 


**TOTALS** 1,294.81 


01-001947 MATHESON TRI-GAS INC. GAS 49.17 
** TOTALS** 49.17 


01-012680 MID AMERICAN ENERGY RISER CONNECTION FEE 167.25 
01-012680 MID AMERICAN ENERGY WELL #20 4.72 


** TOTALS** 171.97 


01-003226 MIKE KILLEEN WATER CONFERENCE 10.00 
**TOTALS** 10.00 


01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIL 479.99 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIL DRI 19.60 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #26 LIGHT 19.82 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #33 LIGHT 21.99 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #33 HEADLIGHT 21.99 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS BATTERIES FOR AUTO SCRUBBER 689.20 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS BATTERIES FOR AUTO SCRUBBER 112.04 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #23 WIRING 128.92 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS DRAIN PANS - SHOP 25.98 
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #24 WHEEL SEAL 50.20 


**TOTALS** 1,569.73 


01-003250 NEW WAY FORD SUPER HOOP STEP 230.00 
**TOTALS** 230.00 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 6 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


4.80- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 
l. 70- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 


105.04- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 
16.82- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 
85.44- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 


148.93- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 
2.91- 120418 2/23/21 0.00 


365.64- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.84 
0.00 100.84 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 41. 76 
0.00 41.76 


135.45- 120416 2/23/21 0.00 
1,159.36- 120417 2/23/21 0.00 
1,294.81- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 49.17 
0.00 49.17 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 167.25 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.72 
0.00 171.97 


10.00- 120425 3/04/21 0.00 
10.00- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 479.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.60 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.82 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 689.20 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 112.04 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 128.92 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 25.98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 50.20 
0.00 1,569.73 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 230.00 
0.00 230.00 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S P A Y A B L E 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


01-020208 O'HALLORAN INTERNATIONAL #24 FILTERS 88-70 
** TOTALS** 88.70 


01-020203 OFFICE STOP LABELS AND SUPPLIES 53.48 
01-020203 OFFICE STOP COPY PAPER & ENVELOPES 157.50 


** TOTALS** 210.98 


01-020326 OPTIONS INK BUSINESS CARDS 115-00 
** TOTALS** 115.00 


01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC TIRE MOUNT AND BALANCE 109.66 
01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #19 OIL CHANGE 26.71 
01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #15 OIL CHANGE AND BATTERY 252-69 
01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #18 TIRES AND OIL CHANGE 374_31 
01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #20 OIL CHANGE 29-11 


** TOTALS ** 792-48 


01-021735 POSTMASTER POSTAGE TO MAIL WATER BILLS 1,568_59 
** TOTALS ** 1,568.59 


01-021860 PRESTO-X-COMPANY PEST CONTROL 627 N ADAMS ST 79-00 
** TOTALS ** 79_00 


01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT REPAIR PARTS 85-27 
01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT SUPPLIES 3_66 
01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT #33 REPAIR PARTS 503.16 


** TOTALS ** 592.09 


01-003489 PSILAB INC TRANS MAIN GROUP A DRAKE 770_00 
** TOTALS ** 770.00 


01-023630 RANDY'S REFRIGERATION & E FRIDGE/WTR COOLER REPAIRS 154-00 
** TOTALS ** 154-00 


01-003137 RDG PLANNING & DESIGN CARROLL us 30 CORRIDOR 12,000-00 
01-003137 RDG PLANNING & DESIGN CARROLL us 30 CORRIDOR PLAN 15,000-00 


** TOTALS ** 27,000_oo 


01-023815 REGION XII COG HOUSING GRANT - CITY MATCH 2,100_00 
** TOTALS ** 2,100_00 


01-002987 RIESBERG AUDIO AND DETAIL EQUIPMENT REMOVED 350_00 
01-002987 RIESBERG AUDIO AND DETAIL #16 EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION 2,780_00 


** TOTALS ** 3,130_00 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 7 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 000000 0/00/00 88.70 
0.00 88.70 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 53.48 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 157.50 
o_oo 210.98 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 115_00 
o_oo 115.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 109.66 
o_oo 000000 0/00/00 26.71 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 252.69 
o_oo 000000 0/00/00 374_31 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 29_11 
0.00 792.48 


1,568_59- 120422 2/25/21 o_oo 
1,568.59- 0.00 


o_oo 000000 0/00/00 79_00 
0.00 79.00 


85-27- 120414 2/23/21 o_oo 
3_66- 120414 2/23/21 o_oo 


503-16- 120414 2/23/21 o_oo 
592-09- o_oo 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 770_00 
o_oo 770_00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 154_00 
o_oo 154_00 


o_oo 000000 0/00/00 12,000_00 
o_oo 000000 0/00/00 15,000.00 
o_oo 27,000_00 


0_00 000000 0/00/00 2,100_00 
o_oo 2,100_00 


o_oo 000000 0/00/00 350.00 
o_oo 000000 0/00/00 2,780_00 
o_oo 3,130_00 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S P A Y A B L E 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT 


01-024630 RUTTEN'S VACUUM CENTER VACUUM BAGS 21.99 
**TOTALS** 21. 99 


01-004178 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT CO APR-JUN ASSESSMENT 30,745.00 
** TOTALS** 30,745.00 


01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY WELL CONSTRUCTION 2020 13 .50 
01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY WATER SAMPLE ANALYSIS 42.50 


** TOTALS** 56.00 


01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. SUPPLIES 11.98 
01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. STAPLES AND OFFICE SUPPLIES 13 .47 
01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. OFFICE SUPPLIES 15.98 
01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. OFFICE SUPPLIES 560.70 
01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. CLOCK 49.99 
01-025880 STONE PRINTING co. SIGN SUPPLIES 37.25 


**TOTALS** 689.37 


01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA JANUARY SALES TAX 3,325.00 
** TOTALS** 3,325.00 


01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 2/13/2021 52.89 
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 2/20/2021 24.82 


** TOTALS** 77.71 


01-028174 UNITED STATES CELLULAR CELL PHONES 216.99 
**TOTALS** 216.99 


01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE SUPPLIES 4.29 
**TOTALS** 4.29 


01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 HDMI CABLE 12.98 
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 24.16 
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 171. 83 
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SPEAKERS - GRANT'S COMPUTER 19.88 
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 WWTP SUPPLIES 179.88 
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 CAR CLEANING SUPPLIES 43.56 


** TOTALS** 452.29 


01-003756 WALTER M PACHECO-BELEN ILEA CERTIFICATION 141. 94 
** TOTALS ** 141.94 


01-003377 WELLMARK BLUE CROSS/BLUE MARCH LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUMS 316.52 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 8 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


0.00 000000 0/00/00 21. 99 
0.00 21. 99 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 30,745.00 
0.00 30,745.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 13 .50 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 42.50 
0.00 56.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 13 .47 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 15.98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 560.70 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 49.99 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 37.25 
0.00 689.37 


3,325.00- 000000 2/23/21 0.00 
3,325.00- 0.00 


52.89- 120419 2/23/21 0.00 
24.82- 120428 3/04/21 0.00 
77.71- 0.00 


216.99- 120423 2/25/21 0.00 
216.99- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.29 
0.00 4.29 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 12.98 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 24.16 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 l 71. 83 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.88 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 179.88 
0.00 000000 0/00/00 43.56 
0.00 452.29 


141. 94- 120427 3/04/21 0.00 
141. 94- 0.00 


316.52- 120426 3/04/21 0.00 







03-04-2021 12:21 AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


======PAYMENT DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION 


A C C O U N T S PAYABLE 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


=======ITEM DATES========= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


GROSS AMT 


** TOTALS ** 316.52 


01-030355 WITTROCK MOTOR CO. SPLASH GUARD KIT 65.00 
** TOTALS ** 65.00 


01-003291 WORLDPAY INTEGRATED PAYME CC PROCESSING FEES 529.58 
** TOTALS ** 529.58 


* Payroll Expense 155,524.99 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/2021 


PAGE: 9 
BANK: AP 


PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---


316.52- 0.00 


0.00 000000 0/00/00 65.00 
0.00 65.00 


529.58- 000000 2/23/21 0.00 
529.58- 0.00 







03-04-202l l2:2l AM 
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


A C C O U N T S P A Y A B L E 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES======= 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/2021 THRU 3/04/202l 


2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/202l 
2/19/2021 THRU 3/04/202l 
2/19/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


2/19/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/19/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


PAID ITEMS 
PARTIALLY PAID 
UNPAID ITEMS 
VOID ITEMS 


** TOTALS ** 


R E P 0 RT T 0 T A L S 


GROSS PAYMENTS BALANCE 


225,827.22 225,827.22CR 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 


128,502.65 0.00 128,502.65 
0.00 0.00 0.00 


354,329.87 225,827.22CR l28,502.65 


UNPAID RE CAP 


UNPAID INVOICE TOTALS 
UNPAID DEBIT MEMO TOTALS 
UNAPPLIED CREDIT MEMO TOTALS 


128,5l7.65 
0.00 


l5.00CR 


** UNPAID TOTALS** 128,502.65 


PAGE: l0 
BANK: AP 







03-04-202l l2:2l AM 
VENDOR SET: 0l City of Carroll 
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL 


======PAYMENT DATES======= 
PAID ITEMS DATES 
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 


2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


UNPAID ITEMS DATES 


00l 
0l0 
ll0 
l2l 
309 
3l4 
350 
600 
602 
6l0 
850 


GENERAL FUND 
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX 
ROAD USE TAX FUND 
LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 
c_p_ - CORRIDOR OF COMM_ 
C_P_-STREETS MAINT BLDG 
C_P_ - HOUSING FUND 
WATER UTILITY FUND 
WATER UTILITY CAP. IMP. 
SEWER UTILITY FUND 
MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND 
* PAYROLL EXPENSE 


GRAND TOTAL 


FUND TOTALS 


ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
0 P E N I T E M R E P O R T 


SUMMARY 


=======ITEM DATES========= 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


ll7,872.84 
28.55 


l4,4l7.65 
28,940.00 


357.50 
5,045.85 
2,l00.00 


l0,l74.75 
l0,7l4.50 


8,836.72 
3l6.52 


l55,524.99 


354,329.87 


======POSTING DATES======= 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 
2/l9/202l THRU 3/04/202l 


PAGE: ll 
BANK: AP 








City of Carroll 
Brad Burke, Chief of Police Police Department 
================================== ♦ ================================== 


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-3536 FAX: (712) 792-8088 


MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manage¼<f-c-J 


FROM: Brad Burke, Chief of Police.~ 


DATE: March 4, 2021 


SUBJECT: Carroll City Ordinance Chapter 43, Drug Paraphernalia, addition 


UPDATE 3/4/21: As of this date I have not had any feedback since the last council 
meeting. During the last meeting I indicated there was some feedback but nothing that 
would persuade a change or removal of this ordinance. 


UPDATE: As of this date, I have not had any feedback, negative or positive, in regards to 
the Drug Paraphernalia ordinance. First reading was completed at last council meeting. 


After discussion at the last City Council meeting on January 24, 2021 , the attached 
ordinance for Drug Paraphernalia was created. This is the same ordinance that was 
attached to the January 24, 2021, agenda with a few minor changes. The code section has 
been amended to Chapter 43 as the previous code was rearranged by the codification 
company who manages City of Carroll Ordinances. Also, after discussion with the City 
Attorney, a scheduled violation of $200.00 was added as the penalty for possession of 
drug paraphernalia. This fine amount matches the penalty of the Carroll County 
Ordinance No. 15 dealing with drug paraphernalia. 


RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and third reading and adoption of the 
ordinance addition, Chapter 43 Drug Paraphernalia, to the City of Carroll Code of 
Ordinances. 







ORDINANCE NO. __ 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF CARROLL, IOWA, 2011, BY ADDING A NEW CHAPTER FOR DRUG 
PARAPHERNALIA 


BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa: 


SECTION 1. NEW CHAPTER 
The Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, is amended by adding a new 


chapter, Chapter 43, entitled DRUG PARAPHERNALIA, which is hereby adopted to 
read as follows: 


43.01 PURPOSE. The purpose of this chapter is to prohibit the use, possession with 
intent to use, manufacture and delivery of drug paraphernalia as defined herein. 


43.02 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE DEFINED. The term "controlled substance" as 
used in this chapter is defined as the term "controlled substance" is defined in the 
Uniform Controlled Substances Act, Chapter 124 of the Code of Iowa, as it now exists or 
is hereafter amended. 


43.03 DRUG PARAPHERNALIA DEFINED. The term "drug paraphernalia" as 
used in this chapter means all equipment, products, and materials of any kind which are 
used, intended for use, or designed for use, in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing, 
harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, converting, producing, processing, preparing, 
testing, analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, concealing, containing, injecting, 
ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing into the human body a controlled substance 
in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act, Chapter 124 of the Code of Iowa. 
It includes, but is not limited to: 
1. Growing Kits. Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in planting, 
propagating, cultivating, growing, or harvesting of any species of plant which is a 
controlled substance or from which a controlled substance can be derived. 
2. Processing Kits. Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in manufacturing, 
compounding, converting, producing, processing, or preparing controlled substances. 
3. Isomerization Devices. Isomerization devices used, intended for use, or designed for 
use in increasing the potency of any species of plant which is a controlled substance. 
4. Testing Equipment. Testing equipment used, intended for use, or designed for use in 
identifying or in analyzing the strength, effectiveness or purity of controlled substances. 
5. Scales. Scales and balances used, intended for use, or designed for use in weighing or 
measuring controlled substances. 
6. Diluents. Diluents and adulterants, such as quinine, hydrochloride, mannitol, mannite, 
dextrose or lactose used, intended for use, or designed for use in cutting controlled 
substances. · 
7. Separators - Sifters. Separation gins and sifters used, intended for use, or designed for 
use in removing twigs and seeds from, or in otherwise cleaning or refining marijuana. 







8. Mixing Devices. Blenders, bowls, containers, spoons and m1xmg devices used, 
intended for use, or designed for use in compounding controlled substances. 
9. Containers. Capsules, balloons, envelopes and other containers used, intended for use, 
or designed for use in packaging small qt1aotities of controlled substances. 
10. Storage Containers. Containers and other objects used, intended for use, or designed 
for use in storing or concealing controlled substances. 
11. Injecting Devices. Hypodermic syringes, needles and other objects used, intended for 
use, or designed for use in parenterally injecting controlled substances into the human 
body. 


12. Ingesting-Inhaling Device. Objects used, intended for use, or designed for use in 
ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing heroin, marijuana, cocaine, hashish, or 
hashish oil into the human body, such as: 


A. Metal, wooden, acrylic, glass, stone, plastic, or ceramic pipes with or 
without screens, permanent screens, hashish heads, or punctured metal 
bowls; 


B. Water pipes; 
C. Carburetion tubes and devices; 
D. Smoking and carburetion masks; 
E. Roach clips, meaning objects used to hold burning materials, such as a 


marijuana cigarette that has become too small or too short to be held in the 
hand; 


F. Miniature cocaine spoons and cocaine vials; 
G. Chamber pipes; 
H. Carburetor pipes; 
I. Electric pipes; 
J. Air driven pipes; 
K. Chillums; 
L. Bongs; 
M. Ice pipes or chillers. 


43.04 DETERMINING FACTORS: In determining whether an object is drug 
paraphernalia for the purpose of enforcing this chapter, the following factors should be 
considered in addition to all other logically relevant factors: 
1. Statements. Statements by an owner or by anyone in control of the object concerning 
its use. 
2. Prior Convictions. Prior convictions, if any, of an owner, or of anyone in control of 
the object under any State or Federal law relating to any controlled substance. 
3. Proximity To Violation. The proximity of the object, in time and space, to a direct 
violation of the Uniform Controlled Substance Act, Chapter 124 of the Code of the Iowa. 
4. Proximity To Substances. The proximity of the object to controlled substances. 
5. Residue. The existence of any residue of controlled substances on the object. 
6. Evidence of Intent. Direct or circumstantial evidence of the intent of an owner or of 
anyone in control of the object, to deliver it to persons whom he or she knows, or should 
reasonably know, intend to use the object to facilitate a violation of the Uniform 
Controlled Substances Act, Chapter 124 of the Code oflowa. 







7. Innocence of an Owner. The innocence of an owner, or of anyone in control of the 
object, as to a direct violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act, Chapter 124 of 
the Code of the Iowa, should not prevent a finding that the object is intended for use, or 
designed for use as drug paraphernalia. 
8. Instructions. Instructions, oral or written, provided with the object concerning its use. 
9. Descriptive Materials. Descriptive materials accompanying the object which explain 
or depict its use. 
10. Advertising. National and local advertising concerning its use. 


11. Displayed. The manner in which the object is possessed or displayed for sale, 
including its proximity to other objects commonly used or intended for use in planting, 
propagating, cultivating, growing, harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, converting, 
producing, processing, preparing, testing, analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, 
concealing, containing, injecting, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing into the 
human body. 
12. Licensed Distributor or Dealer. Whether the owner, or anyone in control of the 
object, is a legitimate supplier of like or related items to the community, such as a 
licensed distributor or dealer of tobacco products. 
13. Sales Ratios. Direct or circumstantial evidence of the ratio of sales of the object(s) to 
the total sales of the business enterprise. 
14. Legitimate Uses. The existence and scope of legitimate uses for the object in the 
community. 
15. Expert Testimony. Expert testimony concerning its use. 


43.05 POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA. It is unlawful for any person 
to use, or to possess with intent to use, drug paraphernalia to plant, propagate, cultivate, 
grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, process, prepare, test, analyze, 
pack, repack, store, conceal, contain, inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the 
human body a controlled substance in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substance Act, 
Chapter 124 of the Code of Iowa. 


43.06 MANUFACTURE, DELIVERY OR OFFERING FOR SALE. It is unlawful 
for any person to deliver, possess with intent to deliver, manufacture with intent to 
deliver, or offer for sale drug paraphernalia, intending that the drug paraphernalia will be 
used, or knowing, or under circumstances where one reasonably should know that it will 
be used, or knowing that it is designed for use to plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, 
harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, 
repack, store, conceal, contain, inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the 
human body a controlled substance in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances 
Act, Chapter 124 of the Code of Iowa. 


43.07 PENAL TY. Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of 
a simple misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof be subject to a scheduled fine of two 
hundred dollars ($200.00). 







SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 


SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, provision or part of 
this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not 
affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 


SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and 
after its final passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 


Passed and approved this ___ day of ______ ~ 2021. 


ATTEST: 


Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 


CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 


Eric P. Jensen, Mayor 


I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance No. ___ on the 
__ day of ______ _, 2021. 


Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 








City of Carroll 
=================================== ♦ =================================== 


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139 


MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 


FROM: MikePogge-Weaver, City Manager {M1f ..... W 


DATE: March 4, 2021 


SUBJECT: Committee Repmis 


1. Library Board (meets 3rd or 4th Monday of month) - February 15, 2021 


2. Board of Adjustment (meets 1st Monday of month) - March 1, 2021 


3. Planning and Zoning Cmmnission (meets 2nd Wednesday of month) -


4. Carroll Airport Cmmnission (meets 2nd Monday of month) -


5. Parks, Recreation & Cultural Advisory Board (meets 1st Monday of January, March, 


May, July, September and November)-


6. Carroll County Solid Waste Management Cmmnission (meets 2nd Tuesday of month)-


7. Carroll Historic Preservation Commission (no regular meeting dates) -


8. Safety Committee (no regular meeting dates)-


9. Civil Service Cmmnission (as needed)-







Library Board Minutes 


February 15, 2021 


The Carroll Board of Trustees met in the Community Meeting Room at the Carroll Public Library. 


Trustees present: Lisa Auen, Marcie Hircock, Brenda Hogue, Thomas Parrish, Summer Parrott, Julie 


Perkins, Dale Schmidt, Kyle Ulveling (5:19), Ralph von Qualen, and Director Rachel Van Erdewyk. 


Trustees absent: None. 


Parrott called the meeting to order at 5:15. New trustee, Marcie Hircock, who is replacing Carol Shields, 


was introduced to the trustees. It was moved by von Qualen and seconded by Perkins to approve the 


agenda with an addendum to nominate and vote for secretary position (upon further review, since this 


item was not originally listed on the agenda, this item will be brought back for action at the March 15 


trustee meeting). All voted aye. Absent: Ulveling. Ulveling arrived at 5:19. It was moved by Hogue and 


seconded by Schmidt to approve the minutes of the January meeting. All voted aye. It was moved by 


Ulveling and seconded by Auen to approve the bills. All voted aye. 


Director's Report: Adult programming continues with the Crafty Library Ladies and Book Clubs. 


Children's programming continued with Miss Diane's Facetime Live, Rookies at Home Storytime with 


Grab and Go crafts, and book drop-offs to area daycares. Friends of the Library held a book sale January 


13-16, with plans to have one every other month going forward. Total program attendance was 3,510. 


Total resources utilized was 32,473. Monthly door count was 2,527. 


Board Education: None. 


Old Business: Update on Donor Wall. 


New Business: Discussion item-Meeting Room and Social Stairs usage information. After discussion, it 


was moved by Ulveling and seconded by Perkins for Van Erdewyk to amend the Meeting Room Use 


Policy to include discussion items of the board and to be brought back to the board for review and 


approval. All voted aye. A policy on the Social Stairs is tabled for now. It was moved by Perkins and 


seconded by Schmidt to appoint Hogue to replace Shields as Secretary on the board (upon further 


review, since this item was not originally listed on the agenda, this item will be brought back for action 


at the March 15 trustee meeting). All voted aye. 


It was moved by Ulveling and seconded by Parrish to adjourn. All voted aye. Meeting adjourned at 5:58. 


Next regular meeting will be March 15, 2021. 


Summer Parrott-President Judy Behm-Recording Secretary 







BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 


MINUTES OF MARCH 1, 2021 


The Board of Adjustment met in regular session on this date at 5:15 PM in the Council 


Chambers, City Hall, 627 N Adams Street. Members present: Jonathan Campbell, Aaron 


Juergens, Ruth Nellesen, Mark O'Leary and John Wessling. Absent: Donna Pudenz and Nick 


Topf. Also present: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager, Greg Schreck, Building/Fire Safety 


Official and Perry Johnson, Building Official. 


* * * * * * * 
O'Leary served as interim chairperson to ele 


second by Wessling to elect O'Leary as chairperso 


Topf. Motion carried. O'Leary assumed the 


erson. MOTION by Nellesen 


to elect Pudenz as vice-chairperson. All pres 


carried. 


Board. 


proposes t 


does not plan t 


to produce (load/re 


ccupation, from Michael and 


escribed as Lot 11, Block 1, Oak Park 


a, was presented for consideration by the 


Firearms License and orice obtained he 


dgun, rifles and shotguns at this residence. Mr. Kots 


hand or a retail location. He has also applied for his license 


tion, which he currently does, and plans to fill orders on a 


requested basis and no munition either. All adjacent property owners were provided 


written notice via USPS. ichael Kots appeared to support the request. No other persons 


appeared to support or oppose the request. MOTION by Campbell, second by O'Leary, to 


approve the request as presented for a special use permit, home occupation. Aye: Campbell, 


Juergens, Nellesen and O'Leary. Nay: Wessling. Absent: Pudenz and Topf. Motion carried .. 


******* 
Case 03-21-02, a request for a variance from Samuel Yetmar, 303 S Maple Street, legally 


described as the East 85 feet of the West 90 feet of Out Lot "A", Heims Addition to Carroll, 







Carroll County, Iowa, was presented for consideration by the Board. Samuel is planning on 


building a 24-foot by 24-foot two car attached garage to the east side of his house. He is 


requesting a variance to build due to the property's lot size being smaller than required. All 


adjacent property owners were provided written notice via USPS. Samuel Yetmar and his 


contractor, Curt Kirsch appeared to support the request. No other persons appeared to support or 


oppose the request. MOTION by Wessling, second by Campbell, to deny the request as 


presented for a variance. All present voted aye. Absent: Pudenz and Topf. Motion carried. 


******* 
MOTION by Juergens, second by Campbell, to at 5:40 PM. All present voted 


aye. Absent: Pudenz and Topf. Motion carried. 


Mark O'Leary, Chairperson Manger 












 


City of Carroll  


627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 


MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 


 


       FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager  


 


         DATE:  March 4, 2021 


 


   SUBJECT:  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) COVID-19 Grant 


  Public Hearing


 


On April 28, 2020 the City of Carroll was awarded a CDBG COVID-19 Grant in the amount not 


to exceed $49,050.  The CDBG funds for this project were used to assist local non-profits in 


providing restaurant gift cards to families and to cover processing costs of meat donated to local 


food programs.  


 


Gift Cards.  The grant funds were used to provide $25.00 restaurant gift cards to families that 


were serviced by Carroll County Community of Concern Food Pantry and New Opportunities in 


2019.  In 2019 Carroll County Community of Concern Food Pantry serviced 937 families and New 


Opportunities serviced 825 families.  Under this program, Carroll County Community of Concern 


Food Pantry serviced 727 families as of March 4, 2021 with plans to distribute the final 210 gift 


cards by April 24, 2021.  New Opportunities serviced 646 families of which 179 received more 


than one gift card.  This is in response to the COVID-19 pandemic to support a growing need and 


to address hunger in the Carroll community.  The amount that was provided to each agency was 


as follows: 


 


• Carroll County Community of Concern  $23,425.00  


• New Opportunities    $20,625.00 


 


Meat Processing.  The grant funds were used to cover processing fees of donated meat to New 


Opportunities. 832 families were supported with meat through this activity. This is in response to 


the COVID-19 pandemic to support a growing need and to address hunger in the Carroll 


community.  Amount to provided was as follows: 


 


• New Opportunities    $5,000.00 


Both of these activities served people that are low and moderate income persons and families that 


were facing food insecurity in Carroll County.   


 


No person was displaced or relocated as part of this project.  The project is being entirely funded 


through a Community Development Block Grant provided by the Iowa Economic Development 


Authority and no local (city) match was made as part of this grant.    







 


During the public hearing, as required by the terms of the CDBG, the public is asked to comment 


on the following items: 


 


• Community development and housing needs of low to moderate persons in the 


city and any planned or potential activities to address these needs. 


• Other community development and housing needs and any planned or potential 


activities to address these needs. 


 


Notice of the March 8, 2021 public hearing was published in the Carroll Times Herald on February 


23, 2021  


 


If you have questions concerning the project or if you require special accommodations to attend 


the hearing such as handicapped accessibility or translation services, you may contact Mike Pogge-


Weaver at 712-775-7505.   


 


RECOMMENDATION: Council to hold a public hearing related to the use of the 2020 


Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to address hunger in the Carroll community 


related to COVID-19. 








City of Carroll 
========================= ♦ ======================== 


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139 


MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manage~~,/(..A) 


FROM: 


DATE: 


Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and Recreation1W 


March 3, 2021 


SUBJECT: Memo to City Council - Contract for Services Agreement - Carroll 
Recreation Center Building Improvements Project - 2021 


❖ Contract for Services Agreement 
❖ Resolution 


The City of Carroll has requested a Contract for Services Agreement from RDG Planning 
& Design - Des Moines, Iowa for the Carroll Recreation Center Building Improvements 
Project - 2021. The scope of the work will involve design and documentation of a new 
east side gymnasium, new elevated track that will encompass the current gymnasium as 
well as the new gymnasium, remodeling the existing four locker rooms, the addition of 
four family changing rooms, a wet classroom, commons area and control desk area 
relocation near the west side entrance. Possible bid alternates include remodeling and 
relocating the offices and activities room. In addition, the project will replace four of the 
existing air handling units (AHU) numbers 1,2,4,and 5. 


Preliminary Schedule 


Schematic Design 
Design Development 
Construction Documents 
Bidding - Negotiation 
Approval of Bids & Award of Contract 
Construction 


Cost of Work: 


Construction 
Survey, Geo, Permits 
FF & E 
Design & Expenses 
Misc. 
Construction Contingency 
Total Cost of Work 


March 15, 2021 - May 14, 2021 
May 17, 2021 - July 30, 2021 
August 2, 2021 - December 1, 2021 
December 1, 2021 - January 12, 2022 
January 24, 2022 
February 2022 - April 2023 


$6,280,000 
$ 35,000 
$ 15,000 
$ 480,000 
$ 186,000 
$ 314,000 
$7,310,000 







Fee Proposal: 


Lump sum fee of $456,405 plus reimbursable expenses. 


In addition to the above, the fee for replacement of existing AHU's is a lump sum fee of 
$19,900. 


To add a sound system to the gyms and lockers rooms is a lump sum fee of $5,000. 


To add fire protection (sprinklers) to existing building if required by code is a lump sum 
fee of $9,000. 


To replace lighting in existing gym is a lump sum fee of $2,500. 


Other Expenses 


Expenses incurred in this work (such as printing, travel, shipping, and similar), as 
Reimbursable Expenses, on a cost plus 10% basis (expenses will not exceed $20,000). 


Staff Recommendations to the Fee Proposal 


Lump Sum Fee 
Replacement of AHU's 
Sound System Upgrades 
Fire protection if required 
Replace Lighting in existing gym 
Total Recommendation Work 


$456,405 
$ 19,900 * 
$ 5,000 
$ 9,000 
$ 2,500 
$492,805 


*Note: The replacement of the AHU's will be funded from the FY 2022 
budget and outside of the overall Recreation Center Building 
Improvements Project. 


Budgeted Funding 


G.O. Local Option Sales Tax Bond proceeds 
G.O. Capital Loan Notes proceeds 


$5,620.363 ** 
$ 700,000 
$1,000,000 
$7,320,363 


Available Local Option Sales Tax funds 
Total Available Funding 


**Note: The City is authorized to issue up to $7,610,000 in L.O.S.T. bonds 
for improvements at the Carroll Rec Center when the Council 
approved the resolution instituting proceeds for such issuance on 
June 22, 2020. 







RECOIVIMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council consideration and approval of the 
Contract for Services Agreement with ROG Planning and Design for the Carroll Recreation 
Center Building Improvement Plan - 2021 for the Total Design Fee of: $492,805 plus 
expenses incurred in this work at cost plus 10%, not to exceed $20,000. 







RESOLUTION _____ _ 


RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH RDG PLANNING AND DESIGN FOR CARROLL RECREATION 


CENTER BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT - 2021 


WHEREAS, the City of Carroll is desirous of completing the Carroll Recreation 
Center Building Improvements project - 2021; and, 


WHEREAS, Contract for Services Agreement with ROG Planning and Design 
has been prepared to further define required professional services: and 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Contract for Services 
Agreement with ROG Planning and Design for the Carroll Recreation Center Building 
Improvements Project - 2021 is approved upon review and acceptance by the City 
Attorney. 


Passed and approved by the Carroll City Council this 8th day of March 2021. 


ATTEST: 


By: ___________ _ 
Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 


CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 


By: __________ _ 
Eric P. Jensen, Mayor 







  







 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
1 


 


AIA  Document B101™– 2017 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect 
 
 
AGREEMENT made as of the Seventeenth day of February in the year Two Thousand Twenty-One. 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 
 
BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 
 
City of Carroll  
627 N Adams Street 
Carroll, IA  51401 
Phone Number: 712-792-1000 
 
And the Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 
 
RDG IA Inc R3003.272.01 
d/b/a RDG Planning & Design 
301Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, IA 50309-1718 
Phone Number: 515-288-3141 
 
For the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 
 
Carroll Recreation Center, Building Improvements Project 2021 
Carroll, Iowa 
 
The Owner and Architect agree as follows.  







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
2 


 


TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
 
2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
 
4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
6 COST OF THE WORK 
 
7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
 
8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
 
9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
 
10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
11 COMPENSATION 
 
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as “not applicable” or “unknown at time of 
execution.”) 
Exhibit A 
 
§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project: 
(Insert the Owner’s program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner’s program, or state the manner in which 
the program will be developed.) 
 
Exhibit A 
 
§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics: 
(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size; location; dimensions; 
geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public and private 
utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.) 
 
Carroll Recreation Center located at 716 N Grant Rd, Carroll, IA 51401 
  
§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1 (Does not include cost of replacing existing 
air handling units #1, 2, 4, & 5.) : 
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.) 
 
Construction  $6,280,000 
Survey, Geo, Permits $     35,000 
FF&E   $     15,000 
Design & Expenses $   480,000 
Misc   $   186,000 
Constr contingency $   314,000 
TOTAL   $7,310,000 
 
§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates: 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
3 


 


 
.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any: 
 


Documents complete in December 2021 
 
.2 Construction commencement date: 
 


Spring 2022 
 
.3 Substantial Completion date or dates: 
 


April 2023 
 
.4 Other milestone dates: 
 


NA 
 


§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procurement and delivery method for the Project: 
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract, as well as any requirements for accelerated or fast-track 
design and construction, multiple bid packages, or phased construction.) 
 
Traditional Design-Bid-Build 
 
§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project: 
(Identify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.) 
 
To be energy efficient but not pursuing LEED. 
 
§ 1.1.6.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Architect shall complete and incorporate AIA 
Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and services 
related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective. If E204–2017 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner and Architect 
shall incorporate the completed E204–2017 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors performing services or 
Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective. 
 
§ 1.1.7 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 
 
Jack Wardell 
Director of Parks and Recreation 
City of Carroll 627 N Adams Street 
Carroll, IA  51401 
Phone Number: 712-792-1000 
Email: jwardell@cityofcarroll.com 
 
§ 1.1.8 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the Architect’s 
submittals to the Owner are as follows: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 
 
N/A 
 
§ 1.1.9 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and contractors: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 
 


.1 Geotechnical Engineer: 
 
 
.2 Civil Engineer: 
 


For any private utility relocation work. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
4 


 


.3 Other, if any: 
(List any other consultants and contractors retained by the Owner.) 


 
Site topographic survey 


 
§ 1.1.10 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 
 
Brad Rodenburg, AIA, LEED AP BD+C, WELL AP 
RDG Planning & Design 
301Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, IA 50309-1718 
Phone Number: 515-473-6361 
Email: brodenburg@rdgusa.com 
 
§ 1.1.11 The Architect shall retain the consultants identified in Sections 1.1.11.1 and 1.1.11.2: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 
 
§ 1.1.11.1 Consultants retained under Basic Services: 


.1 Structural Engineer: 
 


KPFF Consulting Engineers 
604 Locust Street, Suite 202 
Des Moines, IA 50309 
Phone Number: 515-279-3900 


 
.2 Mechanical Engineer: 
 


KCL 
300 4th Street 
West Des Moines, IA 50265 
Phone Number : 515-724-7938 


 
.3 Electrical Engineer: 
 


KCL 
300 4th Street 
West Des Moines, IA 50265 
Phone Number : 515-724-7938 


 
.4 Cost Consultant: 
 


Stecker-Harmsen, Inc.  
S. 17th Street, Suite 110 
P.O. Box 884 
Ames, IA 50010 
Phone Number: 515-232-4638 
 


.5 Civil Consultant: 
 


JEO Consulting Group, Inc. 
724 Simon Avenue 
Carroll, Iowa 51401 
Phone Number: 712-792-9711 


 
 
 
§ 1.1.11.2 Consultants retained under Supplemental Services: 
 
NA 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
5 


 


 
§ 1.1.12 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based: 
 
NA 
 
§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that the Initial 
Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the 
Architect’s services, schedule for the Architect’s services, and the Architect’s compensation. The Owner shall adjust the 
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work and the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as necessary, to 
accommodate material changes in the Initial Information. 
 
§ 1.3 The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other 
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information 
Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of 
digital data. 
 
§ 1.3.1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols 
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set forth 
in AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite RDG BIM 
Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202™–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at 
the using or relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors 
of, or contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees. 
 
ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect represents that it is 
properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide the services required by this Agreement, or shall 
cause such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design professionals. 
 
§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by 
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall perform its 
services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. 
 
§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the Project. 
 
§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional judgment 
with respect to this Project. 
 
§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any of the requirements 
set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Architect 
as set forth in Section 11.9. 
 
§ 2.5.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
§ 2.5.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Architect with policy limits of 
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury, death of any person, and property damage 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with any other statutorily required 
automobile coverage. 
 
§ 2.5.3 The Architect may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and Automobile 
Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such primary and excess or 
umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required under Sections 2.5.1 
and 2.5.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower coverage than the primary 
policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only through the actual payment by the 
underlying insurers. 
 
§ 2.5.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
6 


 


§ 2.5.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) each accident, 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) each employee, and Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) policy 
limit. 
 
§ 2.5.6 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional services with 
policy limits of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the 
aggregate. 
 
§ 2.5.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall cause the primary and 
excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner as an 
additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions. The additional 
insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance policies and shall apply to both 
ongoing and completed operations. 
 
§ 2.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the requirements 
in this Section 2.5. 
 
ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3 and include usual and customary structural, 
mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Supplemental or Additional 
Services. 
 
§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, research applicable design criteria, attend Project meetings, 
communicate with members of the Project team, and report progress to the Owner. 
 
§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants, 
however the Architect is not responsible to coordinate the Owner's or Owner's consultants’ services. The Architect shall be 
entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness of, services and information 
furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the 
Architect becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency in such services or information. 
 
§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a 
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the 
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. The 
schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of the Owner’s 
consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once approved by the 
Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the Architect or 
Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the Project proceeds until the 
commencement of construction. 
 
§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution, or for the Owner’s acceptance of 
non-conforming Work, made or given without the Architect’s written approval. 
 
§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall contact governmental authorities required to approve the Construction Documents and entities 
providing utility services to the Project. The Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by those 
authorities and entities. 
 
§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents required for 
the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
§ 3.1.7 The Owner acknowledges that the nature of the design process is such that the plans, specifications, and other 
documentation prepared by the Architect under this Agreement may require changes, corrections, and modifications during 
the construction process which may affect the Project schedule or increase the Cost of the Work. The Owner acknowledges 
that production of a complete set of perfect construction documents is neither reasonable nor expected under this 
Agreement. 
 
§ 3.1.8 The Owner and the Architect agree that the funding for contingencies provided for in Sections 6.1. and 6.3 shall 
include funds to pay costs which may arise from or out of such changes, corrections, or modifications to the plans, 
specifications or other documentation prepared by the Architect, including, but not limited to, any costs associated with a 
change or changes in the Project schedule, which portion of the contingency funding shall be in the amount of five percent 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
7 


 


(5 %) of the Cost of the Work, as defined in Article 6. In the event the aforementioned costs exceed the five percent (5%) 
contingency funding as defined in this paragraph 3.1.8, the Architect will be responsible for all costs in excess of the five 
percent (5%) which are attributable to changes, corrections, and modifications in the plans, specifications, and other 
documents prepared by the Architect, but only to the extent they are caused by the negligence of the Architect.  
 
§ 3.1.9 If the project involves making changes to existing facilities, the Owner shall furnish documentation and information 
upon which the Architect is entitled to rely for its accuracy and completeness. The Architect shall verify that the existing 
building drawings provided by the Owner generally represent the actual existing field conditions. Verification shall be 
limited to general overall visual observation and confirmation of significant dimensions of reasonably accessible exposed 
elements. In the event the information or documentation supplied by the Owner its consultants or agents, or employees of 
any of them, or an assumption made by the Architect based upon the documentation or information supplied by them or 
any of them, is inaccurate or incomplete, all resulting costs and expenses, including the costs of the Architect’s Additional 
Services, if any, shall be the responsibility of the Owner. Unless specifically authorized in writing by the Owner, the 
Architect shall not be required to perform or to have others perform, destructive testing or to investigate concealed or 
unknown conditions. 
 
§ 3.1.10 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Architect, the 
Architect's consultants and agents, and employees of any of them, from and against any and all claims, damages, awards, 
losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from latent, concealed or 
unknown conditions and/or documentation or information furnished by the Owner, its consultants or agents, or employees 
of any of them. 
 
§ 3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws, 
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services. 
 
§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost of the 
Work, Project site, the proposed procurement and delivery method, and other Initial Information, each in terms of the 
other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any inconsistencies 
discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be reasonably needed for the 
Project. 
 
§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner alternative 
approaches, if any, to design and construction of the Project. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the Owner 
regarding the requirements of the Project. 
 
§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present, for the 
Owner’s approval, a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 
 
§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design Documents 
for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other documents including a 
site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may include some combination of 
study models, perspective sketches, or digital representations. Preliminary selections of major building systems and 
construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing. 
 
§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider sustainable design alternatives, such as material choices and building orientation, 
together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that is consistent with the 
Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain more advanced sustainable design 
services as a Supplemental Service under Section 4.1.1. 
 
§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together with 
other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent with the 
Owner’s program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 
6.3. 
 
§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner’s approval. 
 
§ 3.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
8 


 


§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of any 
adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare Design 
Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and describe the 
development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other documents including 
plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix and describe 
the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, and other appropriate 
elements. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline specifications that identify major materials and 
systems and establish, in general, their quality levels. 
 
§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3. 
 
§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments 
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner’s approval. 
 
§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of any 
adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare Construction 
Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the further development of 
the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and Specifications setting forth in detail the 
quality levels and performance criteria of materials and systems and other requirements for the construction of the Work. 
The Owner and Architect acknowledge that, in order to perform the Work, the Contractor will provide additional 
information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals, which the Architect shall 
review in accordance with Section 3.6.4. 
 
§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate the design requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project into the Construction Documents. 
 
§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the development 
and preparation of (1) procurement information that describes the time, place, and conditions of bidding, including bidding 
or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for 
Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions). The Architect shall also compile a project manual that 
includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and Specifications, and may include bidding requirements and 
sample forms. 
 
§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3. 
 
§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments to the 
estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s approval. 
 
§ 3.5 PROCUREMENT PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.5.1 GENERAL 
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s approval of the 
Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive bids or negotiated 
proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid or proposal, if any; and, 
(4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 
 
§ 3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by: 


.1 facilitating the distribution of Bidding Documents to prospective bidders; 


.2 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 


.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and interpretations of 
the Bidding Documents to the prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and, 


.4 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the 
bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 


 
§ 3.5.2.3 If the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect shall, as an 
Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective bidders. 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
9 


 


 
§ 3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS 
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by: 


.1 facilitating the distribution of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors and requesting 
their return upon completion of the negotiation process; 


.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; 


.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective contractors and providing clarifications and interpretations 
of the Proposal Documents to the prospective contractors in the form of addenda; and, 


.4 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary report of 
the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 


 
§ 3.5.3.3 If the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect shall, as an 
Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective contractors. 
 
§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.6.1 GENERAL 
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set forth 
below and in AIA Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction as modified by RDG IA 
Inc in the form attached as Exhibit B. If the Owner and Contractor modify AIA Document A201–2017, those modifications 
shall not affect the Architect’s services under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement. 
 
§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The Architect 
shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The Architect shall not 
have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or 
for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the Architect be responsible for the 
Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect 
shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not have control over or charge of, and shall 
not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other persons or entities performing portions of the 
Work. 
 
§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.2 and except as provided in Section 3.6.6.5, the Architect’s responsibility to provide 
Construction Phase Services commences with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date the 
Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. 
 
§ 3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK 
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site, as modified by Exhibit E, at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or 
as otherwise required in Section 4.2.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the 
Work completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not be 
required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections or to review webcam/videos/photographs to check the 
quality or quantity of the Work. On the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed 
about the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known 
deviations from the Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by 
the Contractor, and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or testing of the 
Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or 
completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to 
exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, 
suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract 
Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests shall be made 
in writing within any time limits agreed upon by the Architect and the Owner or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
10 


 


§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from, 
the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and 
decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not show 
partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The Architect’s 
decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the Contract 
Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that term is 
defined in AIA Document A201–2017, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the Owner and 
Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such amounts. 
The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the Architect’s evaluation 
of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s Application for Payment, that, to the 
best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. 
The foregoing representations are subject to (1) an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents 
upon Substantial Completion, (2) results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) correction of minor deviations from the 
Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 
 
§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive 
or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and suppliers and 
other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what 
purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum. 
 
§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 
 
§ 3.6.4 SUBMITTALS 
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold 
approval of the schedule. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved 
submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing 
sufficient time, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to permit adequate review. 
 
§ 3.6.4.2 The Architect shall review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such as 
Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of 
determining the accuracy and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or 
performance of equipment or systems, which are the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect’s review shall not constitute 
approval of safety precautions or construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s 
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 
 
§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review and take appropriate 
action on Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the Contractor’s design 
professional, provided the submittals bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The 
Architect’s review shall be for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design 
concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not be responsible for, 
the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design 
professionals. 
 
§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to Section 4.2, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract 
Documents. The Architect shall set forth, in the Contract Documents, the requirements for requests for information. 
Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the specific Drawings or 
Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The Architect’s response to such 
requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon by the Architect and the Owner, or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in 
response to the requests for information. 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
11 


 


 
§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents 
and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to Section 4.2, the 
Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the Owner’s approval and execution in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION 
§ 3.6.6.1The Architect shall: 


.1 conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final completion; 


.2 issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; 


.3 forward to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required 
by the Contract Documents and received from the Contractor; and, 


.4 issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection indicating that, to the best of the 
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents. 


 
§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected. 
 
§ 3.6.6.3 When Substantial Completion has been achieved, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the balance of the 
Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the Contract Sum, if any, for 
final completion or correction of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1) consent of 
surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) affidavits, 
receipts, releases and waivers of liens, or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other documentation 
required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion, the 
Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility operations and 
performance. 
 
ARTICLE 4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1 SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The Architect shall 
provide the listed Supplemental Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the Architect’s responsibility, 
and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. Unless otherwise specifically addressed in this 
Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the Architect is designated, the parties agree that the listed Supplemental Service is 
not being provided for the Project. 
(Designate the Architect’s Supplemental Services and the Owner’s Supplemental Services required for the Project by 
indicating whether the Architect or Owner shall be responsible for providing the identified Supplemental Service. Insert a 
description of the Supplemental Services in Section 4.1.2 below or attach the description of services as an exhibit to this 
Agreement.) 
 


Supplemental Services Responsibility 
(Architect, Owner, or not provided) 


§ 4.1.1.1 Programming Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs Preliminary design is completed. 
§ 4.1.1.3 Measured drawings Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.4 Existing facilities surveys Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.5 Site evaluation and planning Owner 
§ 4.1.1.6 Building Information Model management responsibilities Architect 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
12 


 


§ 4.1.1.7 Development of Building Information Models for post 
construction use 


Not Provided – Additional Services 


§ 4.1.1.8 Civil engineering Provided per proposal letter. 
§ 4.1.1.9 Landscape design Seeding and Plantings included. 
§ 4.1.1.10 Architectural interior design Architect 
§ 4.1.1.11 Value analysis Architect 
§ 4.1.1.12 Detailed cost estimating beyond that required in Section 6.3 Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.13 On-site project representation Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.14 Conformed documents for construction Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.15 As-designed record drawings Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.16 As-constructed record drawings Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.17 Post-occupancy evaluation Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.18 Facility support services Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.19 Tenant-related services Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.20 Architect’s coordination of the Owner’s consultants Architect 
§ 4.1.1.21 Telecommunications/data design Architect 
§ 4.1.1.22 Security evaluation and planning Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.23 Commissioning Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.24 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section     4.1.3 Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.25 Fast-track design services Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.26 Multiple bid packages Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.27 Historic preservation Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.28 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.29 Other services provided by specialty Consultants Not Provided – Additional Services 
§ 4.1.1.30 Other Supplemental Services Not Provided – Additional Services 
  


 
§ 4.1.2 DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Architect’s responsibility is 
provided below. 
(Describe in detail the Architect’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, identify the 
exhibit. The AIA publishes a number of Standard Form of Architect’s Services documents that can be included as an 
exhibit to describe the Architect’s Supplemental Services.) 
 
 
§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Owner’s responsibility is provided 
below. 
(Describe in detail the Owner’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, identify the 
exhibit.) 
 
N/A 
 
§ 4.1.3 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Architect shall provide, as a Supplemental Service, 
the Sustainability Services required in AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached to this 
Agreement. The Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. 
 
§ 4.2 ARCHITECT’S ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
The Architect may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement without invalidating the Agreement. 
Except for services required due to the fault any negligent act, error, or omission of the Architect, any Additional Services 
provided in accordance with this Section 4.2 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an 
appropriate adjustment in the Architect’s schedule. 
 
§ 4.2.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner with 
reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not proceed to 
provide the following Additional Services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written authorization: 


.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given by the 
Owner, or a material change in the Project including size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s schedule or 
budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method; 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
13 


 


.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, or regulations, including changing or 
editing previously prepared Instruments of Service; 


.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by official interpretations of 
applicable codes, laws or regulations that are either (a) contrary to specific interpretations by the applicable 
authorities having jurisdiction made prior to the issuance of the building permit, or (b) contrary to 
requirements of the Instruments of Service when those Instruments of Service were prepared in accordance 
with the applicable standard of care; 


.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of 
performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors; 


.5 Preparing digital models or other design documentation for transmission to the Owner’s consultants and 
contractors, or to other Owner-authorized recipients; 


.6 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner; 


.7 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; 


.8 Preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the 
Architect is party thereto; 


.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of entities providing bids or proposals; 


.10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction; or 


.11 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect. 
 
§ 4.2.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services, notify the 
Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If, upon receipt of the 
Architect’s notice, the Owner determines that all or parts of the services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt 
written notice to the Architect of the Owner’s determination. The Owner shall compensate the Architect for the services 
provided prior to the Architect’s receipt of the Owner’s notice. 


.1 Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule approved by the Architect; 


.2 Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the Contract 
Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study and comparison of 
the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, Contractor-prepared 
coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation; 


.3 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s 
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service; 


.4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker; or, 


.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to 
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom. 


 
§ 4.2.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional 
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner: 


.1 Two (2) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittals of the Contractor 


.2 Twenty-Eight (28) visits to the site by the Architect during construction 


.3 One (1) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is 
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 


.4 One (1) inspection inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion. 
 
The Architect shall be compensated for these Additional Services beyond the limits stated above, which will be billed by 
the Architect in accordance with Section 11.3. 
 
§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.6.6.5 and those services that do not exceed the limits set forth in 
Section 4.2.3, Construction Phase Services provided more than 60 days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the 
Work or (2) the initial date of Substantial Completion identified in the agreement between the Owner and Contractor, 
whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Services to the extent the Architect incurs additional cost in 
providing those Construction Phase Services. 
 
§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed twenty-eight (28) months of the date of this 
Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time shall be compensated 
as Additional Services. 
 
ARTICLE 5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shall set forth the Owner’s 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
14 


 


objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships; flexibility; expandability; 
special equipment; systems; and site requirements. 
 
§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work as 
defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. The 
Owner shall update the Owner’s budget for the Project as necessary throughout the duration of the Project until final 
completion. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall 
notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope 
and quality. 
 
§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project. The 
Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid unreasonable 
delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services. 
 
§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site 
of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable, 
grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent 
drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the 
site; locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and 
information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade, including 
inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark and conform to the 
drawing requirements listed below. 
 
§ 5.4.1 Site Survey Digital (DWG and PDF) Drawing Requirements: 


.1 All drawings shall be provided in digital DWG format of AutoCAD 2010 version and a PDF reproducible 
format; 


.2 All similar elements with the DWG drawing shall reside on an independent layer with an appropriate 
descriptive layer naming system with the layer name prefaced with a ‘G-_____’, i.e. layer name ‘G-
PAVEMENT-ROAD’; 


.3 Layers, objects, blocks, nested blocks, text attributes, and all other elements shall be classified as ‘by layer’ 
color and ‘by layer’ line type.  No elements of the DWG drawing shall be classified as ‘by object’; 


.4 All contours shall be unbroken/continuous “smart” polylines containing appropriate elevation/z-axis 
information with text labels along each contour every 200’ and/or at every property boundary.  All 5-foot 
contours shall reside on a single independent layer and all other 1-foot contours on a single independent layer; 
and 


.5 The digital file must be a single dwg file and not rely on shx, shp, or similar files to create a reproducible 
PDF. 


 
§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include test borings, test pits, determinations 
of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and 
resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate 
recommendations. 
 
§ 5.6 The Owner shall provide the Supplemental Services designated as the Owner’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1. 
 
§ 5.7 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as required in 
AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached to this Agreement. 
 
§ 5.8 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. Upon 
the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the Owner and the 
Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated as the responsibility 
of the Architect in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect 
requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall 
require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including professional liability insurance, as appropriate to 
the services or work provided. 
 
§ 5.9 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as structural, 
mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials, and commissioning of 
mechanical, electrical, or building envelope as required by code. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
15 


 


§ 5.10 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests. 
 
§ 5.11 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or defect in 
the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service. 
 
§ 5.12 The Owner shall include the Architect in all communications with the Contractor that relate to or affect the 
Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any 
direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by and 
with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. 
 
§ 5.13 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and 
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement. The 
Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor, including the 
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 
 
§ 5.14 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall 
obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. 
 
§ 5.15 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested 
information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce lien rights. 
 
ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK 
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all elements of 
the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs, overhead and 
profit. The Cost of the Work also includes the reasonable value of labor, materials, and equipment, donated to, or otherwise 
furnished by, the Owner. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect; the costs of the land, 
rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies for changes in the Work; or other costs that are the responsibility of the Owner. 
 
§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and shall be adjusted throughout the 
Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, and the 
preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work, prepared by the Architect, 
represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither the Architect nor the 
Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of determining bid prices; or 
competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot and does not warrant or 
represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, or from any 
estimate of the Cost of the Work, or evaluation, prepared or agreed to by the Architect. If the Owner wishes greater 
assurance as to the probable Cost of the Work, the Owner shall engage an independent cost estimating consultant 
acceptable to the Architect, at the Owner’s cost. 
 
§ 6.2.1 In the event the Owner engages an independent cost estimating consultant in an effort to produce a project within 
the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, cost estimates by the independent cost estimating consultant shall be 
performed at the conclusion of Design Development Documents, 50% complete Construction Documents. 
 
§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for design, 
bidding, and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are to 
be included in the Contract Documents; to recommend reasonable adjustments in the program and scope of the Project; and 
to include design alternates as may be necessary to adjust the estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s budget. The 
Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual estimating 
techniques. If the Owner requires requests and the Architect agrees to provide a detailed estimate of the Cost of the Work, 
the Architect shall provide such an estimate, if identified as the Architect’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1, as a 
Supplemental Service. 
 
§ 6.4 If, through no fault of the Architect, the Procurement Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect 
submits the Construction Documents to the Owner, the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work shall be adjusted to reflect 
changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market. 
 
§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, 
the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality, or budget for the 
Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments. 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
16 


 


 
§ 6.6 If the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services is 
exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall 


.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work; 


.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time; 


.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5; 


.4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce the Cost 
of the Work; or, 


.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. 
 
§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, as Additional Services, shall modify the 
Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the 
Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. If the Owner requires the Architect 
to modify the Construction Documents because the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal exceeds the Owner’s 
budget for the Cost of the Work due to market conditions the Architect could not reasonably anticipate, the Owner shall 
compensate the Architect for the modifications as an Additional Service pursuant to Section 11.3; otherwise the Architect’s 
services for modifying the Construction Documents shall be without additional compensation. In any event, the Architect’s 
modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect’s responsibility under this Article 6. 
 
ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the 
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit such 
information for its use on the Project. 
 
§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective Instruments 
of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, 
including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official regulatory requirements or for 
similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the reserved rights of 
the Architect and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
§ 7.3 The Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service solely and 
exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner 
substantially performs its obligations under this Agreement, including prompt payment of all sums due pursuant to Article 
9 and Article 11. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the Architect’s consultants consistent with 
this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-
subcontractors, and suppliers, as well as the Owner’s consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions 
of the Instruments of Service, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Section 1.3, solely and exclusively for use in 
performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as 
provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate. 
 
§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of Service, 
the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising from such uses. 
The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and its consultants 
from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third 
person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of the Instruments of Service under this 
Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause 
under Section 9.4. 
 
§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied under 
this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license granted herein 
to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the Instruments of Service 
shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
§ 7.5 Except as otherwise stated in Section 7.3, the provisions of this Article 7 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 8.1 GENERAL 
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or 
related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements of the binding 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
17 


 


dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, but in any case not 
more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. All claims and causes of action between the 
Owner and the Architect arising out of or related to this Agreement or the Work, whether based in contract, tort, warrant or 
otherwise, shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall commence to run no later than 
either the date of Substantial Completion for acts or failures to act occurring prior to Substantial Competition or the date of 
insurance of final Certificate of Payment for acts or failures to act occurring after Substantial Completion.  In no event 
shall such statutes of limitations commence to run any later than the date when the Architect’s services are substantially 
completed, and also in no event shall any claim or cause of action be brought more than 10 years after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in 
accordance with this Section 8.1.1. 
 
§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against each 
other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, except such rights as they 
may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A201–2017, General Conditions of the Contract 
for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the contractors, consultants, agents, and 
employees of any of them, similar the same scope of waivers in favor of the other parties enumerated herein. 
 
§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in question, arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due 
to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7. 
 
§ 8.2 MEDIATION 
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien arising 
out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice 
or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution. 
 
§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between them by 
mediation, which, unless if the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration 
Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of this Agreement. A 
request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed with the person or 
entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other 
appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding 
dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, 
unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant 
to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later 
proceedings. 
 
§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place where 
the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be 
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding dispute 
resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box.) 
 


[  ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement 
 
[X] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 
 
[  ] Other: (Specify) 


 
If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in writing to 
a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
§ 8.2.5 The Architect or Owner, as appropriate, shall include a similar mediation provision in all its agreements with 
contractors and consultants retained for the Project and shall require all contractors and consultants to also include a similar 
mediation provision in all agreements with their subcontractors and sub-consultants so retained for the Project, thereby 
providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
18 


 


§ 8.3 ARBITRATION 
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any claim, 
dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, mediation 
shall be subject to arbitration, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of this 
Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed 
with the person or entity administering the arbitration. 
 
§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, but 
in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute 
or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, 
receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other matter in question. 
 
§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with 
applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER 
§ 8.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other 
arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits 
consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact; and (3) the 
arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 
 
§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common 
question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party 
sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall 
not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent. 
 
§ 8.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this Section 
8.3, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and Architect under this 
Agreement. 
 
§ 8.4 The provisions of this Article 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension of 
performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give seven 
days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the Architect shall 
have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of services. Before 
resuming services, the Owner shall pay the Architect all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time 
schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 
 
§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such 
suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the interruption and 
resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be 
equitably adjusted. 
 
§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the Architect, 
the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice.  
 
§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party fail 
substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the 
termination. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
19 


 


§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the 
Owner’s convenience and without cause. 
 
§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect for services performed prior to termination, 
Reimbursable Expenses incurred, and costs attributable to termination, including the costs attributable to the Architect’s 
termination of consultant agreements. 
 
§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience 
pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay to the 
Architect the following fees: 
(Set forth below the amount of any termination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or licensing 
fee.) 
 


.1 Termination Fee: 
 


Termination fee shall be Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).  
 
.2 Licensing Fee if the Owner intends to continue using the Architect’s Instruments of Service: 
 


Licensing fee shall be Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).  
 


§ 9.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of Substantial 
Completion. 
 
§ 9.9 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this Agreement are 
set forth in Article 7 and Section 9.7. 
 
§ 9.10 The Owner and Architect’s rights set forth in this Article 9 are in addition to and without prejudice to their other 
rights and remedies provided by law. 
 
§ 9.11 The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either the Owner or the Architect of any obligation previously 
accrued. The following provisions of this Agreement, and any other provisions that by their terms so provide, shall 
specifically survive any such termination: Section 3.1.10, Article 7, Article 8, Article 10, and Article 12. 
 
ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s 
choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal 
Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3. 
 
§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201–2017, General Conditions 
of the Contract for Construction in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B. 
 
§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal representatives 
to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the written consent of the 
other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for the Project if the lender agrees 
to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, including any payments due to the Architect by the 
Owner prior to the assignment. 
 
§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests the 
Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute all such 
consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the Architect for review at 
least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or consents that would require 
knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement. 
 
§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, a 
third party against either the Owner or Architect. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
20 


 


§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, presence, 
handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any form at the 
Project site. 
 
§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the Project 
among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable access to the 
completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include the Owner’s 
confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific 
information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide professional credit for the 
Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project. This Section 10.7 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 9.4. 
 
§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated as “confidential” or “business proprietary,” 
the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person except as 
set forth in Section 10.8.1. This Section 10.8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
§ 10.8.1 The receiving party may disclose “confidential” or “business proprietary” information after 7 days’ notice to the 
other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory 
legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably necessary for the 
receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose such information to its employees, 
consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively for the Project, provided those 
employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure and use of such information as set 
forth in this Section 10.8. 
 
§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining provisions. If it 
is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that 
provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and enforceable. In such case the Agreement 
shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing 
the Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION 
§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
 


.1 Stipulated Sum 
(Insert amount) 
 
Compensation shall be a stipulated sum of Four Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Four Hundred Five dollars and 
No cents ($456,405) as follows, plus reimbursable expenses. 
 
 Design and Bid Phase Fee  $342,405 
 Construction Phase Fee  $114,000 
 


.2 Percentage Basis 
(Insert percentage value) 
 
   (  ) % of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as calculated in accordance with Section 11.6. 
 


.3 Other 
(Describe the method of compensation) 
 
   
 


§ 11.2 For the Architect’s Supplemental Services designated in Section 4.1.1 and for any Sustainability Services required 
pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 
compensation apply.) 
 
Compensation shall be hourly based on the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule current at the time services are provided. A 
copy of the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
21 


 


§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 
 
Compensation shall be hourly based on the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule current at the time services are provided. A 
copy of the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 
11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus ten percent (10%), or as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for computing, Architect’s consultants’ compensation for Supplemental or Additional Services.) 
 
§ 11.5 When compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or a percentage basis, the proportion of 
compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: 
 
§ 11.6 When compensation identified in Section 11.1 is on a percentage basis, progress payments for each phase of Basic 
Services shall be calculated by multiplying the percentages identified in this Article by the Owner’s most recent budget for 
the Cost of the Work. Compensation paid in previous progress payments shall not be adjusted based on subsequent updates 
to the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 11.6.1 When compensation is on a percentage basis and any portions of the Project are deleted or otherwise not 
constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent services are performed on those 
portions. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services performed 
whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced. 
 
§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants are set forth below. The rates 
shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review practices. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 
 
Standard Hourly Rate Schedule incorporated herein as Exhibit C. 
 


Employee or Category Rate ($0.00) 
 
§ 11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental, and Additional Services and 
include expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows: 


.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence; 


.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web sites, and 
extranets; 


.3 Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 


.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents; 


.5 Postage, handling, and delivery; 


.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner 


.7 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by 
the Owner or required for the Project; 


.8 If required by the Owner, and with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Architect’s consultants’ expenses 
of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the expense of additional insurance 
coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the Architect’s consultants; 


.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; 


.10 Site office expenses; 


.11 Registration fees and any other fees charged by the Certifying Authority or by other entities as necessary to 
achieve the Sustainable Objective; and, 


.12 Other similar Project-related expenditures. 
 
§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants plus ten percent (10%) of the expenses incurred. 
 
§ 11.9 ARCHITECT’S INSURANCE. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.5 are in addition to the 
types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Architect for the additional costs incurred by the 
Architect for the additional coverages as set forth below: 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
22 


 


(Insert the additional coverages the Architect is required to obtain in order to satisfy the requirements set forth in Section 
2.5, and for which the Owner shall reimburse the Architect.) 
 
N/A 
 
§ 11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT 
§ 11.10.1 INITIAL PAYMENTS 
§ 11.10.1.1 An initial payment of zero dollars and no cents ($0.00) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is 
the minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice. 
 
§ 11.10.1.2 If a Sustainability Certification is part of the Sustainable Objective, an initial payment to the Architect of ??? 
($???) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement for registration fees and other fees payable to the Certifying 
Authority and necessary to achieve the Sustainability Certification. The Architect’s payments to the Certifying Authority 
shall be credited to the Owner’s account at the time the expense is incurred. 
 
§ 11.10.2 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 11.10.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid sixty (60) days after the 
invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to 
time at the principal place of business of the Architect. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 
 
One percent (1%) per month. 
 
§ 11.10.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or liquidated 
damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in the Work, unless 
the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution proceeding. 
 
§ 11.10.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and services 
performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times. 
 
ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows: 
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.) 
 
§ 12.1 The Owner acknowledges that the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Fair Housing Act 
(FHA) and other federal, state and local accessibility laws, rules, codes, ordinances and regulations will be subject to 
various and possibly contradictory interpretations. The Architect, therefore, will use its reasonable professional efforts and 
judgment consistent with the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by architects currently practicing under similar 
circumstances to interpret applicable accessibility requirements in effect as of the date of the execution of this Agreement, 
and as they apply to the Project. The Architect, however, cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that the Owner’s 
Project will comply with all interpretations of the accessibility requirements and/or the requirements of other federal, state 
and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances and regulations as they apply to the Project. The Owner shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Architect, the Architect’s consultant and agents, and employees of any of them, from and against any 
and all claims, damages, awards, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or 
resulting from noncompliance with ADA or FHA. 
 
§ 12.2 To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Owner agrees to limit the Architect’s liability for claims brought by 
or through the Owner to the sum of $50,000.00 or the Architect’s fee, whichever is greater. This limitation shall apply 
regardless of the cause of action or legal theory pled or asserted. 
 
§ 12.3 The Owner and Architect mutually acknowledge that if a Project goal is to achieve certification under the U.S. 
Green Building Council's (USGBC) Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED®) green building-rating 
system, that the Project cannot achieve LEED® certification until after substantial completion of construction and will be 
subject to the LEED®-certification processes and procedures as determined by the USGBC. The Owner acknowledges that 
these procedures are outside the control of the Architect, may not be uniformly implemented, and may be subject to change 
at any time. Further, the Owner acknowledges that LEED® certification will require input and effort from the Owner and 
the Architect as well as other consultants, contractors, and other persons associated with the Project that are not parties to 
this Agreement. 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
23 


 


The Architect will make reasonable efforts to facilitate and coordinate the LEED® certification for the Project, subject to 
scope of services, and the terms and provisions of this Agreement. The Architect does not warrant or guarantee LEED® 
certification or the actual performance of the building based on the Architect’s design drawings, specifications, or resource 
use or consumption modeling for the Project, and does not warrant or guarantee certain performance levels anticipated 
through the LEED®-certification process. 
 
§ 12.4 If this Agreement is terminated, other than pursuant to Section 9.4, the license granted in Section 7.3 shall terminate 
and the Owner’s obligations set forth in Section 7.3.1 and Section 9.7.2 shall govern. 
 
§ 12.5 26 United States Code Section 179D directs that there shall be allowed as a tax deduction an amount equal to the 
cost of energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying energy efficient commercial building 
property) placed in service during the taxable year. In the case of energy efficient commercial building property (or 
partially qualifying energy efficient commercial building property) installed on or in property owned by a Federal, State, or 
local government, or a political subdivision thereof, the Owner shall allocate this 26 United States Code Section 179D tax 
deduction to the Architect. 
 
ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and supersedes 
all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, including but not limited to, the terms of any 
purchase order, invoice, bid document, or proposal attached to the Agreement. This Agreement may be amended only by 
written instrument signed by both the Owner and Architect. 
 
§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below: 


.1 AIA Document B101™–2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect as modified by 
RDG IA Inc and Owner 


 
.2 AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as indicated 


below: 
(Insert the date of the E203-2013 incorporated into this agreement.) 


 
i. AIA Document E203 dated the Seventeenth of February in the year Two Thousand Twenty-One as 


modified by RDG IA Inc and Owner attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit 
D to this AIA B101 


 
.3 Exhibits: 


(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement.) 
 
[  ] AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below: 
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this agreement.) 


 
[X] Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement: 
(Clearly identify any other exhibits incorporated into this Agreement, including any exhibits and scopes of 
services identified as exhibits in Section 4.1.2.) 
 
i. Scope of Services attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit A to this AIA 


B101 
ii. A201™-2017, General Conditions of Contract for Construction, as modified by RDG and Owner 


attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit B to this AIA B101 
iii. Standard Hourly Rate Schedule attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit C to 


this AIA B101 
iv. Modified Site-Visit Protocol attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit E to this 


AIA B101 
 


.4 Other documents: 
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 


 
NA 


 
 
 







AIA Document B101™-2017. Copyright 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


24 


This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 


OWNER ARCHITECT 


(Signature) (Signature) 
Dr. Eric Jensen 
Mayor 


R. Allan Oberlander, AIA, LEED AP
Principal 


(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title) 







RDG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue  Tel  515.288.3141 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-1718  Fax 515.288.8631    www.rdgusa.com           RDG IA Inc 


February 19, 2021, revised March 1, 2021 


Dr. Eric Jensen 
Mayor 
City of Carroll 
627 N. Adams Street 
Carroll, Iowa    51401 


Carroll Recreation Center, Building Improvements Project 2021 


Dr. Jensen: 


Proposal 
We are pleased to submit the attached fee, scope, and schedule summary for the Community Recreation Center expansion 
and remodeling project.  


General Assumptions 
The scope of work will involve design and documentation of a new gymnasium, new elevated track, and remodeling of 
existing locker rooms and office area.  The design and documentation will follow the concept prepared by RDG in 2019.  This 
includes approximately 20,000 sf of gym, track, and new corridor plus approximately 6,000 sf of remodeling to locker rooms, 
game area, offices, and wet classroom.  In addition, the scope includes replacing existing air handling units (AHU) numbers 1, 
2, 4, and 5. 


See plan below for gym and locker room concept that is the basis of this proposal. Areas outlined with blue dashed lines are 
included in the RDG scope.   


First Floor 


EXHIBIT A







Carroll Community Center Addition and Remodeling 
Page 2 


 
 


 


 
Second Floor 
 
Basic Services          


• Phases included: 
o Schematic design 
o Design development 
o Construction documents 
o Bidding/negotiation 
o Construction administration  


• Disciplines included and team members: 
o Architectural 


 RDG Planning & Design, Des Moines 
• Al Oberlander, AIA, LEED - Principal 
• Brad Rodenburg, AIA – Project Manager and Project Architect 


o Structural Engineering 
 KPFF, Des Moines 


• Brad Stork, PE – Principal 
• Andrew Faust, PE – Project Manager 


o Mechanical, Plumbing, Fire Protection, and Electrical Engineering 
 KCL, West Des Moines 


• Chad Bass, PE – Mechanical Engineer 
• Nick Johnson, PE – Electrical Engineer 


o Lighting Design 
 RDG Planning & Design, Des Moines 


• David Raver, IALD, MIES, MFA – Lighting Designer 
o Civil Engineering 


 JEO Consulting Group Inc, Carroll 
• Noah Dryden, PE – Civil Engineer 


o Cost Estimating 
 Stecker Harmsen, Ames 


• Lee Harmsen 
 
 
 







Carroll Community Center Addition and Remodeling 
Page 3 


 
 


 


Program / List of Spaces: 
• Men’s locker room 
• Women’s locker room 
• Four family changing rooms 
• Commons area 
• Lifeguard office 
• Wet classroom 
• Gymnasium 
• Elevated jogging track 
• Office area remodel (this would be a possible bid alternate) 
• Control desk relocation 
• Activity room remodel 
• Consider possible addition of a small group exercise room for 15 – 20 participants. 
• Replacement of existing air handling units numbers 1, 2, 4, and 5 


 
 


Included in Scope of Services: 
• Documents will be prepared to issue as one bid package. 
• Addition and remodeling as described above. 
• Site work east of the new gym and north of the new and existing gyms. 
• Time has been included for tours of two similar facilities. 
• The project will be completed using REVIT Building Information Modeling (BIM) software. 
• The project will be delivered using competitive public bidding.   
• Structural: 


o Addition of Gym, Corridor, Jogging Track, and Storage 
o Support of jogging track from existing gym roof structure 
o Lintels and other supports required in remodeled spaces  


• Lighting: 
o Require Contractor to protect or save and install two existing pole lights on the east side of the building.  
o Building lighting layouts, schedules, and lighting controls documentation. 
o COMCheck or similar energy code verification for lighting 
o City site lighting submittals with photometrics (if required) 
o Fixture aiming and lighting controls commissioning 


• Site Civil 
o Review existing maps and drawings of ROW, sanitary, storm, etc available from city. 
o Sidewalk ADA improvements at east side of building. 
o Erosion control BMP’s 
o Storm and sanitary relocates 
o Water relocate if needed 
o Coordination of private utility relocation (gas, electric, fiber, cable) 
o Evaluate impacts of increased stormwater resulting from the facility expansion and the available capacity 


within the existing stormwater conveyance system. 
• MEP 


o Participate in utility company rebate program. 
o Modifications to existing fire alarm system as required. 
o HVAC, plumbing, temperature controls for new and remodeled spaces. 
o Power distribution and lighting. 


• Cost Estimate: 
o Cost estimates will be prepared at the following milestones: 


 Schematic Design 
 Design Development 
 75% Construction Documents 


 







Carroll Community Center Addition and Remodeling 
Page 4 


 
 


 


• Technology design services 
o Fire alarm system 
o Voice/data cabling system 
o Extension of existing access control (if exist) and CCTV systems 
o Audio-visual systems including monitors/projectors in meeting rooms. 


• Construction phase 
o We have included the following trips to the construction site for construction meetings, to observe the 


work, create punch list, and review to make sure the punch list work is completed: 
 Architecture 30 
 Lighting      1 
 Structural   4 
 MEP  14 
 Civil    4 


o If construction takes more than 14 months we would request fees for additional trips to the site. 
• Project close out phase 


o Review contractor closeout submittals  
 Contractor as-built documents 
 Operations and maintenance manuals 


• Replacement of 4 existing air handling units 
o Sizing of new units. 
o Evaluate locations for units (in mechanical room, on new roof, or on existing roof) 


 Includes structural improvements to support the new units. 
• Preparation of bid alternates that can be summarized without additional engineering 


 
Proposal Exclusions: 


• Preparation of record drawings based on contractor as-builts 
• Destructive analysis to determine existing conditions 
• Operational analysis/budgeting or revenue projections 
• Site topographic survey 
• Soil/geo technical testing 
• Hazardous materials testing, assessment, or mitigation. 
• LEED certification services 
• Multiple bid packages 
• Revisions to previously approved drawings and documents at end of Schematic Design and Design Development 


phases.  
• Energy modeling or life cycle cost analysis 
• Commissioning services or assisting contractor with system startup or adjustment. 
• Arc flash hazard analysis or lightning protection analysis or design. 
• Permit or review fees 
• Evaluation of existing sanitary sewer capacity. 
• Preparation of easement documents. 
• Preparation of a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) 
• Improvements to existing parking lot. 
• Program changes after approved conceptual design, list of spaces included above. 
• Design and documentation of improvements to existing corridors (except for control desk relocation) 
• Design and documentation of improvements to other areas not outlined in blue above. 
• Design and documentation to replace existing site lighting except as noted above. 
• Studies of alternative structural systems. 
• Site work not included above. 
• Working with a construction manager. 
• Printing of bid documents 
• Design or documentation of third-party utility relocations (gas, cable, fiber, electric).  If needed, JEO Consulting has 


indicated they would work directly with the city on these utilities. 







Carroll Community Center Addition and Remodeling 
Page 5 


 
 


 


 
 


Preliminary Schedule: 
• Schematic Design     March 15, 2021 – May 14, 2021 


o Meeting 1 – March 16, 2021 (Zoom Meeting) 
 Review schedule 
 Validate program 
 Review comments on original concept 
 Finalize facilities to tour 


o Tour similar facilities to review gyms, tracks, and locker rooms.  March 30, 2021 
 DMACC Trail Pointe in Ankeny 
 ISU State Gym Addition and Remodeling 


o Meeting 2 – April 20, 2021 
 Review updated design concept (plan, site, and exterior) 
 April 28, 2021 turn over SD drawings to cost estimator 


o Meeting 3 – May 14, 2021 
 Review Schematic Design cost estimate 
 Discuss possible alternates 
 Review final Schematic Design drawings 


• Design Development    May 17, 2021 – July 30, 2021 
o Meeting 1 – June 8, 2021 


 Review plan updates 
 Review exterior refinements 


o Meeting 2 – July 13, 2021 
 Review plan updates 
 Review exterior updates and materials 
 Review lighting concept 
 Review mechanical concept 
 Review civil engineering concept 


o July 19, 2021 - turn over DD drawings to cost estimator 
o July 30, 2021 - Zoom meeting to review cost estimate 


• Construction Documents    August 2, 2021 – December 1, 2021 
o Meeting 1 – August 26, 2021 


 Review drawing progress 
 Review materials and finishes 


o Meeting 2 – October 4, 2021 
 Review drawing progress 


o October 29, 2021 
 Turn over 75% CD drawings to cost estimator 
 Turn over 75% CD drawings for owner review 


o Meeting 3 – November 15, 2021 
 Review drawing progress 
 Review cost estimate 


• Bidding/Negotiation    December 1, 2021 – January 12, 2022 
o Pre-bid meeting – December 21, 2021 
o Bid opening – January 12, 2022 


• City Council Approves Bids & Awards Contract  January 24, 2022 
o City Council meeting 


 RDG attends to answer any questions. 
• Construction Administration    February 2022 – April 2023 


o Two construction meetings held on site per month 
o Punch list 


 
 







Carroll Community Center Addition and Remodeling 
Page 6 


 
 


 


 
Optional Services 


• Environmental graphics 
• Signage 
• FF&E (Moveable furniture and equipment) selections and bidding 
• Building systems commissioning  
• Documentation for LEED certification 


 
 
Fee Proposal 


• Based on our current understanding of the project, we propose a lump sum fee of $456,405 plus reimbursable 
expenses. 


 
• In addition to the above, the fee for replacement of existing AHU’s is a lump sum fee of $19,900. 


 
• To add a sound system to the gyms and lockers rooms.  A lump sum fee of $5,000. 


 
• To add fire protection (sprinklers) to existing building if required by code.  A lump sum fee of $9,000. 


 
• To replace lighting in existing gym.  A lump sum fee of $2,500. 


 
 
Plus Expenses 


• We will invoice for expenses incurred in this work (such as printing, travel, shipping, and similar), as Reimbursable 
Expenses, on a cost plus 10% basis (expenses will not exceed $20,000). 


 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
R. Allan Oberlander, AIA, LEED AP    Brad Rodenburg, AIA, LEED AP BD+C, WELL AP 
Principal       Partner 
 
 
 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
1 


 


AIA  Document A201™– 2017 
 
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction 
 
For the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 
 
Carroll Recreation Center, Building Improvements Project 2021 
Carroll, Iowa 
 
THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
 
City of Carroll Parks and Recreation  
627 N Adams Street 
Carroll, IA  51401 
 
THE ARCHITECT: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
 
RDG IA Inc R3003.272.01 
d/b/a RDG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, IA 50309-1718 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 


1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
2 OWNER 
 
3 CONTRACTOR 
 
4 ARCHITECT 
 
5 SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY 


SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
 
7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 
8 TIME 
 
 
 
 


 
9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
 
10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS  


AND PROPERTY 
 
11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
 
12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION  


OF WORK 
 
13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION  


OF THE CONTRACT 
 
15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
2 


 


INDEX 
(Topics and numbers in bold are Section headings.) 
 
 
Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Acceptance of Work 
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3 
Access to Work 
3.16, 6.2.1, 12.1 
Accident Prevention 
10 
Acts and Omissions 
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 10.2.8, 
13.3.2, 14.1, 15.1.2, 15.2 
Addenda 
1.1.1 
Additional Costs, Claims for 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Additional Inspections and Testing 
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Additional Time, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.6 
Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 4.2, 9.4, 9.5 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid 
1.1.1 
Aesthetic Effect 
4.2.13 
Allowances 
3.8 
Applications for Payment 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.5.4, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10 
Approvals 
2.1.1, 2.3.1, 2.5, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10.1, 
4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.4.1 
Arbitration 
8.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.4  
ARCHITECT 
4 
Architect, Definition of 
4.1.1 
Architect, Extent of Authority 
2.5, 3.12.7, 4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.4, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.4, 15.2.1 
Architect, Limitations of Authority and Responsibility 
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 9.4.2, 
9.5.4, 9.6.4, 15.1.4, 15.2 
Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses 
2.5, 12.2.1, 13.4.2, 13.4.3, 14.2.4 
Architect’s Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5 
Architect’s Approvals 
2.5, 3.1.3, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7 
Architect’s Authority to Reject Work 
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1 


Architect’s Copyright 
1.1.7, 1.5 
Architect’s Decisions 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.4.2, 15.2 
Architect’s Inspections 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Architect’s Instructions 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13.4.2 
Architect’s Interpretations 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Architect’s Project Representative 
4.2.10 
Architect’s Relationship with Contractor 
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 
4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 
9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 11.3, 12, 13.3.2, 13.4, 15.2 
Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3 
Architect’s Representations 
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Architect’s Site Visits 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Asbestos 
10.3.1 
Attorneys’ Fees 
3.18.1, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3 
Award of Separate Contracts 
6.1.1, 6.1.2 
Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for 
Portions of the Work 
5.2 
Basic Definitions 
1.1 
Bidding Requirements 
1.1.1 
Binding Dispute Resolution 
8.3.1, 9.7, 11.5, 13.1, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 
15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.3.3, 15.4.1 
Bonds, Lien 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Bonds, Performance, and Payment 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.5 
Building Information Models Use and Reliance 
1.8 
Building Permit 
3.7.1 
Capitalization 
1.3 
Certificate of Substantial Completion 
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5 
Certificates for Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 
9.10.1, 9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.4 
Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval 
13.4.4 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
3 


 


Certificates of Insurance 
9.10.2 
Change Orders 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.8.2.3, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 5.2.3, 
7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.7, 7.3.9, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 
9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.2, 11.5, 12.1.2 
Change Orders, Definition of 
7.2.1 
CHANGES IN THE WORK 
2.2.2, 3.11, 4.2.8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 11.5 
Claims, Definition of 
15.1.1 
Claims, Notice of 
1.6.2, 15.1.3 
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
3.2.4, 6.1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9.3.3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4 
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims 
15.4.1 
Claims for Additional Cost 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 7.3.9, 9.5.2, 10.2.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Claims for Additional Time 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 6.1.1, 8.3.2, 9.5.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.6 
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for 
3.7.4 
Claims for Damages 
3.2.4, 3.18, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3, 
11.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Claims Subject to Arbitration 
15.4.1 
Cleaning Up 
3.15, 6.3 
Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to 
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 11.1, 11.2, 15.1.5 
Commencement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 
Communications 
3.9.1, 4.2.4 
Completion, Conditions Relating to 
3.4.1, 3.11, 3.15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10, 
12.2, 14.1.2, 15.1.2 
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND 
9 
Completion, Substantial 
3.10.1, 4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 
12.2, 15.1.2 
Compliance with Laws 
2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 10.2.2, 13.1, 
13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14.1.1, 14.2.1.3, 15.2.8, 
15.4.2, 15.4.3 
Concealed or Unknown Conditions 
3.7.4, 4.2.8, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Conditions of the Contract 
1.1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4 
Consent, Written 
3.4.2, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 13.2, 
15.4.4.2 
 


Consolidation or Joinder 
15.4.4 
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE 
CONTRACTORS 
1.1.4, 6 
Construction Change Directive, Definition of 
7.3.1 
Construction Change Directives 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1.1, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.3, 
9.3.1.1 
Construction Schedules, Contractor’s 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts 
5.4, 14.2.2.2 
Continuing Contract Performance 
15.1.4 
Contract, Definition of 
1.1.2 
CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
OF THE 
5.4.1.1, 5.4.2, 11.5, 14 
Contract Administration 
3.1.3, 4, 9.4, 9.5 
Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating to 
3.7.1, 3.10, 5.2, 6.1 
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of 
1.5.2, 2.3.6, 5.3 
Contract Documents, Definition of 
1.1.1 
Contract Sum 
2.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.8, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 7.3, 7.4, 9.1, 
9.2, 9.4.2, 9.5.1.4, 9.6.7, 9.7, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.1.2, 12.3, 
14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Contract Sum, Definition of 
9.1 
Contract Time 
1.1.4, 2.2.1, 2.2.2, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 6.1.5, 
7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7.3.5, 7.3.6, 7, 7, 7.3.10, 7.4, 8.1.1, 8.2.1, 
8.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 12.1.2, 14.3.2, 
15.1.4.2, 15.1.6.1, 15.2.5 
Contract Time, Definition of 
8.1.1 
CONTRACTOR 
3 
Contractor, Definition of 
3.1, 6.1.2 
Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 4.2.3, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 
Contractor’s Employees 
2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3, 11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Contractor’s Liability Insurance 
11.1 
Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors and 
Owner’s Forces 
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3, 12.2.4 
 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
4 


 


Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, 4.2.4, 5, 9.6.2, 9.6.7, 
9.10.2, 11.2, 11.3, 11.4 
Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect 
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5.1, 3.7.4, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 
7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 
11.3, 12, 13.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1 
Contractor’s Representations 
3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.8.2 
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the 
Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8 
Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents 
3.2 
Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work 
2.2.2, 9.7 
Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.1 
Contractor’s Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Contractor’s Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Contractor’s Supervision and Construction Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.6, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4 
Coordination and Correlation 
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1 
Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications 
1.5, 2.3.6, 3.11 
Copyrights 
1.5, 3.17 
Correction of Work 
2.5, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, 12.2, 12.3, 
15.1.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1 
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2 
Cost, Definition of 
7.3.4 
Costs 
2.5, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.1, 6.2.3, 7.3.3.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6, 11.2, 12.1.2, 
12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.4, 14 
Cutting and Patching 
3.14, 6.2.5  
Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate 
Contractors 
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4 
Damage to the Work 
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4 
Damages, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.3.2, 11.3, 
14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Damages for Delay 
6.2.3, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.3.2, 14.3.2 
Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 


Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of 
8.1.3 
Day, Definition of 
8.1.4 
Decisions of the Architect 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 6.3, 7.3.4, 
7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 13.4.2, 
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2 
Decisions to Withhold Certification 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3 
Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance, 
Rejection and Correction of 
2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.3, 9.5.1, 9.5.3, 9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 
9.10.4, 12.2.1 
Definitions 
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 5.1, 
6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1, 15.1.1 
Delays and Extensions of Time 
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 
Digital Data Use and Transmission 
1.7 
Disputes 
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2 
Documents and Samples at the Site 
3.11 
Drawings, Definition of 
1.1.5 
Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of 
3.11 
Effective Date of Insurance 
8.2.2 
Emergencies 
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.5 
Employees, Contractor’s 
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 10.3.3, 
11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Equipment, Labor, or Materials 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Execution and Progress of the Work 
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.3.4, 2.3.6, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 
3.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.6, 8.2, 9.5.1, 
9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.1, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.4 
Extensions of Time 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 10.4, 
14.3, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 
Failure of Payment 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Faulty Work 
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work) 
Final Completion and Final Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s 
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
5 


 


Governing Law 
13.1 
Guarantees (See Warranty) 
Hazardous Materials and Substances 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers 
5.2.1 
Indemnification 
3.17, 3.18, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3, 11.3 
Information and Services Required of the Owner 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10.1, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.6.1, 
9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.1.1.4, 
14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Initial Decision 
15.2 
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of 
1.1.8 
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions 
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority 
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Injury or Damage to Person or Property 
10.2.8, 10.4 
Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 
9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Instructions to Bidders 
1.1.1 
Instructions to the Contractor 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.4.2 
Instruments of Service, Definition of 
1.1.7 
Insurance 
6.1.1, 7.3.4, 8.2.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.2.5, 11 
Insurance, Notice of Cancellation or Expiration 
11.1.4, 11.2.3 
Insurance, Contractor’s Liability 
11.1 
Insurance, Effective Date of 
8.2.2, 14.4.2 
Insurance, Owner’s Liability 
11.2 
Insurance, Property 
10.2.5, 11.2, 11.4, 11.5 
Insurance, Stored Materials 
9.3.2 
INSURANCE AND BONDS 
11 
Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy 
9.9.1 
Insured loss, Adjustment and Settlement of 
11.5 
Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12, 4.2.13 
Interest 
13.5 
Interpretation 
1.1.8, 1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 15.1.1 


Interpretations, Written 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Judgment on Final Award 
15.4.2 
Labor and Materials, Equipment 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1, 
10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Labor Disputes 
8.3.1 
Laws and Regulations 
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 
9.9.1, 10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4 
Liens 
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Limitations, Statutes of 
12.2.5, 15.1.2, 15.4.1.1 
Limitations of Liability 
3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 
6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 9.6.8, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3, 
12.2.5, 13.3.1 
Limitations of Time 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 
9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15, 15.1.2, 
15.1.3, 15.1.5 
Materials, Hazardous 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Materials, Labor, Equipment and 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1.2, 
10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and Procedures 
of Construction 
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2 
Mechanic’s Lien 
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Mediation 
8.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 15.4.1, 
15.4.1.1 
Minor Changes in the Work 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
13 
Modifications, Definition of 
1.1.1 
Modifications to the Contract 
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 2.5, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2 
Mutual Responsibility 
6.2 
Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of 
2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 12.2 
 
 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
6 


 


Notice 
1.6, 1.6.1, 1.6.2, 2.1.2, 2.2.2., 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.5, 3.2.4, 
3.3.1, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4, 8.2.2 
9.6.8, 9.7, 9.10.1, 10.2.8, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.1, 
13.4.2, 14.1, 14.2.2, 14.4.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6, 15.4.1 
Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Insurance 
11.1.4, 11.2.3 
Notice of Claims 
1.6.2, 2.1.2, 3.7.4, 9.6.8, 10.2.8, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6, 
15.2.8, 15.3.2, 15.4.1 
Notice of Testing and Inspections 
13.4.1, 13.4.2 
Observations, Contractor’s 
3.2, 3.7.4 
Occupancy 
2.3.1, 9.6.6, 9.8 
Orders, Written 
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.5, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 
14.3.1 
OWNER 
2 
Owner, Definition of 
2.1.1 
Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements 
2.2, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
Owner, Information and Services Required of the 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 
14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Owner’s Authority 
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.32.4, 2.5, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 
4.1.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 7.2.1, 
7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 
10.3.2, 11.4, 11.5, 12.2.2, 12.3, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 15.2.7 
Owner’s Insurance 
11.2 
Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2 
Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work 
2.5, 14.2.2 
Owner’s Right to Clean Up 
6.3 
Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to 
Award Separate Contracts 
6.1 
Owner’s Right to Stop the Work 
2.4 
Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work 
14.3 
Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.2, 14.4 
Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications and 
Other Instruments of Service 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12, 
5.3 
Partial Occupancy or Use 
9.6.6, 9.9 
 


Patching, Cutting and 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Patents 
3.17 
Payment, Applications for 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment, Certificates for 
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4 
Payment, Failure of 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Payment, Final 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment Bond, Performance Bond and 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2 
Payments, Progress 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4 
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
9 
Payments to Subcontractors 
5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2 
PCB 
10.3.1 
Performance Bond and Payment Bond 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2 
Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
2.3.1, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.4.4, 10.2.2 
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF 
10 
Polychlorinated Biphenyl 
10.3.1 
Product Data, Definition of 
3.12.2 
Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Progress and Completion 
4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Progress Payments 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4 
Project, Definition of 
1.1.4 
Project Representatives 
4.2.10 
Property Insurance 
10.2.5, 11.2 
Proposal Requirements 
1.1.1 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
10 
Regulations and Laws 
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4 
Rejection of Work 
4.2.6, 12.2.1 
Releases and Waivers of Liens 
9.3.1, 9.10.2 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
7 


 


Representations 
3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Representatives 
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.10, 13.2.1 
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10 
Retainage 
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions 
by Contractor 
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3 
Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and 
Architect 
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2 
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples by 
Contractor 
3.12 
Rights and Remedies 
1.1.2, 2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 6.3, 
7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.1, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 
13.3, 14, 15.4 
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
3.17 
Rules and Notices for Arbitration 
15.4.1 
Safety of Persons and Property 
10.2, 10.4 
Safety Precautions and Programs 
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4 
Samples, Definition of 
3.12.3 
Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Samples at the Site, Documents and 
3.11 
Schedule of Values 
9.2, 9.3.1 
Schedules, Construction 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 
Separate Contracts and Contractors 
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2 
Separate Contractors, Definition of 
6.1.1 
Shop Drawings, Definition of 
3.12.1 
Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Site, Use of 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Site Inspections 
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.9.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Site Visits, Architect’s 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Special Inspections and Testing 
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Specifications, Definition of 
1.1.6 
 


Specifications 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14 
Statute of Limitations 
15.1.2, 15.4.1.1 
Stopping the Work 
2.2.2, 2.4, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1 
Stored Materials 
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4 
Subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.1 
SUBCONTRACTORS 
5 
Subcontractors, Work by 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 
9.6.7 
Subcontractual Relations 
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1 
Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.4, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Submittal Schedule 
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7 
Subrogation, Waivers of 
6.1.1, 11.3 
Substances, Hazardous 
10.3 
Substantial Completion 
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
15.1.2 
Substantial Completion, Definition of 
9.8.1 
Substitution of Subcontractors 
5.2.3, 5.2.4 
Substitution of Architect 
2.3.3 
Substitutions of Materials 
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8 
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.2 
Subsurface Conditions 
3.7.4 
Successors and Assigns 
13.2 
Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Supervision and Construction Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.4, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4 
Suppliers 
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.4, 9.6, 
9.10.5, 14.2.1 
Surety 
5.4.1.2, 9.6.8, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 14.2.2, 15.2.7 
Surety, Consent of 
9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Surveys 
1.1.7, 2.3.4 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
8 


 


Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
14.3 
Suspension of the Work 
3.7.5, 5.4.2, 14.3 
Suspension or Termination of the Contract 
5.4.1.1, 14 
Taxes 
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.4.4 
Termination by the Contractor 
14.1, 15.1.7 
Termination by the Owner for Cause 
5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.7 
Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
14.4 
Termination of the Architect 
2.3.3 
Termination of the Contractor Employment 
14.2.2 
TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 
CONTRACT 
14 
Tests and Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 
9.10.1, 10.3.2, 12.2.1, 13.4 
TIME 
8 
Time, Delays and Extensions of 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 
Time Limits 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 5.2, 
5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 9.5, 
9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 
15.4 
Time Limits on Claims 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.1.3 
Title to Work 
9.3.2, 9.3.3 
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
12


Uncovering of Work 
12.1 
Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown 
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Unit Prices 
7.3.3.2, 9.1.2 
Use of Documents 
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.12.6, 5.3 
Use of Site 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Values, Schedule of 
9.2, 9.3.1 
Waiver of Claims by the Architect 
13.3.2 
Waiver of Claims by the Contractor 
9.10.5, 13.3.2, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Claims by the Owner 
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Consequential Damages 
14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Liens 
9.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4 
Waivers of Subrogation 
6.1.1, 11.3 
Warranty 
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 
15.1.2 
Weather Delays 
8.3, 15.1.6.2 
Work, Definition of 
1.1.3 
Written Consent 
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.10.3, 
13.2, 13.3.2, 15.4.4.2 
Written Interpretations 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Written Orders 
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.4.2, 14.3.1 
 


 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
9 


 


ARTICLE 1  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 Basic Definitions 
§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), 
Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement, 
and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract 
signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written order for a minor change 
in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract Documents do not 
include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other information furnished by the 
Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to 
bidding or proposal requirements. 
 
§ 1.1.2 The Contract 
The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement 
between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The 
Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create 
a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, (2) 
between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub- subcontractor, (3) between the Owner and the Architect or the 
Architect’s consultants, or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Contractor. The Architect 
shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate 
performance of the Architect’s duties. 
 
§ 1.1.3 The Work 
The term “Work” means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or partially 
completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the Contractor to 
fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project. 
 
§ 1.1.4 The Project 
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a 
part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors. 
 
§ 1.1.5 The Drawings 
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and 
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams. 
 
§ 1.1.6 The Specifications 
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, 
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services. 
 
§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service 
Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible 
and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their respective 
professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models, 
sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials. 
 
§ 1.1.8 Initial Decision Maker 
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in 
accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the Owner or Contractor and 
shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. 
 
§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents 
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion 
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as 
binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the 
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
10 


 


.1    The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its 
remaining provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, 
or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to 
make that provision legal and enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the 
Contract. 


 
§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not 
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be performed by 
any trade. 
 
§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction 
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. 
 
§ 1.2.4 The terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the General Conditions and 
Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to all Sections of the Specifications. 
 
§ 1.3 Capitalization 
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered 
articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects. 
 
§ 1.4 Interpretation 
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and articles 
such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is 
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement. 
 
§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service 
§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other 
reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, 
and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights. 
 
§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the 
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely 
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if 
any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may not 
use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work without the 
specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
§ 1.6 Notice 
§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or give 
notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to whom 
the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by courier, or by 
electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement. 
 
§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified or 
registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery. 
 
§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission 
The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other 
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information 
Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of 
digital data. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
11 


 


§ 1.7.1 Instruments of Service transmitted in digital form or any other information or documentation transmitted in digital 
form are not Contract Documents.  Discrepancies may exist between digital data files and corresponding hard-copy 
Contract Documents including, but not limited to, subsequent modifications to the Contract Documents.  In the event of a 
conflict between the Contract Documents and the digital data files, the Contract Documents shall govern.  Users of digital 
data files shall be responsible for confirming the accuracy and completeness of the files relative to current Contract 
Documents. 
 
§ 1.7.2 Data contained in Architect provided digital data files, at the time of transfer to third parties, are part of the 
Architect’s Instruments of Service and shall not be used by anyone receiving this data for any purpose other than as a 
convenience in the preparation of shop drawings for the referenced project.  Any other use or reuse by others is prohibited.  
Users of these digital data files shall agree to make no claim and hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any 
claim or cause of action or any nature against the Architect, its officers, consultants, directors, agents, and sub-consultants, 
and any employees of them, that may arise out of or in connection with use of these digital data files. Furthermore, users 
shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Architect, its officers, consultants, 
directors, agents, and sub-consultants, and any employees of them, from and against any and all claims, causes of action, 
damages, liabilities and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising out of or 
resulting from the use of these digital data files. 
 
§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance 
Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols governing 
the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set forth in AIA 
Document E203™– 2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite AIA Document 
G202™–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form RDG BIM Project Execution Plan, shall be at 
the using or relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the 
authors of, or contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees. 
 
ARTICLE 2  OWNER 
§ 2.1 General 
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express 
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as 
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or 
the Owner’s authorized representative. 
 
§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information 
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such information 
shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located, usually referred to 
as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein. 
 
§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner’s Financial Arrangements 
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the 
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under 
the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such evidence. If 
commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately. 
 
§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the 
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under 
the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract Documents require; (2) the 
Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due; or (3) a 
change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails to provide such evidence, as required, within 
fourteen days of the Contractor’s request, the Contractor may immediately stop the Work and, in that event, shall notify the 
Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request is made because a change in the Work materially changes the 
Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor may immediately stop only that portion of the Work affected by the change 
until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, 
delay and start-up, plus interest as provided in the Contract Documents. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
12 


 


 
§ 2.2.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not materially 
vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor. 
 
§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as “confidential,” the Contractor 
shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the Contractor may 
disclose “confidential” information, after seven (7) days’ notice to the Owner, where disclosure is required by law, 
including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or by court 
or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose “confidential” information to its employees, consultants, 
sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to know the content of such 
information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information. 
 
§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, including 
those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments and 
charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing 
facilities. 
 
§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing 
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. 
 
§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor has no 
reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect. 
 
§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work. 
 
§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with 
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and 
relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Contractor’s written 
request for such information or services. 
 
§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of 
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2. 
 
§ 2.4 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work 
If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as 
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner 
may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has 
been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner 
to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by 
Section 6.1.3. 
 
§ 2.5 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work 
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within a 
ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect 
with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, correct such 
default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of 
the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for Payment in whole or 
in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, 
including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, 
neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor shall pay the 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
13 


 


difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the Owner or the Architect, or the amounts 
claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to Article 15. 
 
ARTICLE 3  CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.1 General 
§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction 
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority 
to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term “Contractor” means the Contractor or the 
Contractor’s authorized representative. 
 
§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor. 
 
§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor 
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become 
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal observations 
with requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the Work, 
carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the 
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing conditions 
related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These obligations are for the 
purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the purpose of discovering errors, 
omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall promptly report to the Architect 
any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information in 
such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as 
a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws, 
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall promptly 
report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information in 
such form as the Architect may require. 
 
§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the 
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, 
the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of 
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, as 
would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligations, 
the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or 
omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract 
Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities. 
 
§ 3.2.5 The Owner is entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor for amounts paid to the Architect for evaluating and 
responding to the Contractor’s requests for information where the requested information is available to the Contractor 
from a careful study and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, 
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation. 
 
§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures 
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
14 


 


Documents give specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite 
safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to 
the Owner and Architect, and shall propose alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The 
Architect shall evaluate the proposed alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed 
construction. Unless the Architect objects to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the 
Work using its alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. 
 
§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or on 
behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 
 
§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that such 
portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work. 
 
§ 3.4 Labor and Materials 
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and 
services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not 
incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. Work required by the Contract Documents to be performed after working 
hours or work the Contractor elects to perform after hours shall be completed at no additional cost to the Owner. 
 
§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8 or 
ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of 
the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive. 
 
§ 3.4.2.1 After the Contract has been executed, the Owner and Architect will consider requests for the substitution of 
products in place of those specified only under the conditions set forth in the General Requirements (Division 01 of the 
Specifications). By making requests for substitutions, the Contractor: 


.1    represents that the Contractor has personally investigated the proposed substitute product and determined 
that it is equal or superior in all respects to that specified; 


.2    represents that the Contractor will provide the same warranty for the substitution as it would have provided 
for the product specified; 


.3    certifies that the cost data presented is complete and includes all related costs for the substituted product and 
for Work that must be changed as a result of the substitution, except for the Architect’s redesign costs, and 
waives all claims for additional costs related to the substitution that subsequently become apparent; and 


.4    shall coordinate the installation of the accepted substitute, making such changes as may be required for the 
Work to be complete in all respects. 


 
§ 3.4.2.2 The Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor for amounts paid to the Architect for reviewing 
the Contractor’s proposed substitutions and making agreed-upon changes in the Drawings and Specifications resulting 
from such substitutions. 
 
§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other persons 
carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly skilled in tasks 
assigned to them. 
 
§ 3.5 Warranty 
§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract 
will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further 
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects, 
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or 
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes 
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
15 


 


insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the Architect, 
the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. 
 
§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in 
the name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4. 
 
§ 3.6 Taxes 
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are legally 
enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into 
effect. 
 
§ 3.6.1 Bidders shall be responsible for informing themselves of tax laws, requirements, regulations, and interpretations as 
they apply to this project. 
 
§ 3.6.2 This Project is Iowa sales tax exempt.  Persons shall purchase such items of tangible personal property without 
liability for the tax if such property will be used in the performance of the construction contract and a purchasing agent 
authorization letter and an exemption certificate, issued by the designated exempt entity, are presented to the retailer. Said 
taxes shall not be included in the bid value for this Project. 
 
§ 3.6.3 The Owner shall issue an authorization letter and an exemption certificate to the Contractor, subcontractor, builder, 
or manufacturer to be used as provided in Iowa Code.  The authorization letter and the exemption certificate shall specify 
the construction project to which they apply and shall be valid only for that project. The Owner shall notify the Iowa 
Department of Revenue that such authorization letter and exemption certificate have been issued.  The notification shall, to 
the extent practicable, describe the project and identify the Contractors, subcontractors, builders, and manufacturers which 
will be using the letter and certificate. 
 
§ 3.6.4 The Contractor shall provide to the Owner a listing of Contractors, subcontractors, builders, and manufacturers 
which will be purchasing tangible personable property for this Project and request the owner provide an authorization letter 
and an exemption certificate relative to Article 3.6.2 above. 
 
§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building 
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper 
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally 
required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded. 
 
§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work. 
 
§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such Work and 
shall bear the costs attributable to correction. 
 
§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions 
If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that 
differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual 
nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction 
activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the 
Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after first observance of the 
conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ 
materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of 
the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the 
Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract 
Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and 
Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may 
submit a Claim as provided in Article 15. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
16 


 


§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor knowingly encounters and recognizes human remains, or recognizes 
the existence of burial markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt 
of such notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to 
resume the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner 
but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence or good faith belief of such existence of such remains or 
features may be made as provided in Article 15. 
 
§ 3.7.6 Plan reviews which may be required by the State of Iowa Building Code Commissioner for 661 Iowa 
Administrative Code Chapter 200 Fire Marshal Administration or 661 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 300 State 
Building Code - Administration shall be secured by the Architect and paid for by the Owner. Exception: Fire Alarm and 
Automatic Sprinkler System plan reviews and fees shall be paid by the Contractor. 
 
§ 3.8 Allowances 
§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered 
by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but the 
Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection. 
 
§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, 


.1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all 
required taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 


.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, 
and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract 
Sum but not in the allowances; and 


.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by 
Change Order.  The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs and 
the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 3.8.2.2. 


 
§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness. 
 
§ 3.9 Superintendent 
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at 
the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and communications 
given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. 
 
§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the 
name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect may 
notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed 
superintendent or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day 
period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. 
 
§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made reasonable 
and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent, which shall not 
unreasonably be withheld or delayed. 
 
§ 3.9.4 The Contractor shall employ a superintendent or an assistant to the superintendent who will perform as a 
coordinator for structural, mechanical, and electrical Work. The coordinator shall be knowledgeable in structural, 
mechanical, and electrical systems and capable of reading, interpreting and coordinating Drawings, Specifications, and 
shop drawings pertaining to such systems. The coordinator shall assist the Subcontractors in arranging space conditions to 
eliminate interference between the structural, mechanical, and electrical systems and other Work and shall supervise the 
preparation of coordination drawings documenting the spatial arrangements for such systems within restricted spaces. The 
coordinator shall assist in planning and expediting the proper sequence of delivery of structural, mechanical, and electrical 
equipment to the site. 
 
§ 3.10 Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
17 


 


§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s 
information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the 
Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of 
Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for 
completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to 
completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at 
appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project. 
 
§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter as necessary to maintain a current 
submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Architect’s approval. The Architect’s approval shall not be 
unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor’s construction 
schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal 
schedule, or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be 
entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of 
submittals. 
 
§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the 
Owner and Architect. 
 
§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site 
The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders, 
Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes 
and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required 
submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, and delivered to the 
Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed. 
 
§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of the 
Work. 
 
§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, 
diagrams, and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some 
portion of the Work. 
 
§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged. 
 
§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is to 
demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in the 
Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. Review by the 
Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the Architect is not expected 
to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by the Contract 
Documents may be returned by the Architect without action. 
 
§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the Architect, 
Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, in accordance with 
the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable 
promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner or of Separate 
Contractors. 
 
§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to the 
Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified materials, field 
measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and coordinated the information 
contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
18 


 


§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal and 
review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been approved 
by the Architect. 
 
§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect of 
such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as a 
minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the 
deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval thereof. 
 
§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions. 
 
§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of architecture 
or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or 
unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to provide 
professional services in violation of applicable law. 
 


.1    If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, 
or equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and 
the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The 
Contractor shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design 
criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications 
to be provided by an appropriately licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear 
on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and other submittals 
prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the Work, designed or 
certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written approval 
when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the 
adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such 
design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor the 
performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the 
Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the limited 
purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 


.2    If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been 
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the 
Architect at the time and in the form specified by the Architect. 


 
§ 3.12.11 The Architect’s and its consultant’s review of Contractor’s submittals will be limited to examination of an initial 
submittal and one (1) re-submittal. The Architect’s review of additional submittals will be made only with the consent of 
the Owner after notification by the Architect. The Owner shall be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to 
the Architect for evaluation of such additional re-submittals. 
 
§ 3.12.12 The Architect’s and its consultant’s review of Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule 
agreed to by the Architect shall entitle the Owner to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to the Architect for 
review of such out of sequence submittals. 
 
§ 3.13 Use of Site 
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not 
unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
19 


 


§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching 
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make its 
parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition existing prior 
to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed construction 
of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or by excavation. 
The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor except with written 
consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor shall 
not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to cutting or otherwise altering the 
Work. 
 
§ 3.15 Cleaning Up 
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and 
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste materials, 
rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about the Project. 
 
§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the 
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor. 
 
§ 3.16 Access to Work 
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever 
located. 
 
§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of 
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall 
not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, 
Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a copyright or 
patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the 
information is promptly furnished to the Architect. 
 
§ 3.18 Indemnification 
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, 
Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided 
that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or 
omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts 
they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party 
indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of 
indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, Architect’s Consultants, and 
their agents and employees from and against any and all claims, causes of actions, damages, losses and expenses, 
including but not limited to attorney's’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance or prosecution of the Work 
by the Contractor, its subcontractors, agents, or employees; or arising from any neglect, default, or mismanagement or 
omissions by the Contractor, its subcontractors, agents, or employees in the performance of any duties imposed by the 
contract or by law; provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense: 


.1    is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property 
(other than the work itself) including the loss of use resulting there from, and 


.2    is caused in whole or in part by any fault, negligence, act, or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,  
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them and/or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, 
and including any of their employee's injury or damages caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the 
same employee. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
20 


 


       Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation 
of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person described in Section 3.18.1. 


 
§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor, a 
Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability 
benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. 
 
§ 3.19 Iowa Code Chapter 573 Claims 
§ 3.19.1 Contractor shall secure discharge by separate surety bond or otherwise of any 573 Claim that arises from 
Contractor’s dealings with subcontractors or suppliers, or from any subcontractor’s dealings with sub-subcontractors or 
suppliers. Contractor shall indemnify the Owner for any costs the Owner may sustain due to the filing of any Iowa Code 
Chapter 573 Claims arising from Contractor’s dealings with subcontractors or suppliers, including the price of any bond to 
discharge said claims and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in defending said claims. The Owner shall retain all rights to 
make any claims or pursue any remedies it might have in contract or common law against the Contractor or surety. After 
Contractor’s discharge by separate surety bond or otherwise of any 573 claim, Owner shall waive all rights to withhold 
double (or any part of) said 573 claim. 
 
ARTICLE 4  ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1 General 
§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in the 
Agreement. 
 
§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents shall 
not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. 
 
§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract 
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be an 
Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. The 
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed with the 
Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to determine 
in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous 
on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will not have control over, charge of, or 
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract 
Documents. 
 
§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and 
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract 
Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (3) 
defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to 
perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control 
over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 
 
§ 4.2.4 Communications 
The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s 
services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any direct 
communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by and with 
the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and suppliers 
shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the Owner. The 
Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
21 


 


 
§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review 
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts. 
 
§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work 
in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, 
neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority 
shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents or 
employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 
 
§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be taken in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, 
with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate 
review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of 
other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of 
equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the Contract Documents. 
The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under Sections 
3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or of any construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate 
approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 
 
§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes in 
the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and recommendations 
regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4. 
 
§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of 
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the Owner, 
for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and assembled by 
the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section 9.10. 
 
§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in 
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the 
duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives. 
 
§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract 
Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests will be made 
in writing within any time limits agreed upon in writing or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 
 
§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from, 
the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and 
decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show 
partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. 
 
§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent expressed 
in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The Architect’s 
response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon in writing or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in 
response to the requests for information. 
 
ARTICLE 5  SUBCONTRACTORS 
§ 5.1 Definitions 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
22 


 


§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the Work 
at the site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means 
a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor” does not include a Separate 
Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor. 
 
§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform a 
portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor. 
 
§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the 
Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the persons or entities proposed for each principal portion of the Work, 
including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design. Within 14 days of receipt of the 
information, the Architect may notify the Contractor whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to 
any such proposed person or entity or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice 
within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. 
 
§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor 
has made reasonable objection. 
 
§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but 
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be 
increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be 
issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in 
submitting names as required. 
 
§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the Owner or 
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution. 
 
  







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
23 


 


§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations 
By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be 
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume 
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the 
Subcontractor’s Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect. 
Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract 
Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not 
prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract 
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract 
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into 
similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, 
prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor 
will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of 
the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will 
similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-
subcontractors. 
 
§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts 
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that 


.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to Section 
14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the Subcontractor 
and Contractor; and 


.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the Contract. 
 
When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and 
obligations under the subcontract. 
 
§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s compensation 
shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 
 
§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the 
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the 
subcontract. 
 
ARTICLE 6  CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
§ 6.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts 
§ 6.1.1 The term “Separate Contractor(s)” shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate 
agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s 
own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to those of 
this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of 
subrogation. 
 
§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on 
the site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each 
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement. 
 
§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each Separate 
Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with any 
Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any revisions 
to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction schedules 
shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until subsequently 
revised. 
 
§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations 
related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
24 


 


Contractors shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, 
including, without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12. 
 
§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility 
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage 
of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the Contractor’s 
construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the 
Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly notify the 
Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that 
would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. Failure of the Contractor to notify the 
Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall constitute an acknowledgment that 
the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the 
Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible for discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by 
the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent. 
 
§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate Contractor 
because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s delays, improperly 
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. 
 
§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or 
partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5. 
 
§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14. 
 
§ 6.3 Owner’s Right to Clean Up 
If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the Owner 
may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible. 
 
ARTICLE 7  CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 7.1 General 
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the Contract, 
by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the limitations stated 
in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction Change 
Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor. An order for 
a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone. 
 
§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The Contractor 
shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change 
Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work. 
 
§ 7.2 Change Orders 
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and 
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following: 


.1 The change in the Work; 


.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and 


.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 


§ 7.2.2 Contractor shall comply with the following provisions in determining any change in contract cost. 
.1    For the Prime Contractor, any changes or additions to the work which involve extra cost and for which the 


additional cost is determined by mutual agreement on a lump sum amount, shall be handled on the basis of 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
25 


 


net cost plus 10 percent; this percentage shall include overhead and profit.  'Cost' shall include all items of 
material and labor, including pro rata charge for foreman, use of power tools and equipment (for the time 
actually used), power, bond premium, liability, compensation, insurance, and automobile insurance.  Social 
security insurance, old age, and unemployment insurance may be considered as cost, but these items will not 
carry the 10 percent for overhead and profit.  When requested, the Contractor shall furnish evidence of net 
cost by means of invoices and certified time records. 


.2    When the Prime Contractor seeks the work of a change order through the quotation of a subcontractor(s), the 
cost submitted to the Owner will list a total maximum of 15 percent overhead and profit for all Contractors.  
Ten percent (10%) overhead and profit will be allowed for the Contractor actually performing the work.  The 
remaining 5 percent will be allowed for coordination of the work by the Prime Contractor. 


3     Changes in the work involving credits for work not performed shall be made on the basis of total cost.  
Contractor mark-up for profit and overhead shall be included in the construction cost change. 


4     The Contractor shall furnish to the Architect an itemized breakdown of quantities and prices on all changes.  
Degree and detail of breakdown shall be at the Architect's discretion, but, in general, shall be in such detail 
appropriate to the size and scope of the change so as to allow timely and meaningful evaluation. 


 
§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives 
§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, 
or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work 
within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and 
Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. 
 
§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 
 
§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be 
based on one of the following methods: 


.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit 
evaluation; 


.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 


.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage 
fee; or 


.4 As provided in Section 7.3.4. 
 
§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, the 
Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the 
Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead and profit 
as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such case, and 
also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may prescribe, an itemized 
accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the 
purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following: 


.1 Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, 
workers’ compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect; 


.2 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
consumed; 


.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor or 
others; 


.4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly related to 
the change; and 


.5 Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change. 
 
§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in 
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15. 
 
§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the 
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided in 
the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
26 


 


 
§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall be 
effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. 
 
§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net 
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits 
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured 
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change. 
 
§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor may 
request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The 
Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs and certify 
for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be reasonably justified. 
The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as a Change Order, subject 
to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15. 
 
§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the adjustments in 
the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be 
effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or any part of a 
Construction Change Directive. 
 
§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work 
The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and do 
not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order for minor 
changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will affect the Contract 
Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to implement the change in the 
Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor change without prior notice to the 
Architect that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any adjustment to the 
Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time. 
 
ARTICLE 8  TIME 
§ 8.1 Definitions 
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in the 
Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work. 
 
§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement. 
 
§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8. 
 
§ 8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically defined. 
 
§ 8.2 Progress and Completion 
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement, the 
Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 
 
§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence the 
Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner. 
 
§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion within 
the Contract Time. 
 
§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time 
§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect 
of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the Work; 
(3) by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
27 


 


in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay authorized by the 
Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the Contractor asserts, and the 
Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the Architect 
may determine. 
 
§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15. 
 
§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of 
the Contract Documents. 
 
ARTICLE 9  PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
§ 9.1 Contract Sum 
§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable 
by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial 
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 
 
§ 9.2 Schedule of Values 
Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a 
schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the 
various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to 
substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as 
a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be 
submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and 
unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications for 
Payment. 
 
§ 9.3 Applications for Payment 


§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under 
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by all data 
substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner or Architect require, such as copies of requisitions, and 
releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Contract 
Documents. The form of Application for Payment shall be a notarized AIA Document G702, Application and Certificate 
for Payment, supported by AIA Document G703, Continuation Sheet. 
 
§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in the 
Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders. 
 
§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others whom the 
Contractor intends to pay. 
 
  







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
28 


 


 
§ 9.3.1.3 The Owner will retain five percent (5%) of each Application for Payment in accordance with Section 573.12 of 
the Code of Iowa: 


.1    Retainage will be held 30 days after completion and final acceptance of the Work, unless otherwise requested 
by the Contractor in accordance with Section 26.13 of the Code of Iowa.  
.1    At the end of the 30 day period, the Owner will continue to hold double the total amount of all claims on 


file and the estimated value of incomplete work. 
.2    A request for early release of retained funds will only be considered upon completion of the following: 


.1    Substantial Completion of the Work substantiated by an executed Certificate of Substantial Completion. 


.2    Notification to all known suppliers, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors of the Contractors intent to 
request a release of retained funds in compliance with Section 26.13 of the Code of Iowa. 


.3    Receipt of an itemized, tabulated list prepared by the Contractor of all incomplete or nonconforming 
work items, including valuation of each work item listed.  Include separate columns for labor and 
material for each item listed.  Upon approval, this list shall be incorporated into the Schedule of Values 
for subsequent payment applications.  All values shall be listed as double the estimated value of work 
item. 


.4    G706 - Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims.  


.5    G706A - Contractor's Affidavit of Release of Liens.   


.6    G707 - Consent of Surety to Final Payment.   


.7    Evidence of continuation of liability coverage, including coverage for completed operations in 
accordance Section 11.1 of AIA General Conditions. 


 
§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance by 
the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location agreed 
upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon compliance by 
the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such materials and equipment 
or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage, and transportation 
to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site. 
 
§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the 
Owner no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for 
Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the 
Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or 
entities that provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work. 
 
§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment 
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue to 
the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor; or 
(2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly due, and notify 
the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in Section 9.5.1; or 
(3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s 
reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1. 
 
§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based 
on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the 
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work 
is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. 
The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents 
upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the 
Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. However, the 
issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or 
continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and suppliers 
and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment; or (4) made examination to 
ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
29 


 


 
§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification 
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be 
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the 
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount, the 
Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such 
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently 
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may 
be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible, including 
loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of 


.1 defective Work not remedied; 


.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor; 


.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials or 
equipment; 


.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 


.5 damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor; 


.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or 


.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in 
whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15. 
 
§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously 
withheld. 
 
§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue 
joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make payment for 
Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by joint check, the 
Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next Application for Payment. 
 
§ 9.6 Progress Payments 
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within 
the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect. 
 
§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the 
Owner, the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to 
the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement 
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 
 
§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of 
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account of 
portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor. 
 
§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor fails 
to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and suppliers to 
ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay, or to see 
to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be required by law. Neither the Owner 
nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may 
otherwise be required by law. 
 
§ 9.6.5 The Contractor’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 
and 9.6.4. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
30 


 


 
§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Owner 
shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall be 
held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, 
under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require 
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any fiduciary 
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision. 
 
§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall 
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and 
litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of any 
tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If 
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property against 
which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted. 
 
§ 9.7 Failure of Payment 
If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after receipt 
of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days after the date 
established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding dispute resolution, 
then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the Work until payment of 
the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be 
increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for 
in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.8 Substantial Completion 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof 
is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work 
for its intended use. 
 
§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, is 
substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of items to be 
completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the responsibility of the 
Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or 
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that 
the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall, before 
issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the Architect. 
In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine Substantial 
Completion. 
 


.1    The Architect shall not be required to make inspections to determine Substantial Completion when the 
Work is not sufficiently complete or will result in extensive lists of items to be completed or 
corrected.  When the Work is not sufficiently complete and such inspections are requested by the 
Contractor or are necessary to allow Owner occupancy by the required substantial completion date, the 
Owner shall have the right to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to the Architect for additional 
services to conduct such inspections. 


.2    The Architect’s inspection of any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is 
substantially complete will be limited to an initial inspection and one (1) re-inspection. Additional re-
inspections will be made only with the consent of the Owner after notification by the Architect. The Owner 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
31 


 


shall be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to the Architect for such additional re-
inspections. 


 
§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and 
Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time within which the 
Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents 
shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided 
in the Certificate of Substantial Completion. 
 
§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if any, the 
Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall be 
adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The 
Certificate of Substantial completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written acceptance of 
responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate. 
 
§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use 
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to 
by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use 
may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have accepted 
in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, 
utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the 
Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion 
substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. 
Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of 
the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if no agreement is reached, 
by decision of the Architect. 
 
§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect the 
area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 
 
§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon 
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect finds 
the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly issue 
a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, and on the 
basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and 
payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that conditions listed in 
Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment have been fulfilled. 
 
§ 9.10.1.1 The Architect’s inspection of the Work to determine whether the Work is acceptable for Final Completion 
and Final Payment will be limited to one (1) inspection. Additional re-inspections will be made only with the consent of 
the Owner after notification by the Architect. The Owner shall be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts 
paid to the Architect for such additional re-inspections. 
 
§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to the 
Architect 
(1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for 
which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld by Owner) have 
been paid or otherwise satisfied, a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract Documents to remain in 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
32 


 


force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the Contractor knows of no reason that the 
insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to 
final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as manufacturers’ warranties or specific Subcontractor 
warranties, and (6) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as 
receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the 
extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver 
required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against 
such lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance. If a lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied 
after payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in 
discharging the lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 
§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault of 
the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the Owner 
shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the Contract, make 
payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If the remaining 
balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if 
bonds have been furnished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work 
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to certification of such payment. 
Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a 
waiver of Claims. 
 
§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from  


.1 liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled; 


.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; 


.3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or 


.4 audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment. 
 
§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of claims 
by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of final 
Application for Payment. 
 
ARTICLE 10  PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs 
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the performance of the Contract. 
 
§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property 
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to 
prevent damage, injury, or loss to 


.1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 


.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under 
care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and 


.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, 
roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the 
course of construction. 


 
§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules 
and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their protection from 
damage, injury, or loss. 
 
§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of 
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of 
the safeguards. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
33 


 


§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are necessary 
for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under supervision of 
properly qualified personnel. 
 
§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property 
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in whole 
or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of 
them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under Sections 10.2.1.2 
and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the extent such damage or 
loss is attributable to the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or 
negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the Contractor’s obligations 
under Section 3.18. 
 
§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty shall 
be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise designated by the 
Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect. 
 
§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition. 
 
§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property 
If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of others 
for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to 
the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to 
enable the other party to investigate the matter. 
 
§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances 
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents 
regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily 
injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated 
biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the condition, 
immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition. 
 
§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify 
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or 
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons 
or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to perform 
the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect will promptly 
reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the persons or entities proposed 
by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the Owner, the 
Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable objection. When the 
material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the 
Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum 
shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and start-up. 
 
§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from 
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death 
as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the 
Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party seeking 
indemnity. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
34 


 


 
§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the 
Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner 
shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of 
the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances. 
 
§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation 
of hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are 
due to the Owner’s fault or negligence. 
 
§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for the 
cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred. 
 
§ 10.4 Emergencies 
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to prevent 
threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of 
an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7. 
 
ARTICLE 11  INSURANCE AND BONDS 
§ 11.1 Contractor’s Insurance and Bonds 
§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the 
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or 
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The 
Owner, Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insureds under the Contractor’s 
commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 11.1.2 The Contractor shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and 
conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required bonds from a 
company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 
 
§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of 
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a copy 
to be furnished. 
 
§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor’s Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of 
the date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by 
the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation or 
expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act 
or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the procurement 
of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of 
any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage. 
 
§ 11.2 Owner’s Insurance 
§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the endorsements, 
and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The 
Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully 
authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 
 
§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required 
property insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement of the Work. Upon receipt of notice 
from the Owner, the Contractor may delay commencement of the Work and may obtain insurance that will protect the 
interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the Work. When the failure to provide coverage 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
35 


 


has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be equitably adjusted. In the event the Owner fails 
to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the 
extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance to have been procured by the Owner. The cost of 
the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change Order. If the Owner does not provide written notice, and the 
Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or maintain the required insurance, the Owner 
shall reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable costs and damages attributable thereto. 
 
§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner’s Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) 
business days of the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any 
property insurance required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such 
impending or actual cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the 
Contractor: (1) the Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the 
lapse in coverage has been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; 
(2) the Contract Time and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by 
the insurance had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the 
insurance shall be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner 
shall not relieve the Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance. 
 
§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation 
§ 11.3.1 The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors, agents, and employees, each of the other; (2) the Architect and Architect’s consultants; and (3) Separate 
Contractors, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages caused by 
fire, or other causes of loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required by the Agreement or 
other property insurance applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance. The 
Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the individuals and entities 
identified above from the Architect, Architect’s consultants, Separate Contractors, subcontractors, and sub-
subcontractors. The policies of insurance purchased and maintained by each person or entity agreeing to waive claims 
pursuant to this section 11.3.1 shall not prohibit this waiver of subrogation. This waiver of subrogation shall be effective 
as to a person or entity (1) even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual 
or otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or (3) 
whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the damaged property. 
 
§ 11.3.2 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or 
adjacent to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final 
payment property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those 
insuring the Project during the construction period, to the extent permissible by such policies, the Owner waives all 
rights in accordance with the terms of Section 11.3.1 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by 
this separate property insurance. 
 
§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance 
The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of 
use of the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss. The 
Owner waives all rights of action against the Contractor and Architect for loss of use of the Owner’s property, due to 
fire or other hazards however caused. 
 
§11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss 
§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by the Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as fiduciary 
and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any 
applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Architect and Contractor their just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreements the Architect and Contractor shall make 
payments to their consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner. 
 
§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Contractor of the terms of the proposed 
settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Contractor shall have 14 days from receipt of 
notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Contractor does not object, the Owner shall 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
36 


 


settle the loss and the Contractor shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the Owner shall deposit 
the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, if no other agreement is 
made or the Owner does not terminate the Contract for convenience, the Owner and Contractor shall execute a Change 
Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work in the amount allocated for that purpose. If the Contractor 
timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or the allocation of the proceeds, the Owner may proceed to 
settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and Contractor arising out of the settlement or allocation of the 
proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. Pending resolution of any dispute, the Owner may issue a Construction 
Change Directive for the reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work. 
 
ARTICLE 12  UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work 
§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically expressed in 
the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect’s examination 
and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time. 
 
§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to 
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work 
is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor’s expense. 
 
§ 12.2 Correction of Work 
§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion 
The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. 
Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and 
replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the 
Contractor’s expense. 
 
§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion 


.1    In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of 
warranties established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by 
the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to 
do so, unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The 
Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for 
correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the Contractor an opportunity to 
make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Contractor and to make a 
claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable 
time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in 
accordance with Section 2.5. 


.2    The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion of that portion of the Work. 


 
.3    The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the 


Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2. 
 
§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the requirements 
of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner. 
 
§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate 
Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work that is 
not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
37 


 


§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other 
obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for correction of 
Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work, and has 
no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be 
enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor’s liability with respect 
to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. 
 
§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as 
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made. 
 
ARTICLE 13  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 13.1 Governing Law 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of 
law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act 
shall govern Section 15.4. The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located. 
 
§ 13.1.2 Compliance with Law Provision: The Contractor agrees that he will comply with all applicable Federal, State, and 
local laws, statutes, codes, rules, and regulations having jurisdiction over the Project. Contractor shall take all necessary 
precautions to keep the site and work in compliance with the safety and health regulations for construction issued by the 
Bureau of Labor Standards of the U.S. Department of Labor as well as the Occupational Safety and Health Standards, parts 
1910 and 1926 as amended and as enforced by the State of Iowa. 
 
§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns 
§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in 
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If 
either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally 
responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 
 
§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction 
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment. 
 
§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies 
§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder shall 
be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 
 
§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty 
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing. 
 
§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections 
§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract Documents 
and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public authorities. Unless 
otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and approvals with an 
independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public authority, and shall bear 
all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect timely notice of when and 
where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. The Owner shall 
bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after bids are received or negotiations 
concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or approvals where building codes or 
applicable laws or regulations so require. 
 
§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require 
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
38 


 


authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, or 
approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when and 
where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs, except 
as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense. 
 
§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the portions 
of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by such 
failure, including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses, shall be at 
the Contractor’s expense. 
 
§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect. 
 
§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the Architect 
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing. 
 
§ 13.4.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work. 
 
§ 13.5 Interest 
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate the 
parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where 
the Project is located. 
 
ARTICLE 14  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 
§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor 
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days through no 
act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or 
entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons: 


.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped; 


.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all Work to be stopped; 


.3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of the 
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not made 
payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or 


.4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2. 
 
§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-
subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, repeated 
suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, constitute in the 
aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, 
whichever is less. 
 
§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’ notice to 
the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as 
reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination. 
 
§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a 
Subcontractor, a Sub- subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of 
the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract Documents with 
respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the 
Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 14.1.3. 
 
§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause 
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor 


.1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
39 


 


.2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements 
between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers; 


.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or 


.4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 14.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon certification by the Architect that sufficient 
cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and 
after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ notice, terminate employment of the Contractor 
and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 


.1 Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor; 


.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and 


.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request of 
the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred by the 
Owner in finishing the Work. 


 
§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall not 
be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. 
 
§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for the 
Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not expressly 
waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, the 
Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case may 
be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall survive 
termination of the Contract. 
 
§ 14.2.5 Provisions of law pursuant to the Code of Iowa, Act to Provide for Termination of Contracts for Construction 
of Public Improvements when construction work or work thereon is stopped because of a National Emergency, shall 
apply to and become a part of this contract and shall be binding upon all parties hereto, including Subcontractors and 
Sureties upon any Bond given or filed in connection herewith. 
 
§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in whole 
or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 
 
§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by suspension, 
delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No adjustment shall be 
made to the extent 


.1 that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another 
cause for which the Contractor is responsible; or 


.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract. 
 
§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. 
 
§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall 


.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 


.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and 


.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase 
orders. 


 
§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work properly 
executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of Subcontracts; and the 
termination fee, if any, set forth in the Agreement. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
40 


 


 
ARTICLE 15  CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 15.1 Claims 
§ 15.1.1 Definition 
A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, a change in the 
Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes other disputes and 
matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to 
substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require the Owner to file a 
Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims 
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or 
related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements 
of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, 
but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and 
Contractor waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2. 
 
§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims 


.1    Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by 
notice to the other party and to the Initial Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is 
not serving as the Initial Decision Maker. Claims by either party under this Section 15.1.3.1 shall be initiated 
within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant 
first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 


.2    Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by 
notice to the other party. In such event, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker is required. 


 
§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance 


.1    Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and 
Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall 
continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 


.2   The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted in accordance with the Initial Decision Maker’s 
decision, subject to the right of either party to proceed in accordance with this Article 15. The Architect will 
issue Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decision of the Initial Decision Maker. 


 
§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost 
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be 
given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is not required for 
Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4. 
 
§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time 


.1    If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in Section 
15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay 
on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 


.2    If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be 
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could 
not have been reasonably anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction. 


.3    Claims for increase in the Contract Time shall set forth in detail the circumstances that form the basis for 
the Claim, the date upon which each cause of delay began to affect the progress of the Work, the date 
upon which each cause of delay ceased to affect the progress of the Work, and the number of days’ 
increase in the Contract Time claimed as a consequence of each such cause of delay. The Contractor shall 
provide such supporting documentation as the Owner may require including, where appropriate, a revised 
construction schedule indicating all the activities affected by the circumstances forming the basis of the 
Claim. 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
41 


 


.4    The Contractor shall not be entitled to a separate increase in the Contract Time for each one of the 
number of causes of delay which may have concurrent or interrelated effects on the progress of the Work, 
or for concurrent delays due to the fault of the Contractor. 


 
§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages 
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this 
Contract. This mutual waiver includes 


.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business 
and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such persons; 
and 


.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of personnel 
stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, except anticipated 
profit arising directly from the Work. 


 
This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in 
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 15.2 Initial Decision 
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of the 
period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 or arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, and 11.5, shall be 
referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless 
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision shall be 
required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim. If an initial decision has not been rendered within 30 days 
after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker, the party asserting the Claim may demand mediation and 
binding dispute resolution without a decision having been rendered. Unless the Initial Decision Maker and all affected 
parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the Contractor and persons or entities other than 
the Owner. 
 
§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more of 
the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting data from the 
other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, or (5) advise the 
parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker lacks sufficient 
information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial Decision 
Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim. 
 
§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek 
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial Decision 
Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of such 
persons at the Owner’s expense. 
 
§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional 
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of the request, and shall either (1) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data 
will be furnished, or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the 
response or supporting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in 
part. 
 
§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that 
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the 
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker, 
of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties 
but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution. 
 
§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
42 


 


§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of receipt of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other 
party file for mediation. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for mediation within 30 
days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding dispute resolution proceedings 
with respect to the initial decision. 
 
§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if any, 
of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, but 
is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy. 
 
§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 
 
§ 15.3 Mediation 
§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived as 
provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 
 
§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to 
the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made 
concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in 
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from 
the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed 
pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a 
schedule for later proceedings. 
 
§ 15.3.3 Either party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the 
dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the other 
party file for binding dispute resolution. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for 
binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to binding dispute 
resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 
 
§ 15.3.4 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the 
place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 15.4 Arbitration 
§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any Claim 
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place where the 
Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party 
filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which 
arbitration is permitted to be demanded. 
 
§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, 
but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim 
would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a written demand 
for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable 
proceedings based on the Claim. 
 
§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 







Exhibit B to AIA B101 


AIA Document A201™-2017. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
43 


 


§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party 
may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party provided 
that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be 
consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar 
procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 
 
§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party 
may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact whose presence is 
required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to 
such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of 
any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent. 
 
§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the Owner and 
Contractor under this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 











  EXHIBIT C 
 


Effective January 1, 2021* standard hourly rate schedule 


RDG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue Tel 515.288.3141 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309 Fax 515.288.8631 www.rdgusa.com RDG IA Inc  


TITLE RATE/HOUR 
Principal ............................................................................................................................................................................... $250.00 
Principal ............................................................................................................................................................................... $220.00 
Principal Emeritus ................................................................................................................................................................. $250.00 
Architect ............................................................................................................................................................................... $180.00 
Architect ............................................................................................................................................................................... $165.00 
Architect ............................................................................................................................................................................... $155.00 
Architect ............................................................................................................................................................................... $135.00 
Architect ............................................................................................................................................................................... $125.00 
Architectural Intern ............................................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Architectural Intern ............................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Architectural Technician ....................................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Landscape Architect ............................................................................................................................................................. $165.00 
Landscape Architect ............................................................................................................................................................. $155.00 
Landscape Architect ............................................................................................................................................................. $135.00 
Landscape Architect ............................................................................................................................................................. $120.00 
Landscape Architect ............................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Landscape Architectural Intern ............................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Water Resource Engineer ...................................................................................................................................................... $190.00 
Conservation and Community Outreach Specialist ................................................................................................................. $135.00 
Professional Engineer ........................................................................................................................................................... $220.00 
Engineering Technician ......................................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Interior Designer ................................................................................................................................................................... $165.00 
Interior Designer ................................................................................................................................................................... $135.00 
Interior Designer ................................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Lighting Designer.................................................................................................................................................................. $220.00 
Lighting Designer.................................................................................................................................................................. $120.00 
Artist .................................................................................................................................................................................... $135.00 
Artist .................................................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Multi Media Designer ............................................................................................................................................................ $155.00 
Videographer ........................................................................................................................................................................ $120.00 
Client Development Director ................................................................................................................................................. $165.00 
Marketing Coordinator .......................................................................................................................................................... $135.00 
Project Administrator ............................................................................................................................................................ $190.00 
Project Manager ................................................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Project Manager ..................................................................................................................................................................... $90.00 
Project Coordinator ................................................................................................................................................................. $90.00 
Office Administrator ................................................................................................................................................................ $90.00 
Office Coordinator ................................................................................................................................................................... $90.00 
 
*Current hourly rates may be adjusted annually on January 1 of each year. 











Exhibit D to this AIA B101 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
1 


 


AIA  Document E203™– 2013 
 
Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit 
 
This Exhibit dated the Seventeenth day of February in the year Two Thousand Twenty-One is incorporated into the 
agreement (the “Agreement”) between the Parties for the following Project: 
(Name and location or address of the Project) 
 
Carroll Recreation Center, Building Improvements Project 2021 
Carroll, Iowa 
 
TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
2 TRANSMISSION AND OWNERSHIP OF DIGITAL DATA 
 
3 DIGITAL DATA PROTOCOLS 
 
4 BUILDING INFORMATION MODELING PROTOCOLS  
 
5 OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 This Exhibit provides for the establishment of protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of 
Digital Data for the Project. If Building Information Modeling will be utilized, this Exhibit also provides for the 
establishment of the protocols necessary to implement the use of Building Information Modeling on the Project, including 
protocols that establish the expected Level of Development for Model Elements at various milestones of the Project, and 
the associated Authorized Uses of the Building Information Models. 
 
§ 1.2 The Parties agree to incorporate this Exhibit into their agreements with any other Project Participants that may 
develop or make use of Digital Data on the Project. Prior to transmitting or allowing access to Digital Data, a Party may 
require any Project Participant to provide reasonable evidence that it has incorporated this Exhibit into its agreement for 
the Project, and agreed to the most recent Project specific versions of AIA Document G201™–2013, Project Digital Data 
Protocol Form and RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202™–2013, Project Building Information 
Modeling Protocol Form. 
 
§ 1.2.1 The Parties agree that each of the Project Participants utilizing Digital Data on the Project is an intended third party 
beneficiary of the Section 1.2 obligation to incorporate this Exhibit into agreements with other Project Participants, and any 
rights and defenses associated with the enforcement of that obligation. This Exhibit does not create any third-party 
beneficiary rights other than those expressly identified in this Section 1.2.1. 
 
§ 1.3 Adjustments to the Agreement 
§ 1.3.1 If a Party believes that protocols established pursuant to Sections 3.2 or 4.5, and memorialized in AIA Documents 
G201–2013 and RDG BIM Project Execution Plan G202–2013, will result in a change in the Party’s scope of work or 
services warranting an adjustment in compensation, contract sum, schedule or contract time, the Party shall notify the other 
Party. Failure to provide notice as required in this Section 1.3 shall result in a Party’s waiver of any claims for adjustments 
in compensation, contract sum, schedule or contract time as a result of the established protocols. 
 
§ 1.3.2 Upon such notice, the Parties shall discuss and negotiate revisions to the protocols or discuss and negotiate any 
adjustments in compensation, contract sum, schedule or contract time in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. 
 
§ 1.3.3 Notice required under this Section 1.3 shall be provided within thirty days of receipt of the protocols, unless 
otherwise indicated below: 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
2 


 


(If the Parties require a notice period other than thirty days from receipt of the protocols, indicate the notice period 
below.) 
 
§ 1.3.3.1 Adjustments to the agreement via the RDG BIM Project Execution Plan (BIM PEP) when acknowledged by all 
Parties affected shall govern. The PEP as written at the time of this agreement is included as Attachment 1. 
 
§ 1.4 Definitions 
§ 1.4.1 Building Information Model. A Building Information Model is a digital representation of the Project, or a portion 
of the Project, and is referred to in this Exhibit as the “Model,” which term may be used herein to describe a Model 
Element, a single model or multiple models used in the aggregate, as well as other data sets identified in RDG BIM Project 
Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form. 
 
§ 1.4.2 Building Information Modeling. Building Information Modeling or Modeling means the process used to create 
the Model. 
 
§ 1.4.3 Model Element. A Model Element is a portion of the Model representing a component, system or assembly within 
a building or building site. 
 
§ 1.4.4 Level of Development. The Level of Development (LOD) describes the minimum dimensional, spatial, 
quantitative, qualitative, and other data included in a Model Element to support the Authorized Uses associated with such 
LOD. 
 
§ 1.4.5 Authorized Uses. The term “Authorized Uses” refers to the permitted uses of Digital Data authorized in the Digital 
Data and/or Building Information Modeling protocols established pursuant to the terms of this Exhibit. 
 
§ 1.4.6 Model Element Author. The Model Element Author is the entity (or individual) responsible for managing and 
coordinating the development of a specific Model Element to the LOD required for an identified Project milestone, 
regardless of who is responsible for providing the content in the Model Element. Model Element Authors are to be 
identified in RDG BIM Project Execution Plan Section 3.3, Model Element Table, of AIA Document G202–2013. 
 
§ 1.4.7 Digital Data. Digital Data is information, including communications, drawings, specifications and designs, created 
or stored for the Project in digital form. Unless otherwise stated, the term Digital Data includes the Model. 
 
§ 1.4.8 Confidential Digital Data. Confidential Digital Data is Digital Data containing confidential or business proprietary 
information that the transmitting party designates and clearly marks as “confidential.”  
 
§ 1.4.9 Written or In Writing. In addition to any definition in the Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached, for 
purposes of this Exhibit and the Agreement, “written” or “in writing” shall mean any communication prepared and sent 
using a transmission method set forth in this Exhibit, or the protocols developed pursuant to this Exhibit, that permits the 
recipient to print the communication. 
 
§ 1.4.10 Written Notice. In addition to any terms in the Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached, for purposes of this 
Exhibit and the Agreement, “written notice” shall be deemed to have been duly served if transmitted electronically to an 
address provided in this Exhibit or the Agreement using a transmission method set forth in this Exhibit that permits the 
recipient to print the communication. 
 
§ 1.4.11 Party and Parties. The terms “Party” and “Parties” refer to the signing parties to the Agreement. 
 
§ 1.4.12 Project Participant. A Project Participant is an entity (or individual) providing services, work, equipment or 
materials on the Project and includes the Parties. 
 
ARTICLE 2 TRANSMISSION AND OWNERSHIP OF DIGITAL DATA 
§ 2.1 The transmission of Digital Data constitutes a warranty by the Party transmitting Digital Data to the Party receiving 
Digital Data that the transmitting Party is the copyright owner of the Digital Data, or otherwise has permission to transmit 
the Digital Data for its use on the Project in accordance with the Authorized Uses of Digital Data established pursuant to 
the terms of this Exhibit. 
 
§ 2.2 If a Party transmits Confidential Digital Data, the transmission of such Confidential Digital Data constitutes a 
warranty to the Party receiving such Confidential Digital Data that the transmitting Party is authorized to transmit the 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
3 


 


Confidential Digital Data. If a Party receives Confidential Digital Data, the receiving Party shall keep the Confidential 
Digital Data strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person or entity except as set forth in Section 2.2.1. 
 
§ 2.2.1 The receiving Party may disclose Confidential Digital Data as required by law or court order, including a subpoena 
or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity. The receiving Party may also disclose 
the Confidential Digital Data to its employees, consultants or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and 
exclusively for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the 
disclosure and use of Confidential Digital Data as set forth in this Exhibit. 
 
§ 2.3 By transmitting Digital Data, the transmitting Party does not convey any ownership right in the Digital Data or in the 
software used to generate the Digital Data. Unless otherwise granted in a separate license, the receiving Party’s right to 
use, modify, or further transmit Digital Data is specifically limited to designing, constructing, using, maintaining, altering 
and adding to the Project consistent with the terms of this Exhibit, and nothing contained in this Exhibit conveys any other 
right to use the Digital Data. 
 
§ 2.4 Where a provision in this Article 2 conflicts with a provision in the Agreement into which this Exhibit is 
incorporated, the provision in this Article 2 shall prevail. 
 
ARTICLE 3 DIGITAL DATA PROTOCOLS 
§ 3.1 Anticipated Types of Digital Data. The anticipated types of Digital Data to be used on the Project are as follows: 
(Indicate below the information on the Project that shall be created and shared in a digital format. If the Parties indicate 
that Building Information Modeling will be utilized on the Project, the Parties shall also complete Article 4.) 
 


Anticipated Digital Data Applicability  
to the Project 
(Indicate Applicable 
or Not Applicable) 


Location of Detailed Description 
(Section 3.1.1 below or in an 
attachment to this exhibit and 
identified below) 


Project Agreements and Modifications Applicable  
Project communications Applicable  
Architect’s pre-construction submittals  Applicable  
Contract Documents Applicable  
Contractor’s submittals Applicable  
Subcontractor’s submittals Applicable  
Modifications Applicable  
Project payment documents Not Applicable  
Notices and claims Not Applicable  
Building Information Modeling Applicable  
   


 
§ 3.1.1 Insert a detailed description of the anticipated Digital Data identified in Section 3.1, if not further described in an 
attachment to this Exhibit. 
 
See Attachment 1, BIM Project Execution Plan 
 
§ 3.2 As soon as practical following execution of the Agreement, the Parties shall further describe the uses of Digital Data, 
and establish necessary protocols governing the transmission and Authorized Uses of Digital Data, in consultation with the 
other Project Participants that are expected to utilize Digital Data on the Project. 
 
§ 3.2.1 Unless another Project Participant is identified below, the Architect shall prepare and distribute to the other Project 
Participants Digital Data protocols for review, revision and approval. 
(If a Project Participant other than the Architect shall be responsible for preparing draft and final Digital Data protocols, 
identify that Project Participant.) 
 
NA 
 
§ 3.2.2 The agreed upon Digital Data protocols shall be set forth in AIA Document G201–2013 and each Project 
Participant shall memorialize their agreement in writing to such Digital Data protocols. 
 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
4 


 


§ 3.2.3 The Parties, together with the other Project Participants, shall review and, if necessary, revise the Digital Data 
protocols at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Project. 
 
§ 3.3 The Parties shall transmit, use, store and archive Digital Data in accordance with the Digital Data protocols set forth 
in the latest version of AIA Document G201–2013 agreed to by the Project Participants. 
 
§ 3.4 Unauthorized Use 
§ 3.4.1 Prior to Establishment of Digital Data Protocols 
If a Party receives Digital Data prior to the agreement to, and documentation of, the Digital Data protocols in AIA 
Document G201–2013, that Party is not authorized to use or rely on the Digital Data. Any use of, or reliance on, such 
Digital Data is at that Party’s sole risk and without liability to the other Party and its contractors, consultants, agents and 
employees. 
 
§ 3.4.2 Following Establishment of Digital Data Protocols 
Following agreement to, and documentation of, the Digital Data protocols in AIA Document G201–2013, if a Party uses 
Digital Data inconsistent with the Authorized Uses identified in the Digital Data protocols, that use shall be at the sole risk 
of the Party using the Digital Data. 
  
§ 3.5 Digital Data Management  
§ 3.5.1 Centralized electronic document management system use on the Project shall be:  
(Check the appropriate box. If the Parties do not check one of the boxes below, the default selection shall be that the 
Parties will not utilize a centralized electronic document management system on the Project.) 
 


[X] The Parties intend to use a centralized electronic document management system on the Project. 
 
[   ] The Parties do not intend to use a centralized electronic document management system on the Project. 


 
§ 3.5.2 If the Project Participants intend to utilize a centralized electronic document management system on the Project, the 
Project Participants identified in Section 3.5.3 shall be responsible for managing and maintaining such system. The Project 
Participants responsible for managing and maintaining the centralized electronic document management system shall 
facilitate the establishment of protocols for transmission, use, storage and archiving of the centralized Digital Data and 
assist the Project Participants identified in Section 3.2.1 above in preparing Digital Data protocols. Upon agreement to, and 
documentation of, the Digital Data protocols in AIA Document G201–2013, the Project Participants identified in Section 
3.5.3 shall manage and maintain the centralized electronic document management system consistent with the management 
protocols set forth in the latest version of G201–2013 approved by the Project Participants. 
 
§ 3.5.3 Unless responsibility is assigned to another Project Participant, the Architect shall be responsible for managing and 
maintaining the centralized electronic document management system. If the responsibility for management and 
maintenance will be assigned to another Project Participant at an identified Project milestone, indicate below the Project 
Participant who shall assume that responsibility, and the Project milestone. 
(Identify the Project Participant responsible for management and maintenance only if the Parties intend to utilize a 
centralized electronic document management system on the Project.) 
 


Responsible Project Participant Project Milestone 
NA NA 


 
ARTICLE 4 BUILDING INFORMATION MODELING PROTOCOLS 
§ 4.1 If the Parties indicate in Section 3.1 that Building Information Modeling will be used on the Project, specify below 
the extent to which the Parties intend to utilize Building Information Modeling and identify the provisions of this Article 4 
governing such use: 
 


[   ] The Parties shall utilize Building Information Modeling on the Project for the sole purpose of fulfilling 
the obligations set forth in the Agreement without an expectation that the Model will be relied upon by 
the other Project Participants. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any use of, transmission of, or reliance 
on the Model is at the receiving Party’s sole risk. The remaining sections of this Article 4 shall have no 
force or effect. 


 
[X] The Parties shall develop, share, use and rely upon the Model in accordance with Sections 4.2 through 


4.10 of this Exhibit. 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
5 


 


 
§ 4.2 Anticipated Building Information Modeling Scope. Indicate below the portions of the Project for which Modeling 
will be used and the anticipated Project Participant responsible for that Modeling. 
 


Project Portion for Modeling  Responsible Project Participant 
Building Architecture Architect 
Structural Components Structural Engineer 
Mechanical Systems Mechanical Engineer 
Electrical Systems Electrical Engineer 
Plumbing System Plumbing Engineer 
Telecommunications Electrical Engineer 
Site / Earthwork Civil Engineer 
Landscaping Landscape Architect 
Lighting Systems Lighting Designer / Electrical Engineer 
Audio / Visual A/V Engineer / Electrical Engineer 
Acoustics Acoustician / Architect 
 
 


§ 4.3 Anticipated Model Authorized Uses. Indicate below the anticipated Authorized Uses of the Model for the Project, 
which Authorized Uses will be agreed upon by the Project Participants and further described for each LOD in RDG BIM 
Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013. 
 
Design team coordination to facilitate two-dimensional Construction Documents 
Three-dimensional Clash Detection 
Schematic (LOD 100) Cost Estimating 
See Attachment 1, BIM Project Execution Plan for additional information 
Construction Phase reference 
 
§ 4.4 Ancillary Modeling Activities. Indicate additional Modeling activities agreed upon by the Parties, but not to be 
included in RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013, if any. 
(Describe any Modeling activities, such as renderings, animations, performance simulations, or other similar use, 
including the anticipated amount and scope of any such Modeling activities.) 
 
Digital Renderings of exterior as required by the Owner 
 
 
§ 4.5 Modeling Protocols. As soon as practical following execution of the Agreement, the Parties shall, in consultation 
with the other Project Participants that are expected to utilize Building Information Modeling on the Project, further 
describe the Authorized Uses of the Model and establish necessary protocols governing the development of the Model 
utilizing RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013. 
 
§ 4.5.1 The Modeling protocols shall address the following: 


.1 Identification of the Model Element Authors; 


.2 Definition of the various LOD for the Model Elements and the associated Authorized Uses for each defined 
LOD; 


.3 Identification of the required LOD of each Model Element at each identified Project milestone; 


.4 Identification of the construction classification systems to be used on the Project; 


.5 The process by which Project Participants will exchange and share the Model at intervals not reflected in 
RDG BIM Project Execution Plan Section 3.3, Model Element Table, of AIA Document G202–2013; 


.6 The process by which the Project Participants will identify, coordinate and resolve changes to the Model; 


.7 Details regarding any anticipated as-designed or as-constructed Authorized Uses for the Model, if required on 
the Project; 


.8  Anticipated Authorized Uses for facilities management or otherwise, following completion of the Project; and 


.9 Other topics to be addressed by the Modeling protocols: (Identify additional topics to be addressed by the 
Modeling Protocols.) 


 
NA 


 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
6 


 


§ 4.5.2 Unless responsibility is assigned to another Project Participant identified below, the Architect shall prepare and 
distribute Modeling protocols to the other Project Participants for review, revision and approval. 
(If a Project Participant other than the Architect shall be responsible for preparing draft and final Modeling protocols, 
identify that Project Participant.) 
 
NA 
 
§ 4.5.3 The agreed upon Modeling protocols shall be set forth in RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–
2013 and each Project Participant shall memorialize their agreement in writing to such Modeling protocols. 
 
§ 4.5.4 The Parties, together with the other Project Participants, shall review, and if necessary, revise the Modeling 
protocols at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Project. 
 
§ 4.6 The Parties shall develop, use and rely on the Model in accordance with the Modeling protocols set forth in the latest 
version of RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013, which document shall be included in or attached 
to the Model in a manner clearly accessible to the Project Participants. 
 
§ 4.7 Unauthorized Use 
§ 4.7.1 Prior to Establishment of Modeling Protocols 
If a Party receives any Model prior to the agreement to, and documentation of, the Modeling protocols in RDG BIM 
Project Execution Plan AIA Document G202–2013, that Party is not authorized to use, transmit, or rely on the Model. Any 
use, transmission or reliance is at that Party’s sole risk and without liability to the other Party and its contractors, 
consultants, agents and employees. 
 
§ 4.7.2 Following Establishment of Modeling Protocols 
Following agreement to, and documentation of, the Modeling protocols in RDG BIM Project Execution Plan AIA 
Document G202–2013, if a Party uses or relies on the Model inconsistent with the Authorized Uses identified in the 
Modeling protocols, such use or reliance shall be at the sole risk of the Party using or relying on the Model. A Party may 
rely on the Model Element only to the extent consistent with the minimum data required for the identified LOD, even if the 
content of a specific Model Element includes data that exceeds the minimum data required for the identified LOD. 
 
§ 4.8 Model Management  
§ 4.8.1 The requirements for managing the Model include the duties set forth in this Section 4.8. Unless assigned to 
another Project Participant, the Architect shall manage the Model from the inception of the Project. If the responsibility for 
Model management will be assigned to another Project Participant, or change at an identified Project milestone, indicate 
below the identity of the Project Participant who will assume that responsibility, and the Project milestone. 
 


Responsible Project Participant Project Milestone 
NA NA 


 
§ 4.8.2 Model Management Protocol Establishment. The Project Participant responsible for managing the Model, in 
consultation with the other Project Participants that are expected to utilize Building Information Modeling on the Project, 
shall facilitate the establishment and revision of Model management protocols, including the following: 


.1 Model origin point, coordinate system, precision, file formats and units 


.2 Model file storage location(s)  


.3 Processes for transferring and accessing Model files 


.4 Naming conventions 


.5 Processes for aggregating Model files from varying software platforms 


.6 Model access rights 


.7 Identification of design coordination and clash detection procedures. 


.8 Model security requirements 


.9 Other: (Identify additional Model management protocols to be addressed.) 
 


NA 
 
§ 4.8.3 Ongoing Responsibilities. The Project Participant responsible for managing the Model shall do so consistent with 
the Model management protocols, which shall also include the following ongoing responsibilities: 


.1 Collect incoming Models: 
.1 Coordinate submission and exchange of Models 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
7 


 


.2 Create and maintain a log of Models received 


.3 Review Model files for consistency with Sections 4.8.2.1 through 4.8.2.5 


.4 Maintain a record copy of each Model file received 
.2 Aggregate Model files and make them available for Authorized Uses  
.3 Maintain Model Archives and backups consistent with the requirements of Section 4.8.4 below 
.4 Manage Model access rights 
.5 Other: (Identify additional responsibilities.)  


 
NA 


 
§ 4.8.4 Model Archives. The individual or entity responsible for Model management as set forth in this Section 4.8 shall 
compile a Model Archive at the end of each Project milestone and shall preserve it without alteration as a record of Model 
completion as of that Project milestone. 
 
§ 4.8.4.1 Additional Model Archive requirements, if any, are as follows: 
 
NA 
 
§ 4.8.4.2 The procedures for storing and preserving the Model(s) upon final completion of the Project are as follows: 
 
Model(s) shall be preserved and stored for a minimum of twelve (12) months from date of Substantial Completion. 
 
§ 4.9 Post-Construction Model. The services associated with providing a Model for post-construction use shall only be 
required if specifically designated in the table below as a Party’s responsibility. 
(Designate below any anticipated post-construction Model and related requirements, the Project Participant responsible 
for creating or adapting the Model to achieve such uses, and the location of a detailed description of the anticipated scope 
of services to create or adapt the Model as necessary to achieve such uses.) 
 


Post-Construction Model Applicability  
to Project 
(Applicable or Not 
Applicable) 


Responsible 
Project 
Participant 


Location of Detailed Description of 
Requirements and Services 
(Section 4.10 below or in an 
attachment to this exhibit and 
identified below) 


§ 4.9.1 Remodeling NA   
§ 4.9.2 Wayfinding and Mapping NA   
§ 4.9.3 Asset/FF & E Management NA   
§ 4.9.4 Energy Management NA   
§ 4.9.5 Space Management NA   
§ 4.9.6 Maintenance Management NA   
    


 
§ 4.10 Insert a detailed description of the requirements for each Post-Construction Model identified in Section 4.9 and the 
anticipated services necessary to create each Post-Construction Model, if not further described in an attachment to this 
Exhibit. 
 
NA 
 
ARTICLE 5 OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Other terms and conditions related to the transmission and use of Digital Data are as follows: 
 
NA 
 
ARTICLE 6 SCOPE OF EXHIBIT 
§ 6.1 This Exhibit is comprised of the following documents: 


.1 AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit as modified by RDG 
IA Inc and Consultant 


.2 AIA Document G201™–2013, Project Digital Data Protocol Form as modified by RDG IA Inc and 
Consultant attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit D1 to this E203 







 


AIA Document E203™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
8 


 


.3 RDG BIM Project Execution Plan as modified by RDG IA Inc and Consultant attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit D2 to this AIA E203 


 







Exhibit D1 to this AIA E203 


AIA Document G201™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
1 


 


AIA  Document G201™– 2013 
Project Digital Data Protocol Form 
 
 
PROJECT: (Name and address) 
Carroll Recreation Center, Building Improvements Projects 2021 
Carroll, Iowa 
 
PROTOCOL VERSION NUMBER: 001 
DATE: February 17, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Brad Rodenburg, AIA 
DISTRIBUTION TO: (List each individual to whom this protocol is distributed. Include individuals listed in Section 1.2, 
or reference Section 1.2, along with any additional recipients.) 
Individuals to be determined; list will include at least one member of each consultant firm with signed AIA C401 contract.  
 
 
TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 GENERAL PROVISIONS REGARDING USE OF DIGITAL DATA 
 
2 DIGITAL DATA MANAGEMENT PROTOCOLS 
 
3 TRANSMISSION AND USE OF DIGITAL DATA 
 
ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS REGARDING USE OF DIGITAL DATA 
§ 1.1 List each Project Participant that has incorporated AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and 
Digital Data Exhibit, dated February 19, 2021, into its agreement for the Project:  
 
Project Participant Discipline 
Brad Stork, PE Structural Engineer 
Andrew Faust, PE Structural Engineer 
Chad Bass, PE Mechanical Engineer 
Nick Johnson, PE Electrical Engineer 
Noah Dryden, PE Civil Engineer 
Others may be added, to be determined, to the consultant team 
 
§ 1.2 Project Participants. For each Project Participant listed in Section 1.1, identify and provide contact information for 
the individuals responsible for implementation of the Digital Data protocols. 
 
Project Participant Individual Responsible Contact Information 
Brad Stork, PE  
Andrew Faust, PE  
Chad Bass, PE  
Nick Johnson, PE  
Noah Dryden, PE  
Others may be added, to be determined, to the consultant team 
  
 
§ 1.3 Terms in this document shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document E203–2013. 
 
ARTICLE 2 DIGITAL DATA MANAGEMENT PROTOCOLS 
§ 2.1.1 Electronic Document Management System. If, pursuant to Section 3.5.1 of the Project specific version of AIA 
Document E203–2013, the Project Participants indicated an intent to use a centralized electronic document management 
system on the Project, the requirements for the centralized electronic document management system are as follows:  







 


AIA Document G201™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
2 


 


(The requirements for the system shall address, among other things, access to and security of Digital Data.) 
 
Newforma Info Exchange (Project Document Management) 
Autodesk BIM 360 (Cloud Model Management) 
 
§ 2.1.2 System Startup Requirements. Initial training and other startup requirements to be implemented with respect to 
the use or management of Digital Data, if any, are as follows: 
(Describe in detail any initial training or other startup requirements.) 
 
Newforma Contact / User Creation (RDG) 
BIM 360 License Purchase (Consultant) 
Autodesk Revit 2020 Software or Current compatible discipline appropriate modeling software. 
 
§ 2.1.3 Ongoing System Requirements. Ongoing training or support programs to be implemented with respect to the use 
or management of Digital Data, if any, are as follows: 
(Describe in detail any ongoing training or support programs to be implemented.) 
 
BIM 360 License Renewal as Required (Consultant) 
Autodesk Revit Upgrade/Update as required based on project duration and phase (Consultant) 
 
§ 2.2 Digital Data Storage Requirements. The procedures and requirements for storing Digital Data during the course of 
the Project, if any, are as follows: 
(Describe in detail the procedures and requirements for storing Digital Data during the course of the Project.) 
 
Data shall be stored in such a way as to minimize impact to the project due to system failure, corruption, or attack. 
 
§ 2.3 Digital Data Archiving Requirements. The procedures and requirements for archiving and preserving Digital Data 
during the course of the Project and following final completion of the Project, if any, are as follows: 
(Describe in detail the procedures and requirements for archiving and preserving Digital Data during the course of the 
Project and following final completion.) 
 
Data shall be archived such that no more than seven (7) days shall pass following a system failure, corruption or attack 
before data shall be recovered in a working state. Data loss shall be no more than the same forty-eight (48) hours of input. 
 
§ 2.4 Other Digital Data Management protocol requirements, if any, are as follows:  
(Describe in detail any other requirements.) 
 
NA 
 
ARTICLE 3 TRANSMISSION AND USE OF DIGITAL DATA 
§ 3.1 Digital Data Protocol Table. The Project Participants shall comply with the data formats, transmission methods and 
Authorized Uses set forth in the Digital Data Protocol Table below when transmitting or using Digital Data on the Project.  
(Complete the Digital Data Protocol Table by entering information in the spaces below. Adapt the table to the needs of the 
Project by adding, deleting or modifying the listed Digital Data as necessary. Use Section 3.2 Digital Data Protocol Table 
Definitions and Notes to define abbreviations placed, and to record notes indicated, in the Digital Data Protocol Table.) 
 


Digital Data Digital Data 
Format 


Transmission 
Method 


Authorized 
Uses 


Note Number 
(see Sec. 3.2) 


§ 3.1.1 Project Agreements and Modifications PDF EM S  
§ 3.1.2 Project communications EM EM I  


General communications EM EM I  
Meeting notices PDF EM R/I  
Agendas  PDF EM/NF R/I  
Minutes PDF EM/NF R/I  
Requests for information PDF NF I  
Architect’s Supplemental Instructions PDF NF R/I  


§ 3.1.3 Architect’s pre-construction submittals PDF NF   
Schematic Design Documents PDF NF I  







 


AIA Document G201™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
3 


 


Design Development Documents PDF NF I  
Construction Documents PDF NF I  


§ 3.1.4 Contract Documents     
Architect’s Drawings PDF NF I  
Architect’s Specifications PDF NF I  


§ 3.1.5 Contractor’s submittals     
Product data     


Submitted by Contractor PDF NF M  
Returned by Architect PDF NF I  


Shop drawings     
Submitted by Contractor  PDF NF M  
Returned by Architect  PDF NF I  


§ 3.1.6 Subcontractor’s submittals     
Product data     


Submitted by Subcontractor PDF EM/NF I  
Returned by Contractor PDF EM/NF R  


Shop drawings     
Submitted by Subcontractor  PDF EM/NF I  
Returned by Contractor  PDF EM/NF R  


§ 3.1.7 Modifications     
Requests for proposal PDF/EM NF I  
Architect’s order for a minor change  
in the Work 


PDF/EM EM I  


Proposals PDF NF I  
Construction Change Directives PDF NF I  
Change Orders PDF NF I  


§ 3.1.8 Project payment documents PDF NF M  
§ 3.1.9 Notices and Claims PDF/EM EM/NF I  
§ 3.1.10 Closeout documents PDF NF I/R  


Record documents  PDF NF R  
Operations and Maintenance Manual PDF NF R  


§ 3.1.11 VDC Construction Model     
Design Team Models  RVT NF/B360 I  
Contractor Models NVS NF/B360 M  
Subcontractor Models NVS NF/B360 M  


 
§ 3.2 Digital Data Protocol Table Definitions and Notes 
 
Digital Data Format: 
(Provide required data format, including software version, if applicable.) 
 


Digital Data Format Definition 
PDF Adobe Acrobat Portable Document Format 
RVT Autodesk Revit Model 
XLSX Microsoft Excel Document 
DOCX Microsoft Word Document 
EM Electronic Mail 
NVS Autodesk Navisworks 


 
Transmission Method: 
(Below are suggested abbreviations and definitions. Delete, modify or supplement, as necessary.) 
 


Abbreviation Definition 
EM Via e-mail 
NF Newforma Info Exchange 
PCR Procore 
B360 Autodesk BIM 360 







 


AIA Document G201™-2013. Copyright © 2013 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.  
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. 


 
4 


 


BOX box content storage solutions 
 
Authorized Uses of Digital Data: 
(Below are suggested abbreviations and definitions. Delete, modify or supplement, as necessary.) 
 


Abbreviation Definition 
I Integrate (incorporate additional digital data without modifying data received) 
M Modify as required to fulfill obligations for the Project 
R Reproduce and distribute 
S Store and view only 


 
Notes: 
(List by number shown on table.) 
 
NA 







 


 
 


Exhibit D2 to this AIA E203 
 


RDG BIM Project Execution Plan 
 


RDG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue  Tel  515.288.3141 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309  Fax 515.288.8631                            www.rdgusa.com                             RDG IA Inc 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 


Project Phase: Schematic Design 
Date:  March 1, 2021 
RDG Project Number.: 3003.272.01 


Carroll Recreation Center,                                      
Building Improvements Project 2021 
City of Carroll, Iowa 
 
716 N. Grant Street, Carroll, IA 51401 
 
 
 
 
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager 
627 N. Adams Street, Carroll, IA  51401 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 1 
 
 


  


 


  







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 2 
 
 


  


1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................................... 3 


A. Overview .................................................................................................................................................................... 3 


B. Disclaimers and Clarifications (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED) ............................................................................................. 3 


2. PROJECT OVERVIEW ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 


A. Project Information ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 


B. Contact Information .................................................................................................................................................... 3 


1) Main Contacts ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 


2) Team Information ................................................................................................................................................... 3 


C. Project Details ............................................................................................................................................................ 4 


1) File Naming Conventions ........................................................................................................................................ 4 


2) Project Specific Goals and Requirements ............................................................................................................... 4 


3) Software Use and Versions ..................................................................................................................................... 4 


D. Information Exchange & Scheduling............................................................................................................................ 5 


1) Exchange / Collaboration Environment ................................................................................................................... 5 


2) Project Phases / Milestones ................................................................................................................................... 5 


3. MODELING STRATEGY ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 


A. Level of Development (LOD) ........................................................................................................................................ 5 


B. Revit Worksets ........................................................................................................................................................... 7 


C. Design Options ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 


D. Levels ........................................................................................................................................................................ 8 


E. Project Units ............................................................................................................................................................... 8 


F. Project Origin and Coordinate System ......................................................................................................................... 8 


G. Phasing (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED) .............................................................................................................................. 8 


H. Modeling Deviations ................................................................................................................................................... 8 


I. Workflow Issue Strategy ............................................................................................................................................. 9 


4. QUALITY CONTROL PROTOCOLS ...................................................................................................................................... 9 


A. Virtual Coordination .................................................................................................................................................... 9 


1) Digital Building Review .......................................................................................................................................... 9 


2) Clash Review ......................................................................................................................................................... 9 


3) Virtual Coordination Report Management ............................................................................................................. 10 


4) Virtual Coordination Schedule .............................................................................................................................. 11 


5. AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................................................................. 11 


A. Sign Off (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED) ............................................................................................................................ 11 


6. GLOSSARY OF TERMS ................................................................................................................................................... 12 


  







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 3 
 
 


  


1. INTRODUCTION 


A. Overview 
This BIM Project Execution Plan (BIM PEP) is intended to provide the Project Team with an understanding of agreed upon 
expectations with regards to the BIM process, including opportunities for clarity and effective collaboration among 
participants. This document establishes an agreement by the project participants to the BIM process, as well document 
project specific workflows if any for specific team members. The BIM PEP shall be reviewed at every major milestone 
submission to determine if adjustments need to be made based on changes in project scope or schedule.  


B. Disclaimers and Clarifications (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED) 
[Client can insert disclaimer or Owner BIM PEP document references here.] 


2. PROJECT OVERVIEW 


A. Project Information 
PROJECT NAME Project Name 
PROJECT OWNER Project Owner 
OWNER REPRESENTATIVE Owner Representative 
ADDRESS Project Address 
CONTRACT TYPE Design-Bid-Build / Design-Build 
DELIVERY METHOD CMc / CMa / GC 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Project Description 
Site Area: 
Applicable Codes: 


B. Contact Information 


1) Main Contacts 
The following table identifies the primary point of contact, within each organization, responsible for BIM process during 
the project. Members may fill multiple project roles. Please refer to next section for detailed contact information. 


DESIGN PHASE BIM ROLE ORGANIZATION LOCATION(S) CONTACT TIME ZONE 
ARCHITECT RDG Planning & Design Des Moines   
STRUCTURAL     
MECHANICAL     
ELECTRICAL     
LANDSCAPE RDG Planning & Design Des Moines   
CIVIL     
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER     
COST ESTIMATOR     
ACOUSTICS     
LIGHTING DESIGN RDG Planning & Design Des Moines   


2) Team Information 
Roles are defined as follows 


PROJECT MANAGER (PM) Individuals overseeing the project. 
BIM MANAGER (BM) Individuals responsible for agreed model standard enforcement and performing 


information exchanges as defined in this document. 
JOB CAPTAIN (JC) Individuals intimately familiar with model production. Contacted if information 


regarding specific modeling practices or workflows is required. 
DISCIPLINE LEAD (DL) Project’s design Architect or Engineer. 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 4 
 
 


  


DISCIPLINE ROLE NAME EMAIL PHONE 
ARCHITECTURE PM   ###-###-#### 
ARCHITECTURE DL    
ARCHITECTURE BM    
ARCHITECTURE JC    
INTERIOR DL    
INTERIOR JC    
STRUCTURAL DL    
STRUCTURAL JC    
STRUCTURAL BM    
MECHANICAL DL    
MECHANICAL BM    
MECHANICAL  JC    
ELECTRICAL DL    
ELECTRICAL BM    
ELECTRICAL JC    


C. Project Details 


1) File Naming Conventions 
DISCIPLINE FILE NAME 


ARCHITECTURAL File Name_R20_ARCH 
INTERIORS File Name_R##_INT 
STRUCTURAL File Name_R##_STRUCT 
MECHANICAL File Name_R##_MECH 
ELECTRICAL File Name_R##_ELEC 
PLUMBING File Name_R##_PLMB 
CIVIL File Name_R##_CIVIL 


2) Project Specific Goals and Requirements 
GOAL / REQUIREMENT MEANS OF ACHIEVING RESPONSIBILITY SOFTWARE 
CLASH DETECTION Resolve 3D clashes for major scopes. Design Team Navisworks 
2D DRAWINGS None.   
CIVIL / TOPO Provide 3D surfaces for use in coordination. Civil / LA Navisworks 


3) Software Use and Versions 
DESIGN 


BIM USE USER SOFTWARE VERSION (BUILD) 
DESIGN AUTHORING ARCHITECTURAL REVIT 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING INTERIOR REVIT 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING STRUCTURAL REVIT 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING MECHANICAL REVIT 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING ELECTRICAL REVIT 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING CIVIL CIVIL 3D 2020 
DESIGN AUTHORING LANDSCAPE CIVIL 3D / REVIT 2020 
COST ESTIMATION CONSTRUCTION MANAGER REVIT / EXCEL 2020 / LATEST 
CONTRACTOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER REVIT, NAVISWORKS 2020 / 2020 


During the project, new versions of application software may become available. Upgrading of models or Digital Data to 
newer versions should be reviewed with all team members to ensure compatibility. When an upgrade is beneficial to the 
project, a protocol will be developed, tested, and outlined in this document and performed by all team members. 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 5 
 
 


  


D. Information Exchange & Scheduling 


1) Exchange / Collaboration Environment 
EXCHANGE DELIVERABLE MEANS FREQUENCY 


COLLABORATION 
Design Team 


REVIT BIM 360 PERPETUAL 


PROGRESS REVIEW 
Design Team to Owner 


PDF NEWFORMA REFER TO PHASE / MILESTONE SCHEDULE 


VIRTUAL COORDINATION 
Consultants to Architect 


REVIT BIM 360 PERPETUAL 


MILESTONE SUBMISSIONS 
Design Team to Owner 


PDF NEWFORMA REFER TO PHASE / MILESTONE SCHEDULE 


COST ESTIMATE 
To Design Team & Owner 


REVIT / PDF NEWFORMA REFER TO PHASE / MILESTONE SCHEDULE 


2) Project Phases / Milestones 
PHASE / MILESTONE ANTICIPATED DURATION SUBMISSION COST ESTIMATE 


PROGRAMMING  X  
SCHEMATIC DESIGN  X X 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT  X X 
50% CD   X 
90% CD    
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS  X  
CONFORMANCE SET  X  
CONSTRUCTION  X  
RECORD DOCUMENTS  X  


3. MODELING STRATEGY 


A. Level of Development (LOD) 
The BIMFORUM 2018 Level of Development (LOD) Specification (https://bimforum.org/lod/) is a reference that enables 
practitioners in the AEC Industry to specify and articulate with a high level of clarity the content and reliability of Building 
Information Models (BIMs) at various stages in the design and construction process. The LOD Specification utilizes the 
basic LOD definitions developed by the AIA for the AIA G202-2013 Building Information Modeling Protocol Form and is 
organized by CSI Uniformat 2010. It defines and illustrates characteristics of model elements of different building systems 
at different Levels of Development. 
(C – Civil, L – Landscape, A – Architect, S – Structural, M – Mechanical, E – Electrical, P – Plumbing, GC – Contractor) 


MODEL ELEMENTS SCHEMATIC 
DESIGN 


DESIGN 
DEVELOPMENT 


CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS 


CONSTRUCTION 


 LOD MEA LOD MEA LOD MEA LOD MEA 
SUBSTRUCTURE         
Foundations 100 S 200 S 300 S 400  
Slab on Grade 100 A 200 S 300 S 400  
Basement Excavation 100 A 200 S 300 S 400  
SHELL         
Floor Construction 100 A 200 S 300 S 300  
Roof Construction 100 A 200 S 300 S 300  
Exterior Walls 100 A 200 A 300 A/S 300  
Exterior Windows 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Exterior Doors 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  



https://bimforum.org/lod/





BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 6 
 
 


  


Roof Covering 100 A 200 A 300 A 300  
Roof Openings 100 A 200 A/S 300 A/S 300  
INTERIORS         
Partitions 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Interior Doors 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Fittings / Hardware 100 A 100 A 100 A 400  
Stair Construction 100 A 200 A/S 200 A/S 400  
Stair Finishes 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
Wall Finishes 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
Floor Finishes 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
Ceiling Finishes 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
SERVICES         
Elevators 100 A 200 A/E 300 A/E 400  
Escalators 100 A 200 A/E 300 A/E 400  
Conveying Systems 100 A 200 A/E 300 A/E 400  
Plumbing Fixtures 100 A 200 P/A 300 P/A 400  
Domestic Water 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Sanitary Waste 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Rain Water Drainage 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Other Plumbing 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Energy Supply 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Heating 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Cooling 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Distribution 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Terminal Units 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Controls 100 M 100 M 100 M 100  
Tab 100 M 100 M 100 M 100  
Other HVAC 100 M 200 M 300 M 400  
Sprinklers 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Standpipes 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Fire Protection 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Other Fire Protection 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Electrical Service 100 P 200 P 300 P 400  
Lighting 100 E 200 E 300 E 400  
Branch Wiring 100 E 200 E 300 E 400  
Communications 100 E 100 E 100 E 100  
Security 100 E 100 E 100 E 100  
Other Electrical 100 E 100 E 100 E 100  
EQUIPMENT         
Commercial 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Institutional 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Vehicular 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Other Equip 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Fixed Furniture 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Movable Furniture 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION         
Special Structures 100 A 200 S/A 300 S/A 400  
Integrated Const 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Special Const Sys 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 7 
 
 


  


Special Facilities 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Special Controls 100 A 100 A/E 100 A/E 100  
Building Elem Demo 100 A 200 A 300 A 400  
Hazardous Abatement 100 A 100 A 100 A 100  
BUILDING SITEWORK         
Clearing 100 A/C 100 C 100 C 100  
Demolition 100 A/C 200 A/C 300 A/C 300  
Earthwork 100 C 200 C 300 C 300  
Haz Remediation 100 C 100 C 100 C 100  
Roadways 100 C 100 C 300 C 300  
Parking Lots 100 C 100 C 300 C 300  
Pedestrian Paving 100 L/C 100 L 300 L 300  
Site Development 100 L/C 100 L/C 300 L/C 300  
Landscaping 100 L 100 L 300 L 300  
Water Supply 100 C 100 C 300 C 400  
Sanitary Sewer 100 C 100 C 300 C 400  
Storm Sewer 100 C 100 C 300 C 400  
Heating Distribution 100 C/M 100 C/M 300 C/M 400  
Cooling Distribution 100 C/M 100 C/M 300 C/M 400  
Fuel Distribution 100 C/M 100 C/M 300 C/M 400  
Other Civil 100 C 100 C 300 C 400  
Elect Distribution 100 C/E 100 C/E 300 C/E 400  
Lighting 100 C/E 100 C/E 300 C/E 400  
Commination 100 C/E 100 C/E 300 C/E 400  
Security 100 C/E 100 C/E 300 C/E 400  
Other Electrical 100 C/E 100 C/E 300 C/E 400  
Service Tunnels 100 C/S 100 C/S 300 C/S 400  
Other Site 100 C 100 C 300 C 400  


B. Revit Worksets 
DISCIPLINE WORKSET CONTENT 


ARCHITECTURAL -LINK-ARCHITECTURAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIT LINK 
ARCHITECTURAL -LINK-REF-DWG AUTOCAD (2D) CONTENT 
ARCHITECTURAL -LINK-REF-LIGHTING LIGHTING REVIT LINK 
ARCHITECTURAL -LINK-REF-MEP MECHANICAL / ELECTRICAL REVIT LINKS 
ARCHITECTURAL -LINK-REF-STRUCTURAL STRUCTURAL REVIT LINK 
ARCHITECTURAL A-EQUIPMENT CONTRACTOR FURNISHED EQUIPMENT 
ARCHITECTURAL A-EXTERIOR EXTERIOR ELEMENTS (ROOF, FACADE) 
ARCHITECTURAL A-FINISHES FINISH ELEMENTS 
ARCHITECTURAL A-FLOOR FINISHES MODELED FLOOR FINISHES 
ARCHITECTURAL A-FURNITURE FURNITURE / EQUIPMENT 
ARCHITECTURAL A-INTERIOR INTERIOR ELEMENTS (WALLS, DOORS) 
ARCHITECTURAL A-NOT IN CONTRACT OWNER FURNISHED FF&E / EQUIPMENT 
ARCHITECTURAL A-ROOMS ROOM ELEMENTS 
ARCHITECTURAL A-SHARED LEVELS AND GRIDS LEVELS AND GRIDS 
STRUCTURAL S-FLOORS STRUCTURAL SLABS / FLOORS 
STRUCTURAL S-FOUNDATIONS STRUCTURAL FOOTING / FOUNDATIONS 
STRUCTURAL S-FRAMING STRUCTURAL FAMING (BEAM / COLUMN) 
STRUCTURAL S-WALLS STRUCTURAL WALLS 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 8 
 
 


  


STRUCTURAL S-SHARED LEVELS AND GRIDS STRUCTURAL GRIDS / LEVELS 
MECHANICAL M-DUCTWORK MECHANICAL DUCTWORK / GRILLE / REG 
MECHANICAL M-EQUIPMENT MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT / UNITS 
MECHANICAL M-PIPING MECHANICAL PIPING (HW / CW) 
ELECTRICAL E-EQUIPMENT ELECTRICAL DEVICES / PANELS 
ELECTRICAL E-FIXTURES ELECTRICAL FIXTURES 
LIGHTING E-LIGHTING LIGHTING FIXTURES / CONTROLS 
PLUMBING P-EQUIPMENT PLUMBING EQUIPMENT 
PLUMBING P-FIXTURES PLUMBING FIXTURES 
PLUMBING P-PIPING PLUMBING PIPING 
FIRE PROTECTION F-DEVICES FIRE PROTECTION DEVICES 
FIRE PROTECTION F-PIPING FIRE PROTECTION PIPING 
TELECOM T-TELECOM TELECOM DEVICES / EQUIPMENT 
AUDIO / VISUAL V-AUDIO VISUAL AV DEVICES / SCREENS / CONTROLS 


C. Design Options 
These are the design options that will be present in all models, with the same naming and the same phase. 


OPTION NAME DESCRIPTION PHASE 
   
   


D. Levels 
These are levels that will be present in all models, with the same naming and at the same elevation. 


LEVEL NAME (REVIT) DESCRIPTION ELEVATION (PROJECT) ELEVATION (SITE) 
LEVEL 0 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 0 -15’-0” 585’-0” 
LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 1 0’-0” 600’-0” 
LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 2 15’-0” 615’-0” 
ROOF ROOF PLAN 45’-0” 645’-0” 


E. Project Units 
All project files are to use Imperial units rounded to 1/256” by default. 


F. Project Origin and Coordinate System 
The Architectural consultant will define insertion point to be followed by the rest of the Design team. Linking of projects 
will use the Architectural model as a base by linking Origin to Origin or by Shared Coordinates. 


DESIGN 
[INSERT IMAGE AND DESCRIPTION OF] 


 
KNOWN REFERENCE POINT LOCATION (GRID A-1) 


TRUE NORTH & PROJECT NORTH 
When building a Federated Model, it is required that all component models utilize the same geo referencing as the Design 
Revit Models. 


G. Phasing (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED) 
[Design Consultants should use this space to document the phases used in the various Revit project files. Delete 
if not applicable to the project.] 


H. Modeling Deviations 
Design phase modeling tolerances are understood to be reflective of design intent. Deviations should be noted below. 


ITEMS NOT ACCURATE FOR REASON / EXPLANATION 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 9 
 
 


  


CATEGORY OR DESCRIPTION 
[STRUCTURAL REINFORCEMENT AND 
CONNECTIONS, BASE PLATES] 


CLASH DETECTION, COUNT, 
ESTIMATING 


NOT MODELED, DETAILED, LOD 


MOTORS 3D CLASH 2D FAMILY BEING USED 
METRIC ELEMENTS 3D CLASH  
WALL EXTENTS 3D CLASH, ESTIMATING LOD 
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATING LACK OF INFORMATION 


I. Workflow Issue Strategy 
In the table below, establish agreed work flows to avoid commonly encountered issues during Design and Build phases. 


ISSUE PROPOSED SOLUTION 
ARCHITECTURAL AND PLUMBING FIXTURES 
(DUPLICATION / COORDINATION) 


 


ARCHITECTURAL AND LIGHT FIXTURES 
(DUPLICATION / COORDINATION) 


 


HOUSEKEEPING PADS (STRUCTURAL / 
MECHANICAL) 


 


EXISTING CONDITIONS MODELING  
MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 
INFORMATION (SEPARATE MODELS) 


 


MECHANICAL AND STRUCTURAL FLOOR / 
WALL PENETRATIONS 


 


ELECTRICAL CONDUIT COORDINATION WITH 
STRUCTURAL (EMBEDDED / PENETRATION) 


 


ARCHITECTURAL AND STRUCTURAL WALLS  
CARD READERS AND DOORS  
WALL FINISH MODELING STRATEGY  
ARCHITECTURAL CEILING GRID  
MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
SERVICE / OPERATIONAL CLEARANCES 


 


AREAS OF PARTICULAR INTEREST IN THIS 
PROJECT? MODELING ISSUES 


 


 


4. QUALITY CONTROL PROTOCOLS 


A. Virtual Coordination 


1) Digital Building Review 
Early in design, a virtual visual walk through the 3D environment of the virtual building can help to resolve potential 
constructability or design issues not highlighted by either a soft or hard clash. Potential issues will be flagged with 
comments for resolution by the appropriate party. A log tracking issues and responsibility will be developed by the 
Architect. 


2) Clash Review 
Hard clashes are clashes that occur due to the physical conflict of two objects not being able to occupy the same space. 
Emphasis will be placed in areas of high congestion of ductwork, piping, or equipment. 
 
Soft clashes are additional clashes set up to account for known clearance requirements that could limit or inhibit the 
adequate construction, maintenance, servicing, or operation of equipment. Mechanical, Electrical, and Specialty 
Equipment will be modeled to include expected serviceable clearance envelopes. 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 10 
 
 


  


 
During design, virtual coordination sessions will be run [by the Architect] to minimize clashes between the different 
models provided by the Design Consultants. Design Consultants will list typical hard clash runs and strategy below. 


HARD CLASH ELEMENTS 100% 
DD 


50% 
CD 


90% 
CD 


RESOLUTION DISCIPLINE 


ARCHITECTURAL v STRUCTURAL STEEL     
ARCHITECTURAL v PLUMBING     
ARCHITECTURAL v MECHANICAL     
ARCHITECTURAL v FIRE PROTECTION     
ARCHITECTURAL v ELECTRICAL     
ARCHITECTURAL v PIPING     
STRUCTURAL STEEL v PLUMBING      
STRUCTURAL STEEL v MECHANICAL     
STRUCTURAL STEEL v FIRE PROTECTION     
STRUCTURAL STEEL v ELECTRICAL     
STRUCTURAL STEEL v PIPING     
MECHANICAL v PLUMBING     
MECHANICAL v MECHANICAL     
MECHANICAL v FIRE PROTECTION     
MECHANICAL v ELECTRICAL     
MECHANICAL v PIPING     


 
SOFT CLASH ELEMENTS 100% 


DD 
50% 
CD 


90% 
CD 


CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS 


MECHANICAL    2” INSULATION MINIMUM 
PLUMBING     
PIPING    2” INSULATION MINIMUM 
STRUCTURAL STEEL FIRE PROOFING    2” FIRE PROOFING 
DOOR ACCESSIBILITY CLEARANCES    60” FRONT, 18” LATCH SIDE 
SERVICE CLEARANCES    48” FRONT, 30” SIDE 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT    48” 
ELECTRICAL PANELS     48” FRONT, 30” SIDE 


3) Virtual Coordination Report Management 
Prior to each virtual coordination meeting, all consultants will make their models available to the entire team, including 
the Architect to develop the virtual coordination report. 
 
During design, the Architect will generate the necessary files from the provided models to generate an aggregated model 
report to facilitate design building review and clash resolution sessions. The report will be shared with the entire team. 
The responsibility for resolving issues resides with the Discipline indicated above. 
 
During the Build phase, the Contractor shall carry on virtual coordination sessions using trade fabrication models. A report 
will be generated by the Contractor and distributed with the entire team at specified intervals. 
 
Virtual coordination results shall be distributed a minimum of three business days before any coordination meetings. 
Within that time, consultants and trades are to comment on any issues that have already been resolved prior to the 
meeting. 


4) Virtual Coordination Schedule 
REVIEW # COORDINATION ACTIVITY DATE RESPONSIBILITY 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 11 
 
 


  


1 REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


2 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


3 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


4 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


5 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


6 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


7 UPDATED REVIT FILES PROVIDED FOR COORDINATION  DESIGNERS 
COORDINATION REPORT GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION  [CONSULTANT] 
COORDINATION RESOLUTION MEETING  DESIGNERS 


5. AGREEMENT 


A. Sign Off (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED – THIS IS ONLY IF NOT PART OF AIA DOC GROUP LIKE B101, C401 ETC) 
By signing below, this BIM Project Execution Plan is herewith adopted and incorporated into the Agreement, dated 
(MM/DD/YYYY) for Professional Design Services 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 
OWNER      DATE 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 
ARCHITECT      DATE 
 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 
STRUCTURAL      DATE 
 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 
MECHANICAL      DATE 
 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 12 
 
 


  


ELECTRICAL      DATE 
 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________________ 
CONTRACTOR      DATE 
 
 
 


6. GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
TERM DEFINITION 


AUTHORIZED USES The term “Authorized Uses” refers to the permitted uses of Digital Data authorized 
in the Digital Data and/or Building Information Modeling protocols. 


BIM BIM (Building Information Model) is a digital representation of the Project, or a 
portion of the Project, and is referred to in this Exhibit as the “Model,” which term 
may be used herein to describe a Model Element, a single model or multiple 
models used in the aggregate, as well as other data sets identified in AIA 
Document G202–2013. 


BUILDING INFORMATION 
MODELING 


Building Information Modeling or Modeling means the process used to create the 
Model. 


CONFIDENTIAL DIGITAL DATA Confidential Digital Data is Digital Data containing confidential or business 
proprietary information that the transmitting party designates and clearly marks as 
“confidential.” 


CONSTRUCTION MODEL An aggregated model (Revit), managed by the Contractor, comprised of multiple 
design, contractor and trade fabrication models as required to enable the 
generation of a virtual coordination environment during construction. 


DESIGN MODEL Individual models (Revit) that are created and maintained exclusively by members 
of the design team. These models are kept current throughout construction 
incorporating all construction changes issued through the Owner’s standard format 
for documenting changes to the work. 


DIGITAL DATA Digital Data is information, including communications, drawings, specifications and 
designs, created or stored for the Project in digital form. Unless otherwise stated, 
the term Digital Data includes the Model. 


FABRICATION MODEL Highly detailed model generated by a trade (non-Revit) to enable prefabrication and 
detailed virtual coordination prior to construction. For example, while a “Design 
Model” for HVAC ductwork will include duct sizes at various elevations, the 
“Fabrication Model” will additional include necessary weld gaps, hangers and 
design tolerances for its fabrication. 


FEDERATED MODEL A single model (non-Revit) that is comprised of multiple models from various 
sources whose identity or integrity cannot be modified through changes made to 
other models. Normally, a federated model is used to bring together “Design 
Model, “Site Model” and “Fabrication Models” into a single environment for virtual 
coordination during Design and Build phases. 


LOD LOD (Level of Development) describes the minimum dimensional, spatial, 
quantitative, qualitative, and other data included in a Model Element to support the 
Authorized Uses associated with such LOD.  


MEA MEA (Model Element Author) is the entity (or individual) responsible for managing 
and coordinating the development of a specific Model Element to the LOD required 
for an identified Project milestone, regardless of who is responsible for providing 
the content in the Model Element.  







BIM project execution plan 
Error! Reference source not found. 


March 1, 2021 Page 13 
 
 


  


MODEL ELEMENT A Model Element is a portion of the Model representing a component, system or 
assembly within a building or building site. 


PROJECT PARTICIPANT A Project Participant is an entity (or individual) providing services, work, equipment 
or materials on the Project and includes the Parties. 


RECORD MODEL Final updated ‘Design Models” (Revit), including changes required by the project 
“Accuracy Table” to reflect the agreed as constructed condition. Models contain 
views, rooms, sheets and schedules used to generate 2D construction documents. 


VIRTUAL COORDINATION Refers to both the Digital Building Review Process (manual) and the Clash Review 
Process (semi-automated) to ensure design is property resolved. 


 







ATTACHMENT 1  


 


Page 1 of 2 


RDG PLANNING & DESIGN 
REVIT PRODUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS 


 


 


CONSULTANT SERVICES - REVIT PRODUCTION 


 


The following information shall be followed for all Consultant’s Autodesk Revit models. A meeting to 


discuss Revit modeling requirements shall be performed in the planning period of the project. The 


following items are broad modeling requirements and specific requirements shall be identified during the 


Revit modeling meeting.  


 


CONSULTANT REVIT GUIDELINES 


 


The Consultant’s models shall use the same Project Base Point, Project Survey Point, and Project North 


established in the Architectural model. There shall not be any required adjustments for the Consultant’s 


models to align when linked by project base point.  


 


The Consultant’s models shall follow the naming conventions and elevations for all Levels and Grids 


established in the Architectural model. The various models need to ensure all the components are placed 


on the desired elevations in respect to the Architectural model. 


 


RDG may require specific Worksets, Element Visibility, and / or Parameters (shared) within the 


Consultant’s model to facilitate information consistency. These specific requirements shall be determined 


during the Revit modeling meeting. 


 


DRAWING NAMING: 


 


 Floor level naming conventions need to follow those established in Architectural model. 


 


Drawing naming and numbering conventions shall follow those established in the Architectural 


model or by RDG DRAWING NUMBERING SYSTEM.  [Example attached]  


 


TITLE BLOCKS: 


 


 Title block updates need to be maintained with Revit model updates. Project titles, project phases, 


 team addresses, project addresses, dates, and copyright dates all need to be updated when Revit 


 models are exchanged.  


 
Title blocks within Consultant’s models are to have the same fonts as established in the Architectural 


model. 


 


MODELING: 


 


Model elements shall be modeled at the correct elevation, size, and location relative to their host 


to a reasonable accuracy or to the extent as specified in the required Level of Development 


(LOD) of the project to facilitate coordination between all Disciplines. 







SHEET NUMBERING FOR A SINGLE BUILDING PROJECT W/ UP TO 9 FLOORS AND ZONES*


*IF PLANS ARE NOT DIVIDED INTO ZONES, THE LAST DIGIT CHANGES TO 0 EXCEPT ENLARGED PLANS


*SHEET NUMBER CAN BE ADJUSTED SLIGHTLY FOR SMALLER PROJECTS OR BY OWNER REQUIREMNTS


** FLOOR AND ZONE BECOME A 2 DIGIT SEQUENCE NUMBER FOR NON-PLAN SHEETS.


***MAY NOT BE USED ON SMALLER PROJECTS WITH SIMPLER PROJECT EQUIPMENT, LIKE LAUNDRY, COPIERS OR APPLIANCES 


COVERS GENERAL CIVIL LANDSCAPE STRUCTURAL ARCHITECTURAL FIRE SUPRESSION PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECH AQUATICS FOOR SERVICE LAB FURNISHINGS FURNITURE
INFO (OPTIONAL) AND OTHER EQUIPMENT FURNISHINGS


G01.01 G02.01 C00.01 L00.01 LS0.01 AQ0.____ FS0.____ LF0.____ F00.____
DRAWING INDEX SURVEY CIVIL NOTES LOCATION PLAN CODE REVIEW
CERTIFICATIONS SITE NOTES


G01.02 C01.01 L01.01 LS0.02 MS0.01 ES0.01 ELS.01
DRAWING INDEX CIVIL DEMOLITION SITE PREPARATION LIFE SAFETY MECHANICAL SITE ELECTRICAL SITE LIGHTING SITE
CERTIFICATIONS PLAN PLAN SITE PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN


G01.03 C02.01 L02.01 LS0.03 MS0.02 ES0.02 ELS.02
DRAWING INDEX POLLUTION SITE LAYOUT LIFE SAFETY MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING
CERTIFICATIONS PREVENTION PLAN PLANS PLANS SITE PLAN SITE PLAN SITE PLAN


C03.01 (OR) L03.01 S00.01 A00.01 FX0.01 P00.01 M00.01 E00.01 EL0.01 FA0.01 T00.01
GRADING GRADING STRUCTURAL ARCHITECTURAL FIRE SUPPRESSION PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECHNOLOGY
PLANS PLANS NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES NOTES


C04.01 L04.01 A00.02
UTILITY PLANTING TYPICAL MOUNTING
PLANS PLANS HEIGHTS


C05.01 L05.01 A00.03
UTILITY SITE MATERIAL
PLAN / PROFILE DETAILS LEGEND


C06.01 A00.10
CIVIL DETAILS WALL TYPES


AD0.11 FXD.10 PD0.11 MD0.11 ED0.11 ELD.11 FAD.11 TD0.11
ARCHITECTURAL FIRE SUPPRESSION PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECHNOLOGY
DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN
LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 OVERALL LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


A01.10 FX0.10 PU0.11 MU0.11
FLOOR PLAN FIRE SUPRESSION PLUMBING MECHANICAL
LEVEL 1 OVERALL LEVEL 1 UNDER FLOOR UNDER FLOOR
AND PHASING (1/16TH SCALE) LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


M00.11
MECHANICAL 
PIPING PLAN
LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


S01.01 A01.11 P01.11 M01.11 E01.11 EL1.11 FA1.11 T01.11 F01.11
FOUNDATIONPLAN FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING PLAN MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING PLAN FIRE ALARM PLAN TECHNOLOGY PLAN FURNITURE PLAN
ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 HVAC PLAN POWER PLAN LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


LEVEL 1 ZONE 1 LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


S02.11 A02.01 P02.01 M02.01 E02.01 EL2.01 FA2.01 T02.01
FLOOR FRAMING PLAN ENLARGED PLANS PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECHNOLOGY
LEVEL 1ZONE 1 ENLARGED PLANS ENLARGED PLANS ENLARGED PLANS ENLARGED PLANS ENLARGED PLANS ENLARGED PLANS


S03.11 A03.11 P03.01 M03.01 E03.01 EL3.01 FA3.01 T03.01
ROOF FRAMING PLAN REFLECTED PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECHNOLOGY
ZONE 1 CEILING PLAN ROOF PLAN ROOF PLAN ROOF PLAN ROOF PLAN DETAILS RISERS AND DETAILS


LEVL 1 ZONE 1


S04.01 A04.11 P04.01 M04.01 E04.01 EL4.01 FA4.01 T04.01
STRUCTURAL ROOF PLAN PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING FIRE ALARM TECHNOLOGY
DETAILS RISERS AND DETAILS DETAILS AND SECTIONS RISERS AND DETAILS DETAILS SCHEDULES SCHEDULES


A05.01 P05.01 M05.01 E05.01 EL5.01
EXTERIOR PLUMBING MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL LIGHTING
ELEVATIONS SCHEDULES SCHEDULES SCHEDULES SCHEDULES


A06.01 M06.01
BUILDING MECHANICAL
SECTIONS CONTROLS


A07.01
WALL SECTIONS


A08.01
VERTICAL CIRCULATION


A09.01
EXTERIOR DETAILS


A10.01
DOOR / WINDOW
SCHDULES


A10.02
DOOR / WINDOW
TYPES


A10.03
DOOR / WINDOW
DETAILS


A10.04
GLAZING ELEVATIONS


A11.01
FINISH SCHEDULES


A11.02
FINSIH NOTES
AND DETAILS


A12.01
INTERIOR ELEVATIONS


A13.01
INTERIOR DETAILS


A14.11
FINISH PLAN
LEVEL 1 ZONE 1


A15.11(***)
EQUIPMENT PLAN
LEVEL1 ZONE 1



cbullis

Text Box

ATTACHMENT 1 - RDG DRAWING NUMBERING SYSTEM







  EXHIBIT E 
 


 modified site-visit protocol 


RDG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue Tel 515.288.3141 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309 Fax 515.288.8631 www.rdgusa.com RDG IA Inc  


 
 
Owner and Architect are dedicated and focused on protecting the safety of their employees and the public and 
following safe practices to slow the spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic event. Owner and Architect 
acknowledge that the pandemic event has rendered certain obligations under the Agreement impossible and/or 
unsafe to perform. Therefore, while the present conditions exist and until otherwise mutually agreed in writing, 
Architect shall use commercially reasonable efforts to conduct all site visits or general construction observation 
services virtually, via Zoom or other video program, instead of in-person. Alternatively, if requested by the Owner, 
Architect will review photographs or videos of the Project in lieu of virtual site visits for general construction 
observation purposes, provided the Contractor represents to the Owner and Architect the designated portion of the 
Work contained in the photographs or videos is representative of the Project conditions, and the Work has been 
constructed in accordance with the Construction Documents. 
 





		Contract for Services Agreement - Carroll Recreation Center Building Improvements Project - 2021

		Rec center track

		Rec center agreement

		Exhibit B.pdf

		ARTICLE 1  GENERAL PROVISIONS

		ARTICLE 2  OWNER

		ARTICLE 3  CONTRACTOR

		ARTICLE 4  ARCHITECT

		ARTICLE 5  SUBCONTRACTORS

		ARTICLE 6  CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

		ARTICLE 7  CHANGES IN THE WORK

		ARTICLE 8  TIME

		ARTICLE 9  PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

		ARTICLE 10  PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

		ARTICLE 11  INSURANCE AND BONDS

		ARTICLE 12  UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

		ARTICLE 13  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

		ARTICLE 14  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

		ARTICLE 15  CLAIMS AND DISPUTES



		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Exhibit D2.pdf

		1. INTRODUCTION

		A. Overview

		B. Disclaimers and Clarifications (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED)



		2. PROJECT OVERVIEW

		A. Project Information

		B. Contact Information

		1) Main Contacts

		2) Team Information



		C. Project Details

		1) File Naming Conventions

		2) Project Specific Goals and Requirements

		3) Software Use and Versions



		D. Information Exchange & Scheduling

		1) Exchange / Collaboration Environment

		2) Project Phases / Milestones





		3. MODELING STRATEGY

		A. Level of Development (LOD)

		B. Revit Worksets

		C. Design Options

		D. Levels

		E. Project Units

		F. Project Origin and Coordinate System

		G. Phasing (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED)

		H. Modeling Deviations

		I. Workflow Issue Strategy



		4. QUALITY CONTROL PROTOCOLS

		A. Virtual Coordination

		1) Digital Building Review

		2) Clash Review

		3) Virtual Coordination Report Management

		4) Virtual Coordination Schedule





		5. AGREEMENT

		A. Sign Off (DELETE IF NOT NEEDED – THIS IS ONLY IF NOT PART OF AIA DOC GROUP LIKE B101, C401 ETC)



		6. GLOSSARY OF TERMS














COUNCIL MEETING 


FEBRUARY 22, 2021 


(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.) 


 


In support of Iowa Governor Kim Reynolds’ proclamation declaring a State of Public 


Health Disaster Emergency in Iowa, the current COVID-19 situation made it “impossible and 


impractical” to meet in one location. Due to this the Carroll City Hall was closed to the public 


for the February 22, 2021 City Council meeting. However, the meeting was held telephonically 


or via Zoom web conferencing. The public was able to hear and participate in the Council 


meeting by calling into a publicly posted phone number.  


The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. in the Council 


Chambers, City Hall, 627 N Adams Street.  Members present: Misty Boes, LaVern Dirkx, Jerry 


Fleshner, Clay Haley, Mike Kots and Carolyn Siemann. Absent: None. Mayor Eric Jensen 


presided.  


* * * * * * * 


The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council.  No Council action taken. 


* * * * * * * 


 It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the following items on the consent 


agenda: a) minutes of the February 8, 2021 Council meeting, as written; b) bills and claims in the 


amount of $557,497.50; c) New Class “C” Liquor License (8 month) with Outdoor Service and 


Sunday Sales – Golf Services, LLC and renewal of Class “E” Liquor License with Class “B” 


Wine Permit (includes Carryout Wine and Native Wine) and Class “C” Beer Permit (includes 


Carryout Beer) and Sunday Sales – Walmart Supercenter #1787; and d) the Mayoral 


appointment of Tim Fitzpatrick to the Historical Preservation Commission for a 3-year term to 


expire December 31, 2023. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None.  Motion carried. 


* * * * * * * 


Mayor Jensen read a proclamation declaring February 23, 2021 as Rotary Day in Carroll 


and wished a Happy 100th Anniversary to the Carroll Rotary Club. No Council action taken. 


* * * * * * * 


Austin Farmer, TheRetailCoach representative, and Shannon Landauer, Carroll Area 


Development Corporation Executive Director, updated Council on the retail work that has been 


done in the city during the oral requests and communications from the audience. No Council 


action taken. 


* * * * * * * 







 


 


It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to approve the second reading of a new 


ordinance that adds a new chapter for Drug Paraphernalia. On roll call, all present voted aye. 


Absent: None. Motion carried. 


* * * * * * * 


It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to approve Resolution No. 21-06, 


Contract with Region XII Council of Governments, Inc. to Complete a Subdivision Ordinance 


Review for the City of Carroll in the amount of $2,000. On roll call, all present voted aye. 


Absent: None. Motion carried. 


* * * * * * * 


At 6:14 p.m. Mayor Jensen opened a public hearing on the FY 2021/2022 Maximum 


Property Tax Dollars. Mayor Jensen closed said hearing at 6:16 p.m. 


It was moved by Kots, seconded by Siemann, to approve Resolution No. 21-07, FY 


2021/2022 Maximum Property Tax Dollars. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. 


Motion carried.  


* * * * * * * 


It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to approve the proposed FY 2021/2022 


budget which includes setting March 8, 2021 as the date for a public hearing on the proposed FY 


2021/2022 budget and directs the City Clerk to publish said hearing notice. On roll call, all 


present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried. 


* * * * * * * 


It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve Change Order No. 1 to the Street 


Maintenance Facility Contract in the amount of $48,200.00. The effect of the proposed Change 


Order No. 1 on the contract is as follows: 


Original Contract Price   $4,489,300.00 


Change Order No. 1         $48,200.00 


Contract Price w/ Change Order  $4,537,500.00 


On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.  


* * * * * * * 


Council held a work session to discuss the Sanitary Sewer Rate Study that has been 


prepared by Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. Olivia Patton, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. representative, 


virtually presented the rate study to Council. No Council action taken. 







* * * * * * * 


It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to adjourn at 7:25 p.m.  On roll call, all 


present voted aye. Absent: None.  Motion carried.   


      


_________________________________ 


       Eric P. Jensen, Mayor  


ATTEST: 


 


___________________________________ 


Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 








 


City of Carroll  


627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager 


 


 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk/Finance Director 


 


 DATE: March 2, 2021 


 


 SUBJECT: FY 2021/2022 Budget 


1. Public Hearing  


2. Resolution Adopting the Annual Budget 


 


Attached is a Resolution adopting the FY 2021/2022 Budget. A public hearing needs to be held 


and any changes to the budget need to be made before the Resolution is adopted. 


 


The proposed budget notice of public hearing was published in the Carroll Times Herald on Friday, 


February 26, 2021 which is within the requirements of State of Iowa Code. A copy of the detailed 


budget that will be filed with the State of Iowa is also attached for your review.  


 


If you have any questions, please stop by the office or call. 


 


RECOMMENDATION: At the close of the public hearing, Council approval of the Resolution 


adopting the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget. 


  



Mike Pogge-Weaver

New Stamp_1







RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 


 


A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 


JUNE 30, 2022. 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa: 


 


1. That the Certification of Taxes with a total tax rate of 11.65008 for FY 2021/2022 be 


approved. 


2. That the Budget Estimate that was published on February 26, 2021 be approved as 


published. 


3. That the detailed budget showing estimated revenues and expenditures by program which 


support the Certification of Taxes and Budget Estimate be approved. 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to certify this Resolution, 


make all filings as required by law and set up the City’s books in accordance with the summary 


and details as adopted. 


 


ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA, 


this 8th day of March, 2021. 


 


 


 


       CITY COUNCIL OF THE   


       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 


 


 


 


       By________________________________ 


            Eric P. Jensen, Mayor 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


By: _______________________________ 


       Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 
 







����������	�������
�


�����������������������������	�������������������������
����� �!"#$!% #� & �!'��#!�&���()*+!!!!!, (�*'�-�#$


���.���/01��	�2�3�������1����������������	3��4��	����2����1����2��.�
�4���/�������55��
�2����	���2���1������	��2�5��	����.�2��������	�6����13�������4��1�1������7�2��	���1
�	2����1�55����	��5���18


9-�:!;)(!<!=* >�&-> 9-�:�'�!;)(!<!=* >�&->
������� ?� @A?4@BC4ABD ?. @?C4E@C4EF?


GHI��JH�KL�H A� @MA4FM@4BFE A. @BC4DD@4ACD


�����	2 C� CNE4MDM


O-�P!Q'RS &$!TUVTTW


X)(�!"YY->-)*!O #('($!TZ[TZ\


]�̂ =_!X=̀ a=b


c'&��( b�**)&
X-R-�


=Q]=,!da,=
ba_],aO]!,�]=


e=X"9


, f' (�!g-�:
h�-*-�P


, �*)> R #�


c&�� &�P
])i (!X j- �


,)� 


M8FEEEE @ C4AFA4M@? C4?CC4MAB CA M8FEEEE


Q�#V̀�� �!"�: &!c &R-((-S* !X j- (


��	���3�������1�����I��2�� E8DB@EE D E E CC E8EEEEE


�5��k�l��	��5�.��3����/	�2����	1�� E8N@EEE B E E C@ E8EEEEE


��	�4�L	18�l��	�������
�3���	��� ���
��3 M E E CD E8EEEEE


�5��k�l��	�����������/	�2���
�3���	��� E8FA@EE N E E CB E8EEEEE


m��		�	����J�	������G�15�1���m��n�3� E8EDB@E FE E E CM E8EEEEE


�
�����	����������o�	2���1�38AAE�8F@p E8?BEEE FF E E CN E8EEEEE


��
���L�5�8���	2��	�15�3����3������3��� E8EDB@E FA E E @F E8EEEEE


���.�����4�5��5�����k�1�����	1���	3��3�1�1 ���
��3 FC ?EA4EEE FNN4B@C @? E8AMFFB


J�55�����������3���H����8l���8����8 ���
��3 CD? E E CD@ E8EEEEE


�̀� �!"�: &!c &R-((-S* !X j- (


L	1�����	���qK�3���l�1�3�����51 E8FA@EE F@ E E @A E8EEEEE


l��������I���2�	� E8MFEEE FD E E @C E8EEEEE


J��5�	����3�1��� E8FA@EE FB E E @@ E8EEEEE


���������k�J3��	����3�r�3������1 E8?BEEE FM E E @D E8EEEEE


���	���I��2�� �1
K���2 FN E E @B E8EEEEE


l�11�����l�11�������
���I��2�����	1�8 F8A@EEE ?E E E @M E8EEEEE


��2���������	1������5�	� E8EAAB@ ?F E E @N E8EEEEE


l��	���	�L	1�������	���3��
�2�.������q2�
�1� E8?E@EE ?? E E DE E8EEEEE


�����H�����	3��l�2�3���G�1���3� F8EEEEE CDA E E CDD E8EEEEE


J�55����m�.��3���.���� E8?BEEE ?A E E DF E8EEEEE


�	����2���/�H	���3���	� F8@EEEE ?C E E D? E8EEEEE


]��)*!; # &)*!d'#�!, s'*)&!X j- (!%t!�:&'!uU+ ?@ C4@FD4M@? C4CCC4@NF


�����	2 A8EEAB@ ?D F4CB@ F4CBC DA A8EEAB@


]��)*!; # &)*!d'#�!])i!X j- (!%ut!v!uW+ ?B C4@FM4A?B C4CCD4ED@


_� >-)*!, j #' !X j- (


H�����	3��o�����	�������	2������
�������p E8?BEEE ?M E E DC E8EEEEE


m���3��k�r������������	� ���
��3 ?N ?@E4EEE ?CD4EEF E8CDNC?


rL���k�LmH�J�o�����	�������	2������
�������p ���
��3 AE @EE4EEE CN?4EEA E8NAMMC


�����H�5������I�	����1 ���
��3 AF ?MA4N@E ?BN4CE@ E8@AAFD


]��)*!=R�*�P  !e # Y-�!X j- (!%uw[\Z[\T+ A? F4EAA4N@E F4EFB4CEN D@ F8NCFC?


_'S!]��)*!_� >-)*!, j #' !X j- (!%uxv\u+ AA F4EAA4N@E F4EFB4CEN


�(!, f 9-�:!;)(!<!=* >
)̀*')�-�#


9-�:�'�!;)(!<
=* >!̀)*')�-�#


JJlLG�F E E AC E DD E8EEEEE


JJlLG�? E E A@ E DB E8EEEEE


JJlLG�A E E AD E DM E8EEEEE


JJlLG�C E E AB E DN E8EEEEE


JJlLG�@ E E @@@ E @D@ E8EEEEE


JJlLG�D E E @@D E @DD E8EEEEE


JJlLG�B E EFFBB EFFBN E8EEEEE


JJlLG�M E EFFM@ EFFMB E8EEEEE


]��)*!_� >-)*!, j #' !X j- ( AN F4EAA4N@E F4EFB4CEN


b S�!_ &j-> !X jP!yWzTZ%W+ ������3 CE BF@4M@@ BE@4AND BE F8??BCN


O)�-�)*!c&�{ >�(!%O)�-�)*!aR�&�jz!, ( &j + E8DB@EE CF E BF E8EEEEE


]��)*!c&�� &�P!])i (!%uyv\wvUZvUT+ C? D4?DM4FA? D4FDM4MBE B?FF8D@EEM


o�J��	������p oG���p o����	�����2�����p oG���p







�����������	
�������������������������������������������������������
����������������� !�"#" �����$��%#!�"#""


&'()*+,-)*./01+2)3+22)1.04/1,)5)6/72+1)'(58+09).0),'()68.6.:(4);+:152)<(58)*+,-)68.6(8,-),5=)2(>-)5:)?.22.3:@


A��B�$C���B�D))))EFEEFEGEH))))A��B�$C���I�D))))GJ@HJ)KL))))A��B�$C��M��B�M$D))))*./01+2)*'5N7(8:O)*+,-)P522O)QER)S)T45N:)U,8((,
T,),'()6/72+1)'(58+09)50-)8(:+4(0,).8),5=65-(8)N5-)68(:(0,).7V(1,+.0:),.O).8)589/N(0,:)+0)?5>.8).?),'()68.6.:(4),5=)2(>-W)T?,(8)54.6,+.0).?),'()68.6.:(4),5=)2(>-O),'()*+,-)*./01+2)3+22)6/72+:')0.,+1()504)'.24)5)'(58+09).0),'()68.6.:(4


1+,-)7/49(,W
*+,-)X(7:+,()Y+?)5>5+2572(Z
333W1+,-.?1588.22W1.N )


*+,-)&(2(6'.0()S/N7(8
YRHEZ)R[E\HGGG


�����$B���������B�]��̂���M_��B����̀�"#"#��
"#" 



�̂C�B�������]]��B�a����M_��B����̀�"#" ��
"#""



�̂C�B��������M_M��̂�A�̀�I�I���M_��B����̀�"#" ��
"#""


$$����b
���


c(9/258)&5=572()d52/5,+.0 JEJOEH[ORef JfEOJReOfRQ JfEOJReOfRQ


&5=)g(>+(:@


c(9/258)h(0(852 eOEJeOEiG eOEJeOEiG eOfHfOiJE


*.0,851,)?.8)j:().?)k8+49( G G G


l68)m)L5+0,)K/72+12-)l30(4)&850:+, G G G


c(0,O)n0:W)L5+0,W)l?)S.0\l30(4)*+>W)*,8W G G G


l68)m)L5+0,).?)*+,-\l30(4)*+>+1)*(0,(8 G G G


K2500+09)5)U50+,58-)o+:6.:52)K8.V(1, G G G


g+57+2+,-O)K8.6(8,-)m)U(2?\n0:/8501()*.:,: HJGOGGG HJGOGGG EGfOGGG


U/66.8,).?)g.152)pN(8W)L9N,W)*.NN+::+.0 G G G


pN(89(01- G G G


K.2+1()m);+8()c(,+8(N(0, EQeOfH[ EQeOfH[ EJGOGGG


;n*T)m)nKpcU e[iOHeE e[iOHeE JGGOGGG


l,'(8)pN62.-(()k(0(?+,: HfQOGf[ HfQOGf[ EifO[JG


�MB�����̀���a� JOfGEORiG JOfGEORiG JOJJGOiGE eWQR


��̀���B� HGWG[QfH [W[JQii HGWeEEJ[


�̀_��$�B�M$�M]���C$�]���$B��$���������$�Bq��r�̂C�BD
n018(5:()?.8)+018(5:(4)1.:,:).?)68.6(8,-O)2+57+2+,-)504)3.8s(8)1.N6(0:5,+.0)(=6(0:(:)5:)3(22)5:)+018(5:(4)1.:,:)?.8)(N62.-(()7(0(?+,:W


�]��__����r��!�Bq���rMa��$MB�������M��a����r���M$��$���BD
333W1+,-.?1588.22W1.NF?+0501(t)333W1588.22\2+7858-W.89t);51(7..sW1.NF1+,-.?1588.22t);51(7..sW1.NF1588.226.2+1(t);51(7..sW1.NF*Kg*588.22+5t)&3+,,(8W1.NF1+,-.?1588.22t)&3+,,(8W1.NF1588.22g+7858-t)n0:,5985NW1.NF*588.22Wg+7858-t
333W6+0,(8(:,W1.NF1588.226/72+7t)333W1588.228(11(0,(8W1.Nt)333W;51(7..sW1.NF*588.22c(18(5,+.0*(0,(8


u&.,52)1+,-),5=)85,()3+22)52:.)+012/4()>.,(4)9(0(852)?/04)2(>-O)4(7,):(8>+1()2(>-O)504)156+,52)+N68.>(N(0,)8(:(8>()2(>-W
uuk/49(,)-(58)(??(1,+>()68.6(8,-),5=)85,()+:),'()85,(),'5,)3./24)7()5::(::(4)?.8),'(:()2(>+(:)+?),'()4.2258:)8(v/(:,(4)+:)0.,)1'509(4)+0),'()1.N+09)7/49(,)-(58







����������	
	���������	�����������	�����	����������
������������������ !!
"�#$�%�&��'�()%��*+�,-,*�.�()/��0-+�,-,,
12�#�#2����2�#�3��/�4�#�5/�4��6��%%67���$2�$�����6��#��������2����6)/��68�9'69�'�����:�'���3)'#���/���2���7�%%�3��'�$��;�4�8'6���2��<�����86'���$2�8)/4=


����������	>	?��>@�A ����������	>	@�A ���������	>	?��>@�A ���������	>	@�A
1�:�3%� * *0B+CD0+,E- FG+GF*+D0* *,+D0F+E,- **+-,D


*--H��##�##�4 , *BE+B-G+,BC FG+GF*+D0* *F+*B-+G-0 **+-,D


I ��JKI��L�?@


M������	A�� 0 *FG+C0D �NON�PN<+�!Q�N�*G


R������	A�� F 0F+-C0 �NON�PN<+�!Q�N�*G


S�T�	A�� B ,*+BBE �NON�PN<+�!Q�N�*G


�������	�����U�	A�� E - �NON�PN<+�!Q�N�*G


��JKI��L�?@	JIVL�?@	J����?@IM�
W�5�//�/5��/�"&�,-,*.,-,,+��2����6)/��68�$6���'$��%�X��/4)#�'��%�'�9%�$���/��9����/�#�9��4�3���2��<�����68�Q67���6�%6$�%�56;�'/��/�#�3�$6��#�%�����4�3���2���6��%���6)/��68�9����/�#���4���/�"&�,-*E.,-*D=�12�#�%�������6/�68
�6��%�46%%�'#��;��%�3%��86'�'�9����/��68�$6���'$��%�X��/4)#�'��%�'�9%�$���/��$%���#�����$�)#���%%�9����/�#��6�%6$�%�56;�'/��/�#��6�3��9'6.'���4=�12����6)/��68�9'6'�����6/�/�$�##�'��86'��2��3)45������'�7�%%�/6��3��Y/67/�)/��%
�)5)#�+�3)���2��4'69467/�3�%67�7�%%��%%67��2���#������4�$6���'$��%�X��/4)#�'��%�'�9%�$���/��9����/�#��6�3��'�4)$�4�3����#�%�$��4�9'6'���6/�9�'$�/��5�=
16�'�4)$���2����#������4���6)/��68�$6���'$��%�X��/4)#�'��%�'�9%�$���/��9����/��3)45���4�86'��2��$6��/5�8�#$�%����'+�$6�9%�����/��#������6/�68��2��'�9%�$���/��9����/���36;�=� /$��$6�9%���+�#�%�$����9'6'���6/�9�'$�/��5��8'6���2�
%�#��3�%67=�12��9'6'���6/�9�'$�/��5��7�%%�%������2����6)/��68��#������4�'�9%�$���/��9����/��3)45���4=�12�#�7�%%�269�8)%%��9'�;�/���/�6;�'��#������6/��/��2��3)45������'�'�;�/)�#=


J��������	J�������Z�
G-H


J�����	�����	�[�	������	�\	��U����	T���Z	�����U�	\���	��]	Z�����	��	����T���������	\���	�[�	R����	�\	��̂�_	�̀�����Z	�[�	�����������	�������	��	�����	a	�[���Z[	b	�T�U�c	R�������	�[�	��U�����	T]	\��	�����U��Z	�[�
����]c


M������ R������	��U���� @�A	R�c	��U���� S�T�	R��U��� �������	J��d���� J���������]


e�[��	R����	M�����	
	����T��������� G+--F F+E*C







����������	
	���������	�����������	�����	����������
������������������ !!
"�#$�%�&��'�()%��*+�,-,*�.�()/��0-+�,-,,


����������	1	��2 ���������	1	��2 �����������


3������	4��	1	5����	6��	337�83 * -


337�8	9 5�:�;�� , - -


6������ 0 - - -


337�8	< 5�:�;�� = - -


6������ > - - -


337�8	? 5�:�;�� @ - -


6������ A - - -


337�8	B 5�:�;�� C - -


6������ D - - -


337�8	E 5�:�;�� *- - -


6������ ** - - -


337�8	F 5�:�;�� *, - -


6������ *0 - - -


337�8	G 5�:�;�� *= - -


6������ *> - - -


337�8	H 5�:�;�� *@ - -


6������ *A - - -







�����������	

������������
������
���������������� !�"#" �$���%��&#!�"#""


'	�	(�� )*	�+��
(	,	��	)


-+��)*	�+��
(	,	��	)


�	�-
)	(,+�	


��*+-��
*(./	�-) *	(0��	�- -.-��


'.,	(�0	�- *(.*(+	-�(1 '(���
-.-��


�22345�(6789:��1�;<;<


=�>�%%�%>���%?�=���%�������  @!" @!&A" &!#""!BCC  &D! #" EA!D"" C!DA !D#@ C@E! #B  &!DE#!AD@ B!B&"!#D@ "&!D "!E"E


���������F�%����GH��I��=�>�=���%�� " A!E B!@E# @!  A!E"" BBE! "#  !&&"!A#" A!#C"!@DE "A! EB " !&@A!AE A!#C&!BEB "E!@# !AA#


�������GHI�%?�������GH��I��G%?�=���%�� & A!A"&! "C @!D"A!DDB  !## !#@  !&& !DD" C!@@B!#@C # "#! &"!C@" E!C@C! EE "E!DAA!A&#


G%?�%>���%?�=���%�����%��&# @ @!& #!A"A "!C &! #E  &&! E EE!DD" A!"AC!#"A CAC!"BE  @!EBD!##& E!@@#!EDC "&!&&D!EDE


(6J	K:LM4:6N��1�;<;O


=�>�%%�%>���%?�=���%�� C @!& #!A"A "!C &! #E  &&! E EE!DD" A!"AC!#"A CAC!"BE  @!EBD!##& E!@@#!EDC "&!&&D!EDE


��$G�����F�%��� D A!BAC!&" @! A !B"E  ! C !@CB  !&BC!EAA "!BD"!D"C C"! E#  A!A#B!&B# D!B"@!"E# "@!D&&!DA#


��$G���GHI�%?������ A B!& #!DE@ @!#B&!  C  ! &D! @E  !&B !B@& D!&AE!CE@ # ""!& #!@A@ A!# @!B#C "B!&"C!&AB


G%?�%>���%?�=���%�� E "!BAC!&D@ "!CB !B"  @E!@B" B"!CBD &!ECB!#DE D"A!@AE  #!"B@!B B E!&C#!"@#  E!D@C! CB


�3NP6:��1�;<;;


=�>�%%�%>���%?�=���%�� B "!BAC!&D@ "!CB !B"  @E!@B" B"!CBD &!ECB!#DE D"A!@AE  #!"B@!B B E!&C#!"@#  E!D@C! CB


��F�%���  # E!  @!B&@ @!&#@! DB  ! A@!D@#  !"DB!C#D  !@#A! ## ""! &#  D!"B"!@AB C!&C#!D## " !D@&!#AB


GHI�%?������   E!AB"!E@# @!&""!CD&  !" E!"A  !"A@!C&C @!& A!CD@ #  B!B"C!AA& &!A#B!&@E "&!D&C! " 


G%?�%>���%?�=���%��  " "!"BA!@CE "!CA&!C"A  #@!ED EA!CDA B@E!D#@ D@B!D#E D!DD !D"C B!BB !@B"  D!DC&!  A







������������		�
�
��������������������
����������� !���"#�$%$"�&� !'��(%#�$%$$
���)�*+,�,�'�-*.���*,��/���*'�(012"$#��!3����*'�$$#�������������+���4����*!'��'���������'��!))*���*5����*����6���7�'���8�'�7���'���*����*'2�-'��,,�*'��*��4��',+,!�����+�#�6���7�'���8�'�7���'���*����*'
�!))*����������*�3��'��!,�,����)����*5��4��9�'������!',���+�2�-*.���*,��/���*'�$:�2";#��!3����*'�<���������4����'���!))*���5�*�������*���*!'�����!���3����)����������)*���,�*'���=��������'�����!�,�3���4���*!'��������!���2�-')!�
�4����*!'��*5�9�'������!',���+����>!�����*�3��!��,�5*���!))*���*5��'�6���7�'���8�'�7���'���*����*'2�?4���*����3��*.�.�����5������4���*������*!'��*5�6���7�'���8�'�7���'���*����*'��!))*���)�*+,�,�3���4�����2



@AB@CD�EFDG��DFHFDI�
@JHKL@M@ND 	OPJ@ODI��KQ@C��@RF@S
T*��*'�*5�9�'������!',���+��U��,�5*��6���72�87��2��*��2 %


/!))*���*5����*����6���7287��2�*��2 % %


?�?����������$%$$ % %







������������	�
���������	�������	����	�
�������������������  
!�"#�$�%��&�'($��)*�+,+,�-�'(.��/,*�+,+)


�01�������	����1�����	�0��2 ������� �������
��1���


��3	�������
��1����


��4�
���1���


�������
��05���� �����������0�������6


���
���������
787�


�����
7878


�4���	��3��6


9:$�#��;�<�&���.�=�&����9&�>�.��:. ) )*?,+*@@? ?*),, )*?),*A@?)*B/@*,A/


'��$ + , ,


C��&D�.#��E�.�D���.� / , ,


!$::F��:.�&:$ G , ,


!�&��;�<�&���.� @ )@@*)A, )@@*)A, )++*H//


��I($�.#� A , ,


J(�$F�.D�K."<�#��:." B )H)*?/@ )H)*?/@ )GH*?G@


E�"#�$$�.�:("�9&:��#��>��L�&>�#�" ? +/G*H,G +/G*H,G ++@*/,)


�.���$��:.�&:$ H , ,


��M�&�9(I$�#�L�N��� ), H*GG+ H*GG+ /*B/B


O�O� �P$�.�"�)�-�),Q )) +*/H/*?HH ?*),, , +*G,)*HHH+*+/A*?BH


�4���	R0�S�


�:�F"*�J&�FD�"*�T�L�F�U�$V" )+ /?*GAA B/B*,,@ BB@*GB) @+G*A//


9�&V�.D�-�E���&��.F��NN-L�&��� )/ , ,


L�&���� �DM��.D )G )A?*,,, )A?*,,, )A+*B?G


O&�NN�#��:.�&:$��.F�L�N��� )@ , ,


L.:U����:>�$ )A )@,*G,, )@,*G,, HB*H?H


W�DMU���C.D�.��&�.D )B , ,


L�&�����$��.�.D )? +@*BA, +@*BA, )+*H+B


��&<:&��P�N�.:��C.��&<&�"�Q )H ++B*G,, ++B*G,, ++/*/??


X�&I�D��P�N�.:��C.��&<&�"�Q +, A?B*H?, A?B*H?, AB)*?BA


��M�&�9(I$�#�Y:&V" +) +/B*)?/ )B,*@BH G,B*BA+ /@?*A/+


O�O� �P$�.�"�)+�-�+)Q ++ )*/@H*,+H )*,?/*BGG , +*GG+*BB/+*,@+*++H


������	Z	�0����	���1����


Y�$N�&���""�"��.#� +/ , ,


�����W:"<���$ +G , ,


9����.�"��:�9&�>����W:"<���$" +@ , ,


W��$�M���D($���:.��.F�K."<�#��:. +A , ,


Y���&*���&*��.F�E:"[(��:��:.�&:$ +B , ,


�:��(.����E�.��$�W��$�M +? , ,


��M�&�W��$�M��.F�L:#��$�L�&>�#�" +H )/@*HG@ )/@*HG@ H/*/+@


O�O� �P$�.�"�+/�-�+HQ /, )/@*HG@ , , )/@*HG@ H/*/+@


�����	Z	��������0�


 �I&�&��L�&>�#�" /) @@?*)+B )G*,,, @B+*)+B @+H*B,/


E("�(�*�J�.F��.F�OM����& /+ +A/*,?, +A/*,?, ),*H+,


9�&V" // H/,*A/, //*,,, HA/*A/, @/B*G,G


��#&����:. /G +*,@B*,?G )+,*?)+ +*)BB*?HA)*GBG*@),


������&� /@ +),*G@B +),*G@B H?*,B)


�:��(.������.��&*�\::*�T�E�&�.� /A , ,


��M�&��($�(&���.F���#&����:. /B @,, @,, ,


O�O� �P$�.�"�/)�-�/BQ /? G*,)H*?B? )AB*?)+ , G*)?B*AH,+*A@,*A,?







������������	�
���������	�������	����	�
�������������������  
!�"#�$�%��&�'($��)*�+,+,�-�'(.��/,*�+,+)


�01�������	����1�����	�0��2 ������� �������
��1���


��3	�������
��1����


��4�
���1���


�������
��05���� �����������0�������6


���
���������
�7�8


�����
�7�7


�0�����6	9	��0�0���	��1��0�����


�:��(.����;��(��<�#���:. /= , ,


>#:.:��#�?�@�$:A��.� B, CC*+D, CC*+D, CD*D,,


E:("�.F��.G�H&I�.���.�J�$ B) /*,,, )CD*,,, )CK*,,, /*)B+


L$�..�.F�M�N:.�.F B+ )*,,, )*,,, +C+


��O�&��:��M�>#:.�?�@�$:A��.� B/ CP*=,C ))D*,,, )=)*=,C =+*/)P


QR!���I���" BB +,*,K+ +,*,K+ )K*KB/


Q�Q� �S$�.�"�/=�-�BBT BD )DK*)DC ))D*,,, )=D*,K+ , BPK*+/= )=,*,C/


�������	�01�������


U��:&*��:(.#�$*�M������U�.�F�& BP BC*)P= BC*)P= +K*,)D


�$�&V*�Q&��"(&�&*�M�!�.�.#���G�W BC D+,*/,+ D+,*/,+ B=C*)P)


>$�#��:." BK /*K+/ /*K+/ P*)BD


 �F�$�X�&@�#�"�M���������:&.�� B= P)*)// P)*)// /D*+P=


�����E�$$�M�Y�.�&�$�;(�$G�.F" D, ),B*//B ),B*//B =)*/+)


Q:&�� ��I�$��� D) +DK*+DK +DK*+DK +D=*/)P


��O�&�Y�.�&�$�Y:@�&.��.� D+ K)*BPB K)*BPB +==*K)C


Q�Q� �S$�.�"�BP�-�D+T D/ )*,CP*BK/ , , , )*,CP*BK/ )*+)C*,BB


��4�	���1��� DB )*/=)*=B/ )*/=)*=B/ )*//)*PP+


Y:@���A���$�L&:Z�#�" DD D*KK/*DKB D*KK/*DKB D*/PK*/DC


QR!���A���$�L&:Z�#�" DP B=D*,,, B=D*,,, K,*PKK


Q�Q� ���LRQ� �L��'>�QX DC , , , P*/CK*DKB , P*/CK*DKB D*BB=*,BD


�0���	�[\]̂_̀ ]_abc	�dae\eae]f	�gh]_ieaĵ]f		kce_]f
88l��lm7lmnloolp�lpmlpoq DK =*)B/*/=) )*/CB*PDP )=D*,K+ )*/=)*=B/ P*/CK*DKB , )K*BK/*PDP)D*++,*KPD


4������	�6��	����1�����		�̂[ĥe]ab̂rs	�_a]̂ĥef]	9
4jit]a]i	��3


u���&�H��$��� D= )*,C,*C/P )*,C,*C/P =BB*)=P


X�J�&�H��$��� P, )*,+C*B/+ )*,+C*B/+ )*+,)*DK=


>$�#�&�#�H��$��� P) , ,


Y�"�H��$��� P+ , ,


��&A:&� P/ , ,


 �.G<�$$vY�&I�F� PB , ,


Q&�."�� PD , ,


��I$��Qw*�R.��&.���M�Q�$�AO:.� PP , ,


E:("�.F��(�O:&��� PC , ,


X�:&��u���&�H��$��� PK P*D,, P*D,, P*CBK


��O�&�;("�.�""�Q�A��S#����O:"AW*�RX!*�A�&V�.F*���#WT P= , ,


>.��&A&�"��?>;Q�X>�wR�> C, C,P*=+, C,P*=+, P==*/,,


>.��&A&�"����LRQ� �L��'>�QX C) +*,/D*,,, +*,/D*,,, +*+==*P)/


>.��&A&�"��QR!���LRQ� �L��'>�QX C+ , ,


Q�Q� �;HXR�>XX�Q%L>�>xL>�?RQH�>X�S$�.�"�D=yC+T C/ B*KBP*DKK B*KBP*DKK D*)D)*BBP


�0���	���	�
���������	kce_]f	pnlzmq CB =*)B/*/=) )*/CB*PDP )=D*,K+ )*/=)*=B/ P*/CK*DKB , B*KBP*DKK +/*//,*+BB+,*/C+*/))


��F($�&�Q&�."<�&"��(� CD )PC*+=/ +*C)K*BD= +*,)K*/)C B*=,B*,P= P*)+/*++)


R.��&.�$�QR!� :�.�Q&�."<�&"��(� CP =B)*,PP )D,*,,, )*,=)*,PP +*)K+*)=K


Q:��$��  �Q&�."<�&"��(� CC )PC*+=/ +*C)K*BD= =B)*,PP , , , +*)PK*/)C D*==D*)/D K*/,D*B)=


�[abc	�gh]_ieaĵ]f	b_i	0a{]̂	3e_	f]f	kce_]f	zolzzq CK =*/),*PKB B*,=/*))D )*)/P*)BK )*/=)*=B/ P*/CK*DKB , C*,)B*=,D +=*/+D*/C=+K*PCC*C/,


�_ie_t	3j_i	4bcb_d]	5j_]	m7 C= +*=CD*/PB +*D=)*=+) )BK*B=+ =+*D=P /*KD=*,PK P+C*BCK K*/D,*+B, )K*PBD*)D=+/*//P*KPK







������������	��
�����	�����
���������������������
������� ��!�"#���$%�&'&'�(�"#)��*'%�&'&$


��
�����	+	,�-��	.����/��0	�,��/�� 0����� �1�/��
��
����


��.	�1�/��
��
�����


��2�
���
�/�


/�1���
1�,3�/�� 1��������1�,1������4


���
���������
5657


�/���
5656


8�9�����:��;�<)�=!<>�!�� $ ?%?'@%ABC DBD%@'' DA'%BC' A%$A@%$AC A%'AA%*@&


������E)�<������;�=!<>�!���8�9���(���:�� ��! & ' '


�����#!!�)��=!<>�!���8�9���F��)��$���)#����)��&G * ?%?'@%ABC DBD%@'' DA'%BC' ' A%$A@%$AC A%'AA%*@&


H���)I#�)��=!<>�!���8�9�� ? *'%'@' A%'@' @%C'' ?$%D'' '


8J����:�)#�� @ $%$&A%DDC $%$&A%DDC BDA%?*$


��K�!������8�9���


E�������8�9���>������)��L9�����8�9�� A ' '


E�������M!�)�������9�FJ<N���<;���K�>��!�*A?O&G C $&'%@'' $&'%@'' $'@%B'@


=�!��#�#���N�P�!���9 D ' '


Q���)P�N�P�!���9 B ' '


R<S����T<���8�9�� $' ' '


T<���UR<����8�9�� $$ &''%''' &''%''' &$&%&&D


��K�!	VWXY	,Z[\V]	�X̂_̀ $& $%B'@%*A@ $%B'@%*A@ $%C*?%DDD


a#S�<����(���K�!������8�9���F��)���A��K!#�$&G $* *&'%@'' $%B'@%*A@ ' ' &%&&@%DA@ &%'@*%'&$


����)����b�=�!���� $? BC%BB' BC%BB' B'%?B@


E���<M�R<)���b�=!<>�!�� $@ C@%B&@ C%@@' $%'@' @$%@'* @%$*' $*C%C'' &CD%D@D @'@%?$&


J)��!P<:�!)��)����


��;�!���Q!�)���b�����S#!����)�� $A D@%&@' @CA%*@' D'%''' C?$%A'' ?B%AC'


�<�;�E���8�9�� $C $%$C$%B?D $%$C$%B?D $%&BD%A&*


��K�!�a�����Q!�)���b�����S#!����)�� $D *D*%@'C **%&?& &&%@&& &A%@D@ @&@%C$B BB$%@C@ D@D%DC$


�<����Q!�)���b�����S#!����)�� $B C&%&&@ @%&@' CC%?C@ C?%*CC


a#S�<����(�J)��!P<:�!)��)����F��)���$A��K!#�$BG &' @?'%BD& $%&'@%$B' &&%@&& &A%@D@ $%$'C%*$B D'%''' &%BD&%@BD &%&D$%@?$


�K�!P���M<!������b�a�!:����


c���!�E������ &$ $%?D&%&@' $%?D&%&@' $%?A$%@$?


a�N�!�E������ && &%'DD%''' &%'DD%''' &%$'&%D?A


L����!���E������ &* ' '


Q���E������ &? ' '


=�!d�)P &@ ' '


��!><!� &A ' '


��);M���UQ�!S�P� &C @A'%''' @A'%''' @@A%$$D


T<�>���� &D ' '


8!�)��� &B &'%''' &'%''' &@%'@'


��S���8e%�J)��!)���b�8���>K<)� *' ' '


T<#��)P��#�K<!��� *$ ' '


a�<!��c���!�E������ *& &@A%@'' &@A%@'' &A?%?@$


��K�!������b��K�!P���M<!�a�!:��� ** DC*%@@' @%''' DCD%@@' BA@%D**


�fg[V[XY	�	/hXij_̀	kVi	�_il\W_	mY\]_̀	57	[hif	nno *? $%?@*%@@' @%''' ' ' ' *%D&A%C@' @%&D@%*'' @%*C@%D$&


a>��������������)�� *@ ' '


R�������)�<#� *A $D$%''@ C%?'@ AB%'$' ?C%'@' $&D%A'' ?**%'C' $%''*%A'@


��K�!���)�)��)P�a<#!�����
��P#��!��>�!���)P�8!�)�M�!��J) *C DAB%A&& $*A%DAD ?AC%CDA $%@D?%CB* $%D?@%''' ?%B'?%'AB A%$&*%&&$


J)��!)���8J���<�)�8!�)�M�!��J) *D *?%D*A $@'%''' B'A%&*' $%'B$%'AA &%$D&%$BD


a#S�<���������>�!���)P�8!�)�M�!��J) *B DAB%A&& $*A%DAD ' @'&%A&& $%C*?%CB* ' &%C@$%&*' @%BB@%$*@ D%*'@%?$B


=!<���;��<M�H�S��FL9��#;�)P�8J��J)��!)���p<!!<N�)PG ?' ' $%C**%AD&


=!<���;��<M���>�����������a���� ?$ $%''' $%''' '


�fg[V[XY�,[h_i	.\]X]W\]j	�VfiW_̀	mY\]_̀	nq	[hif	nro ?& DAB%A&& $*A%DAD $%''' @'&%A&& $%C*?%CB* ' &%C@$%&*' @%BBA%$*@$'%'*B%$'$


�V[XY	�_l_]f_̀	_̂W_Z[	kVi	g_j\]]\]j	kf]s	gXYX]W_		mY\]_̀	nt	ut	vt	75t	7nt
7ut	7wt	nnt	nut	nvt	+	nwo ?* C%BC@%*&$ ?%$C$%B&D $%$@$%?@B $%*B@%DCC &%BA&%A&@ @&%$D' A%B&?%&D' &?%A**%AC'&D%?'$%CC'


p�P�))�)P��#);�p���)���"#���$ ?? ?%*$'%C&C &%@$*%$'D $**%$D$ DD%AA& C%&C@%'&C @C@%&BD D%??'%DA@ &*%**A%DAD&*%A$&%D&D


�,��	��
�����	+	2�0��	2���/�	mY\]_̀	u7xu5o ?@ $&%&DA%'?D A%AD@%'*A $%&D?%A?' $%?D?%@*B $'%&*C%A@& A&C%?CD $@%*A@%$?@ ?C%BC'%@*D@&%'$?%@BD







�����������	
	������
����
�
���������������������
�� !�"�#��$�%&"��'(�)*)'�+�%&,��-*(�)*))


�./���0���
����/����	 ������ 	�����
��/����	


��1
	�����
��/����	


��2�
	��/���


������
��.3���	 ���0�������.�������4 2�����5655


��7
�	��0����
565�


�����
5656


��2��
	�1��4


89"�!��:�;�$���,�<�$����8$�=�,��9, ' '(>?@(A'A B(*** '(>A?(A'A '(B'*(A?B'(@-?(*A-


%��" ) * * *


C��$D�,!��E�,�D���,� - * * *


�"99F��9,�$9" G * * *


��$��:�;�$���,� ? 'G?(AA) 'G?(AA) '??('A* '))(>--


��H&"�,!� A * * *


I&�"F�,D�J, ;�!��9, @ )G)(A>G )G)(A>G '>'(B-? 'G>(BG?


E� !�""�,�9& �8$9��!��=��K�$=�!� B )G*(B?- )G*(B?- )-G(>*G ))?(-*'


�,���"��9,�$9" > * * *


��L�$�8&H"�!�K�M��� '* G('?* G('?* >(GG) -(@-@


N�N���O"�,� �'�+�'*P '' )(?>*(>@? B(*** * )(?>B(>@? )(G*'(>>>)()-A(B@>


��2��
Q.�R	


�9�F (�I$�FD� (�S�K�F�T�"U ') -B(GAA >G?(-?- >B-(B'> @@?(G@' ?)G(A--


8�$U�,D�+�E���$��,F��MM+K�$��� '- * * *


K�$������DL��,D 'G 'AB(*** 'AB(*** 'AB(*** 'A)(@BG


N$�MM�!��9,�$9"��,F�K�M��� '? * * *


K,9T����9=�" 'A '?*(G** '?*(G** '?*(G** >@(>B>


V�DLT���C,D�,��$�,D '@ * * *


K�$�����"��,�,D 'B )?(@A* )?(@A* )?(@A* ')(>)@


��$;9$� '> ))A(*** ))A(*** ))@(G** ))-(-BB


W�$H�D��O�M�,9��C,��$;$� �P )* @''(BB* @''(BB* AB@(>B* A@'(B@A


��L�$�8&H"�!�X9$U )' )-B(@@- 'AG(@*) G*-(G@? G*@(@A) -?B(A-)


N�N���O"�,� �')�+�)'P )) '(-B-(''> '()BA()'? * )(AA>(--G )(GG)(@@-)(*?)())>


�����
Y
	.���
	��/���	


X�"M�$���  � ��,!� )- * * *


�����V9 ;���" )G * * *


8����,� ��9�8$�=����V9 ;���" )? * * *


V��"�L���D&"���9,��,F�J, ;�!��9, )A * * *


X���$(���$(��,F�E9 Z&��9��9,�$9" )@ * * *


�9��&,����E�,��"�V��"�L )B * * *


��L�$�V��"�L��,F�K9!��"�K�$=�!� )> '*'(B>? '*'(B>? '-?(>G? >-(-)?


N�N���O"�,� �)-�+�)>P -* '*'(B>? * * '*'(B>? '-?(>G? >-(-)?


������
Y
��������.�


��H$�$��K�$=�!� -' ?B>(*-G '-(*** A*)(*-G ?@)(')@ ?)>(@*-


E& �&�(�I�,F��,F�NL����$ -) '@('-? '@('-? )A-(*B* '*(>)*


8�$U -- A-B()A) A-B()A) >A-(A-* ?-@(G*G


��!$����9, -G '(@@B(B>G 'A'(B'- '(>G*(@*@ )('@@(B>A'(G@G(?'*


������$� -? '>'(->B '>'(->B )'*(G?@ >B(*@'


�9��&,������,��$(�[99(�S�E�$�,� -A * * *


��L�$��&"�&$���,F���!$����9, -@ ?** ?** ?** *


N�N���O"�,� �-'�+�-@P -B -()'?())- '@G(B'- * -(->*(*-A G('B@(A>*)(A?*(A*B







�����������	
	������
����
�
���������������������
�� !�"�#��$�%&"��'(�)*)'�+�%&,��-*(�)*))


�./���0���
����/����	 ������ 	�����
��/����	


��1
	�����
��/����	


��2�
	��/���


������
��.3���	 ���0�������.�������4 2������5��


��6
�	��0����
�5�7


�����
�5�5


�.00����4
8
��.�.0��
��/�.�0���


�9��&,����:��&��;�!���9, -< * * *


=!9,9��!�>�?�"9@��,� A* BB()C* BB()C* BB()C* BC(C**


D9& �,E��,F�G$H�,���,�I�" A' A(*** A(*** 'BJ(*** -('A)


K"�,,�,E�L�M9,�,E A) )(C** )(C** '(*** )B)


��N�$��9��L�=!9,�>�?�"9@��,� A- J*(<*B 'C*(*** C*(*** )J*(<*B '<'(<*B <)(-'O


PQ����H��� AA )C(*** )C(*** )*(*J) 'J(JA-


P�P���R"�,� �-<�+�AAS AC 'OA(OCB 'C*(*** BC(*** * -J<(OCB AOJ()-< '<*(*B-


������
�./���0���


T��9$(��9&,!�"(�L������T�,�E�$ AO -<('O< -<('O< AB('O< )J(*'C


�"�$U(�P$�� &$�$(�L���,�,!���F�V AB O')(<-A O')(<-A C)*(-*) A<B('O'


="�!��9, AJ O()C* O()C* -(J)- O('AC


��E�"�W�$?�!� �L���������9$,�� A< O)('-- O)('-- O'('-- -C()O<


�����D�""�L�X�,�$�"�:&�"F�,E C* '*J(-CO '*J(-CO '*A(--A <'(-)'


P9$�����H�"��� C' )<)(')< )<)(')< )CJ()CJ )C<(-'O


��N�$�X�,�$�"�X9?�$,��,� C) OO(*** OO(*** J'(AOA )<<(J'B


P�P���R"�,� �AO�+�C)S C- '('JO(<B' * * * '('JO(<B' '(*BO(AJ- '()'B(*AA


��2�
	��/��� CA '()BA(C-C '()BA(C-C '(-<'(<A- '(--'(OO)


X9?���@���"�K$9Y�!� CC -(A<B(JB- -(A<B(JB- C(JJ-(CJA C(-OJ(-CB


PQ����@���"�K$9Y�!� CO J'<(O<' J'<(O<' A<C(*** J*(OJJ


P�P�����KQP���K��%=�PW CB * * * A(-'B(COA * A(-'B(COA O(-BJ(CJA C(AA<(*AC


�.��
�Z[\]̂_\̂ 
̀�àb[b̀b\c
�de\̂fb̀g]\c

hib̂\c
77j��jk5jkljmnjnkjnmjnop CJ J(OA)(JA* '(O'<(*)J BC(*** '()BA(C-C A(-'B(COA * 'C(<)J(<OB 'J(AJ-(OCO'C())*(JOC


2�	���		
�4��
����/����	


�]Ze]b\̀q]rs
�̂ \̀]e]bc\
8
2gft\̀\f
�	1


u���$�G��"��� C< '()C'(CC) '()C'(CC) '(*B*(B-O <AA('<O


W�I�$�G��"��� O* <CA()C- <CA()C- '(*)B(A-) '()*'(CJ<


="�!�$�!�G��"��� O' * * *


X� �G��"��� O) * * *


��$@9$� O- * * *


��,F;�""vX�$H�E� OA * * *


P$�, �� OC * * *


��H"��Pw(�Q,��$,���L�P�"�@N9,� OO * * *


D9& �,E��&�N9$��� OB * * *


W�9$��u���$�G��"��� OJ O(C** O(C** O(C** O(BAJ


��N�$�:& �,�  �P�@��R!����N9 @V(�QW�(�@�$U�,E(���!VS O< * * *


=,��$@$� ��>=:P�W=�wQ�= B* B'A('A* B'A('A* B*O(<)* O<<(-**


=,��$@$� ����KQP���K��%=�PW B' )O*(*** )O*(*** )(*-C(*** )()<<(O'-


=,��$@$� ��PQ����KQP���K��%=�PW B) * * *


�.��
2gcb̂\cc
�re\
�de\̂fb̀g]\c
hib̂\c
nx
6
o�p B- -('JO(AAC -('JO(AAC A(JAO(CJJ C('C'(AAO


�.��
�
�����������	
hib̂\c
nl
j
okp BA J(OA)(JA* '(O'<(*)J BC(*** '()BA(C-C A(-'B(COA * -('JO(AAC'<(''C(A') )-(--*()AA)*(-B)(-''


��E&"�$�P$�, ;�$ ��&� BC 'C*(*** )(B*-(C-C C))(<*- -(-BO(A-J A(<*A(*O< O(')-())'


Q,��$,�"�PQ���9�,�v���@����,��P$�, ;�$ ��&� BO '('A-()B' '('A-()B' '(*<'(*OO )('J)('<J


�Z̀qi
�
�]q̂cy\]c
.g̀ BB 'C*(*** )(B*-(C-C '('A-()B' * * * C))(<*- A(C'<(B*< C(<<C('-C J(-*C(A'<


�Z̀qi
�de\̂fb̀g]\c
8
1ĝf
�]q̂cy\]c
.g̀
hib̂\c
omjoop BJ J(B<)(JA* A(-))(CO- '()'J()B' '()BA(C-C A(-'B(COA * -(B*<(-AJ)-(O-C(')' )<(-)C(-B<)J(OBB(B-*


�̂fb̂t
1ĝf
2qiq̂a\
3ĝ\
k5 B< )()<B(ACJ )(CB-(C)B '*A(JO' JB(COB <AJ(O*A OA<(O*J <(<<'(A<)'O(OC-(''B 'J(OAC('C<)-(--O(JOJ







������������	
�
��������������������
����������� !���"#�$%$"�&� !'��(%#�$%$$


)����	�
�*�+
	�
��������


�
,��*�+
	�
��������


��-�
����
+�


+	*
�	�
*�./�+��


*��0	����*�.*�
��	�1
-��)��
2322


��4
���
0	���
2325


	+��	�
2323


���������6�.�7���,
�	�+
�)��.��+��


8�9�����:�;�<'�=�<>���� " ?#??@#%@A "#%"B#?%C B%A#(C@ % @#"@D#DB% @#"@A#"@B @#%@@#(A$


������E'�<������;�=�<>�����8�9���&���:������ $ % % %


�����!���'��=�<>�����8�9���F�'��"��'!���'��$G ( ?#??@#%@A "#%"B#?%C B%A#(C@ % @#"@D#DB% @#"@A#"@B @#%@@#(A$


H��'I!�'��=�<>�����8�9�� ? % ?"#D%% %


8J����:�'!�� A "#"B(#D?% "#"B(#D?% "#"$@#DDB CD@#?("


��K�������8�9���


E�����8�9���>������'��L9����8�9�� @ B$#$@" "@#A?" "%#?AC % CC#$@" % %


E�����M��'������9�FJ<N���<;���K�>����(@?O$G B "CD#A%% "CD#A%% "$%#A%% "%A#C%A


=���!�!���N�P�����9 D % % %


Q��'P�N�P�����9 C % % %


R<S���T<���8�9�� "% % % %


T<���UR<����8�9�� "" $%A#%%% $%A#%%% $%%#%%% $"$#$$D


��K����<�����>�<'�8�9�� "$ "#B("#"B? "#B("#"B? "#C%A#(@A "#B(?#DDD


V!S�<����&���K�������8�9���F�'���@��K�!�"$G "( ?BA#B@" "#B?B#B"A "%#?AC % $#$((#C(A $#$$A#D@A $#%A(#%$"


���'����W�=����� "? B?#@%% B?#@%% CB#CC% C%#?CA


E���<M�R<'���W�=�<>���� "A @B#DBA @#AA% D%% "B#"%% A#"(% "?(#%%% $?%#?AA $BD#DAD A%A#?"$


J'���P<:��'��'����


��;�����Q��'���W����S!�����'�� "@ "#@%% "#@%% B?"#@%% ?C#@B%


�<�;�E���8�9�� "B "#"D$#%A" "#"D$#%A" "#"B"#C?D "#$CD#@$(


��K���V�����Q��'���W����S!�����'�� "D "A@#C?" (D#B"$ % $"#AA@ % % $"B#$%C CC"#ABA DAD#DB"


�<����Q��'���W����S!�����'�� "C B%#D"A A#%%% BA#D"A BB#?BA B?#(BB


V!S�<����&�J'���P<:��'��'����F�'���"@��K�!�"CG $% $$C#(A@ "#$$%#B@( % $"#AA@ A#%%% % "#?B@#@BA $#CD$#ACD $#$D"#A?"


�K��P���M<�������W�V��:���


X�����E���� $" "#?BD#%%% "#?BD#%%% "#?D$#$A% "#?@"#A"?


V�N���E���� $$ $#%DD#%%% $#%DD#%%% $#%DD#%%% $#"%$#D?@


L�������E���� $( % % %


Q���E���� $? % % %


=��Y'P $A % % %


��><�� $@ % % %


��';M��UQ��S�P� $B AD$#?%% AD$#?%% A@%#%%% AA@#""D


T<�>��� $D % % %


8��'�� $C (A#%%% (A#%%% $%#%%% $A#%A%


��S���8Z#�J'���'���W�8���>K<'� (% % % %


T<!�'P��!�K<��� (" % % %


V�<���X�����E���� ($ $A@#A%% $A@#A%% $A@#A%% $@?#?A"


��K��������W��K��P���M<��V��:�� (( "#%$D#CB% A#%%% "#%((#CB% DBD#AA% C@A#D((


V!S�<����&��K��P���M<��V��:���F�'���$"��K�!�((G (? "#@?@#(B% A#%%% % % % (#D$$#A%% A#?B(#DB% A#$DA#(%% A#(BA#D"$


V>�������������'�� (A % % %


R������'�<!� (@ "BC#$$A B#%%% "B#%%% BB#C%% $D"#"$A ?((#%B% "#%%(#@%A


��K����'�'�'P�V<!�����


��P!�����>����'P�8��'�M����J' (B CC"#%"B "A?#C$C A%%#?C$ "#(DA#%%% (?A#%%% (#(B@#?(D ?#C%?#%@C @#"$(#$$"


J'���'���8J���<�'�8��'�M����J' (D ?#@@A "??#D%( ("#@%( C@$#$%% "#"?(#$B" "#%C"#%@@ $#"D$#"CD


�[\]̂]_̀�	���.abc_]def��c_eghbcg�
e (C CCA#@D$ $CC#B($ % A($#%CA "#(DA#%%% % "#(%B#$%% ?#A"C#B%C A#CCA#"(A D#(%A#?"C


=�<���;��<M�H�S��FL9��!;'P�8J��J'���'���i<��<N'PG ?% % % "#B((#@D$


=�<���;��<M���>����������V���� ?" % "#%%% %


�[\]̂]_̀4.]jbc�,de_ekdef��̂[ckbg�l̀debg�mn�]jc[�o3p ?$ CCA#@D$ $CC#B($ % A($#%CA "#(DA#%%% % "#(%B#$%% ?#A"C#B%C A#CC@#"(A"%#%(C#"%"


�̂]_̀��bqbe[bg�brkba]�ĥc�\bfdeedef�h[es�\_̀_ekb���l̀debg�mt�ot�ut�5mt�5ot�5ut
23t�mot�mut�mvt�6�o5p


?( D#""?#C(? ?#(%?#"@C "#"B?#@?% "#$@C#A%@ "#?%B#"%% $$#"(% A#(A%#@%%$"#@?(#%BC $?#@((#@B%$D#?%"#BB%


i�P'''P��!';�i���'��� !���" ?? $#CBA#(@? $#AC"#C$" "?D#?C$ C$#AC@ (#DAC#%@D @$B#?BD D#(A%#$?%"D#@?A#"AC $(#((@#D@D$(#@"$#D$D


�.�	�����������6�-�)
��-	�	�+��l̀debg�o2womp ?A ""#%C%#$CD @#DC@#%C% "#($(#"($ "#(@$#"%$ A#$@@#"@D @?C#@%D "(#B%%#D?%?%#$DD#$(D ?B#CB%#A(DA$#%"?#ACD







�����������	���
�����
���������������������
������� ��!�"#���$%�&'&$�(�"#)��*'%�&'&&


	�+���, 
��-.�,
��/�+��



�.0�
��-.�,
��/�+��



����

��/.-�


-��.��,
���1�-�
 �����+�+������.���� ���	��2322


��4
�
�.�����
2325


�-���,
2323


�676896:�;��<=6>�0?8@8A?8B�
C9>A6:


D�E�����F��G�H)�I!HJ�!�� $ K%KKL%'LM $%'$N%K'O N'M%*OL ' L%$LP%PN' L%$LM%$LN L%'LL%*M&


������Q)�H������G�I!HJ�!���D�E��(��F�� ��! & ' ' ' ' ' ' '


�����#!!�)��I!HJ�!���D�E�� * K%KKL%'LM $%'$N%K'O N'M%*OL ' L%$LP%PN' L%$LM%$LN L%'LL%*M&


R���)S#�)��I!HJ�!���D�E�� K ' ' ' ' ' K$%P'' '


DT����F�)#�� M $%$N*%PK' $%$N*%PK' $%$&L%PPN OPL%K*$


��U�!������D�E�� L KNM%NL$ $%NKN%N$M $'%KMO ' &%&**%O*M &%&&M%PLM &%'M*%'&$


����)����V�I�!���� N NK%L'' ' ' NK%L'' ON%OO' O'%KOM


Q���HW�XH)����)G�I!HJ�!�� P LN%PNM L%MM' P'' ' $N%$'' M%$*' $K*%''' &K'%KMM &NP%PMP M'M%K$&


T)��!YHF�!)��)��� O &&O%*ML $%&&'%NL* ' &$%MML M%''' ' $%KNL%LNM &%OP&%MOP &%&P$%MK$


�U�!Y���WH!������V�Z�!F��� $' $%LKL%*N' M%''' ' ' ' *%P&&%M'' M%KN*%PN' M%&PM%*'' M%*NM%P$&


ZJ��������������)�� $$ ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '


X�������)�H#� $& $NO%&&M N%''' ' ' $N%''' NN%O'' &P$%$&M K**%'N' $%''*%L'M


Z#[(DH������F�)#�� $* N%$$O%&M& K%''K%K*N $%$NK%LK' N*N%K$$ &&%$'' &&%$*' K%'K*%K''$N%$&*%*N' $P%L*N%M*M$P%*L&%LLO


�<=6>�0?8@8A?8B�
C9>A6:\


�C<@]��>@8:̂6>:�.8 $K OOM%LP& &OO%N*& ' M*&%'OM $%*PM%''' ' $%*'N%&'' K%M$O%N'O M%OOM%$*M P%*'M%K$O


I!H���G��HW�R�[� $M ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' $%N**%LP&


I!H���G��HW���J�����������Z���� $L ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' $%''' '


�C<@]��676896:�@8_��<=6>�
C9>A6: $N P%$$K%O*K K%*'K%$LO $%$NK%LK' $%&LO%M'L $%K'N%$'' &&%$*' M%*M'%L''&$%LK*%'NO &K%L**%LN'&P%K'$%NN'


�̀a68_?<9>6:�;��<=6>�0?8@8A?8B��:6:


I#[����Z�W��� $P &%MO'%ONM P%''' ' ' &%MOP%ONM &%K'$%OOO &%&*L%PNO


I#[����bH!c� $O $%*P*%$$O $%&PL%&$M ' ' &%LLO%**K &%KK&%NN* &%'M&%&&O


d����U��)G�ZH�����Z�!F���� &' $'$%POM ' ' ' $'$%POM $*M%OKM O*%*&M


�#��#!���)G����!����H) &$ *%&$M%&&* $NK%P$* ' ' *%*O'%'*L K%$PN%LO' &%LM'%L'P


�H��#)�����)G�e�H)H����R�F��HJ��)� && $LK%LMN $M'%''' NM%''' ' *PO%LMN KLP%&*O $O'%'N*


f�)�!���fHF�!)��)� &* $%$PL%ON$ ' ' ' $%$PL%ON$ $%'NL%KP* $%&$N%'KK


R�[��Z�!F��� &K ' ' ' $%&NK%M*M ' $%&NK%M*M $%*O$%OK* $%**$%LL&


��J�����I!Hg���� &M ' ' ' K%*$N%MLK ' K%*$N%MLK L%*NP%MPK M%KKO%'KM


�C<@]�	C76>8h68<��A<?7?<?6:��̀a68_?<9>6: &L P%LK&%PK' $%L$O%'&P NM%''' $%&NK%M*M K%*$N%MLK ' $M%O&P%OLN $P%KP*%LML$M%&&'%PLM


i#��)����D�J��I!HJ!���!����e)��!J!����V�TZ� &N *%$PL%KKM *%$PL%KKM K%PKL%MPP M%$M$%KKL


�C<@]�	C7�;��9:��ja6��̀a68_?<9>6: &P P%LK&%PK' $%L$O%'&P NM%''' $%&NK%M*M K%*$N%MLK ' *%$PL%KKM$O%$$M%K$& &*%**'%&KK&'%*N&%*$$


�C<@]��>@8:̂6>:��9< &O $M'%''' &%N'*%M*M $%$K*%&N$ ' ' ' M&&%O'* K%M$O%N'O M%OOM%$*M P%*'M%K$O


DH��������eEJ�)G��#!��k�#)G�D!�)�W�!���#� *' P%NO&%PK' K%*&&%ML* $%&$P%&N$ $%&NK%M*M K%*$N%MLK ' *%N'O%*KP&*%L*M%$&$ &O%*&M%*NO&P%LNN%N*'


eE�������F�)#���V���U�!�ZH#!�����F�! *$


*& (LNN%O'L ($P%*OK (K*%L*$ (M%'&O (&%O$'%KLK &&%$*' $%LK$%&M& ($%OO&%'K& (K%LO$%N'O (&NM%OL'


�6B?88?8B�098_��@]@8A6�19]j�5 ** &%ONM%*LK &%MO$%O&$ $KP%KO& O&%MOL *%PMO%'LP L&N%KNP P%*M'%&K'$P%LKM%$MO &*%**L%PLP&*%L$&%P&P


�8_?8B�098_��@]@8A6�1986�l3 *K &%&ON%KMP &%MN*%M&N $'K%PL$ PN%MLN OKP%L'K LKO%L'P O%OO$%KO&$L%LM*%$$N $P%LKM%$MO&*%**L%PLP







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*�.1
233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9


:9(5+4,(0*�.1��(9*717(>
	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CDEF���GHIJKL��MNHOPKOQ E E�RRD�DDD�� EFCD CSD�DDD ED�DSD CTD�DSD FDD CU�FSF CUV�TTF


CDEU�"$MWMJMXY��ZPQ[�\KXP��JXMMJ C C�CTD�DDD�� EUSE CSF�DDD EV�DUD CTS�DUD FDD VE�UDV CUU�TFR


CDES���K]XIXY[$KJY�%IZZ[#IX̂��W_X̀aMWMOJb V c�cRF�DDD�� ESEEU cCD�DDDEEC�STF FVC�STF FDD�cTC VC�cDV


CDCD��"��KXM��XHL̂[�JXMMJ��W_X̀aMWMOJb c E�FDF�DDD�� CD"ER EDD�DDD FE�TDD EFE�TDD UDD EFC�FDD


�����̀IO�"�dd�# FED�TTS�DDD���"�� UFT�DDD cS�CcS RDR�CcS U�STC REc�EcD D


U " D D


R " D D


S " D D


T " D D


ED " D D


EE " D D


EC " D D


EV " D D


Ec " D D


EF " D D


EU " D D


ER " D D


ES " D D


ET " D D


CD " D D


CE " D D


CC " D D


CV " D D


Cc " D D


CF " D D


CU " D D


CR " D D


CS " D D


CT " D D


VD " D D


������ E�Rcc�DDDCVU�ESV E�TSD�ESV S�cTC D E�CRC�SCD REF�SFF







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CD " E E


CF " E E


CC " E E


CG " E E


CH " E E


CI " E E


CJ " E E


CK " E E


CL " E E


GE " E E


GD " E E


GF " E E


GC " E E


GG " E E


GH " E E


GI " E E


GJ " E E


GK " E E


GL " E E


HE " E E


HD " E E


HF " E E


HC " E E


HG " E E


HH " E E


HI " E E


HJ " E E


HK " E E


HL " E E


IE " E E


������ D�JGG�EEEFCI�DKC D�LKE�DKC K�GLF E D�FJF�KFE JDH�KHH







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CD " E E


CF " E E


CG " E E


CH " E E


CI " E E


CC " E E


CJ " E E


CK " E E


CL " E E


JE " E E


JD " E E


JF " E E


JG " E E


JH " E E


JI " E E


JC " E E


JJ " E E


JK " E E


JL " E E


KE " E E


KD " E E


KF " E E


KG " E E


KH " E E


KI " E E


KC " E E


KJ " E E


KK " E E


KL " E E


LE " E E


������ D�JHH�EEEFGC�DKG D�LKE�DKG K�HLF E D�FJF�KFE JDI�KII







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CD " E E


CF " E E


CG " E E


CH " E E


CI " E E


CJ " E E


CK " E E


CL " E E


CC " E E


DEE " E E


DED " E E


DEF " E E


DEG " E E


DEH " E E


DEI " E E


DEJ " E E


DEK " E E


DEL " E E


DEC " E E


DDE " E E


DDD " E E


DDF " E E


DDG " E E


DDH " E E


DDI " E E


DDJ " E E


DDK " E E


DDL " E E


DDC " E E


DFE " E E


������ D�KHH�EEEFGJ�DLG D�CLE�DLG L�HCF E D�FKF�LFE KDI�LII







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CDC " E E


CDD " E E


CDF " E E


CDG " E E


CDH " E E


CDI " E E


CDJ " E E


CDK " E E


CDL " E E


CFE " E E


CFC " E E


CFD " E E


CFF " E E


CFG " E E


CFH " E E


CFI " E E


CFJ " E E


CFK " E E


CFL " E E


CGE " E E


CGC " E E


CGD " E E


CGF " E E


CGG " E E


CGH " E E


CGI " E E


CGJ " E E


CGK " E E


CGL " E E


CHE " E E


������ C�JGG�EEEDFI�CKF C�LKE�CKF K�GLD E C�DJD�KDE JCH�KHH







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CDC " E E


CDF " E E


CDG " E E


CDH " E E


CDD " E E


CDI " E E


CDJ " E E


CDK " E E


CDL " E E


CIE " E E


CIC " E E


CIF " E E


CIG " E E


CIH " E E


CID " E E


CII " E E


CIJ " E E


CIK " E E


CIL " E E


CJE " E E


CJC " E E


CJF " E E


CJG " E E


CJH " E E


CJD " E E


CJI " E E


CJJ " E E


CJK " E E


CJL " E E


CKE " E E


������ C�JHH�EEEFGI�CKG C�LKE�CKG K�HLF E C�FJF�KFE JCD�KDD







����������	�
�����	���������	�
��
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


	()*��+,( -,./0*
.1�233/(


�45(�.1
	()*


�)678+*7.0


	()*
�(3.6/*7.0
�/,)(9


:970;75+6
	/(�<=


20*(9(3*
	/(�<=


�.*+6
�)678+*7.0
	/(�<=



.0>��(8?@
:+4708�-8(0*
<((3�	/(�<=


�(>/;*7.03�>/(�*.
�(170+0;708�.9�:9(5+4,(0*


.1��(9*717(>�	()*


:+7>�19.,�</0>3�����
�-���/99(0*�=(+9�	()*


�(9A7;(��+B(3


-,./0*�:+7>
�/99(0*�=(+9�	()*
�(9A7;(��(A4


CDC " E E


CDF " E E


CDG " E E


CDH " E E


CDI " E E


CDJ " E E


CDK " E E


CDD " E E


CDL " E E


CLE " E E


CLC " E E


CLF " E E


CLG " E E


CLH " E E


CLI " E E


CLJ " E E


CLK " E E


CLD " E E


CLL " E E


FEE " E E


FEC " E E


FEF " E E


FEG " E E


FEH " E E


FEI " E E


FEJ " E E


FEK " E E


FED " E E


FEL " E E


FCE " E E


������ C�KHH�EEEFGJ�CDG C�LDE�CDG D�HLF E C�FKF�DFE KCI�DII







����������	�
�����	����������	�������
��������������������������������������� ��!���������������������"#!�$%����#�&'����


()*+,*-./�	01
23�4544


6+71)187�	01
23�4544


�97./��:/*;.7*9+
	01�23�4544



9+<��1;=>�(.?*+;��;1+7
2118�	01�23�4544


�1<0,7*9+8�<01�79��1@*+.+,*+;�9)
()1-.?A1+7�9@��1)7*@*1<�	1:7


(.*<�@)9A��90),18����������
0<;17
31.)�	1:7��1)B*,1��1B?


�A90+7�(.*<�
0<;17�31.)
	1:7��1)B*,1��1B?


���"
����� C�DEF�DDD CEG�HIF C�JGJ�HIF C�KDD D FFE�KED GCF�EFF


�������"
����� KFH�DDD LE�JLE GDG�JLE K�EHJ D GCL�CLD D


������"
����� C�GLL�DDD JIK�CEI C�HED�CEI E�LHJ D C�JGJ�EJD GCF�EFF







�����������	
�����������������������
	����
�������������������� ! ������"��#!�� !  


�$����%��&'(�������
�$����%���&�"����)�����&"*��%���+�,����$����"-�&"�%$��+�&+&��*�,�*-�%����'&��&)�(


�&��%�&"(��&�"�����$�.,�������%��������/ 0���*�.���%���%����1��%�"-���%�(�#232 ! ������1��%�"-���.�(�!4(�4��1


�$��
�*-�%���%�.�%����..����&'�+�&+&��*������+%���"*��5+�"*�%���������$&)"�,��&)6��&+����&'�%$��%$��*�%����*�+�&+&��*�
�*-�%�.���,��&,%��"�*�&��7��)�*��%
%$��&''�����&'�%$��1��&�����%������8���"*��%�%$����,����6


9:;<;=>?@A>;B<9C>AD<>AE<D;FG<HA>;<I;H<JKLLL<FADMA>?CN<CN<H;OMDAH<IHCI;H>G
KKPQRLLS


9:;<;=>?@A>;B<>AE<D;FG<HA>;<I;H<JKLLL<FADMA>?CN<CN<TOH?UMD>MHAD<DANB<?=
VPLLVWR


%�%$��+�,����$����"-���"������*�"%�&��%�5+�����.���+����"%�&,X��%�&"��%&��&����-�.�"%���"�'�7&��&'���"��+��%�&'�%$��+�&+&��*�,�*-�%6


Y:CN;<ZM@[;H
\WK]̂<W_]̀KLLL <


a?>G<aD;Hbcd?NANU;<eff?U;Hg=<ZThi
jAMHA<kU:A;f;H



�*-�%����� !  �����%�.�%�*����� ! � �%�������� ! !


��7�"����l��%$�����"�"��"-��&�����


9AE;=<j;F?;B<CN<YHCI;H>G K QmKQSmSWL QmKQRmKQW QmLQQmVR]


j;==n<oNUCDD;U>;B<YHCI;H>G<9AE;=̀j;FG<p;AH ] L L L


��%������"%���&+��%����5�� V QmKQSmSWL QmKQRmKQW QmLQQmVR]


q;D?NrM;N><YHCI;H>G<9AE;= s L sKmSLL L


9td<u;F;NM;= R KmKWVmSsL KmK]QmSSW _SQmsVK


e>:;H<a?>G<9AE;= Q ]m]VVm_VR ]m]]RmSQR ]mLRVmL]K


j?U;N=;=<v<Y;H@?>= W WsmQLL _Wm__L _Lms_R


o=;<Cf<hCN;G<ANB<YHCI;H>G S ]sLmsRR ]WSmSRS RLRmsK]


tN>;HOCF;HN@;N>AD _ KmsWQmQWR ]m_S]mR_S ]m]SKmRsK


a:AHO;=<fCH<d;;=<v<k;HF?U; KL RmsWVmSWL Rm]SRmVLL RmVWRmSK]


kI;U?AD<T==;==@;N>= KK L L L


h?=U;DDAN;CM= K] ]SKmK]R sVVmLWL KmLLVmQLR


e>:;H<d?NANU?NO<kCMHU;= KV L KmLLL KmWVVmQS]


9HAN=f;H=<tN Ks smRK_mWL_ Rm__RmKVR SmVLRmsK_


�&%�����7�"�����"*��%$����&����� KR ]KmQsVmLW_ ]smQVVmQWL ]SmsLKmWWL


�5+�"*�%�����l��%$�����"�"��"-�	���


YM[D?U<kAf;>G KQ ]mR_Sm_WR ]msLKm___ ]m]VQmSW_


YM[D?U<wCHb= KW ]mQQ_mVVs ]mss]mWWV ]mLR]m]]_


x;AD>:<ANB<kCU?AD<k;HF?U;= KS KLKmS_R KVRm_sR _VmV]R


aMD>MH;<ANB<u;UH;A>?CN K_ VmV_LmLVQ smKSWmQ_L ]mQRLmQLS


aC@@MN?>G<ANB<iUCNC@?U<q;F;DCI@;N> ]L VS_mQRW sQSm]V_ K_LmLWV


y;N;HAD<yCF;HN@;N> ]K KmKSQm_WK KmLWQmsSV Km]KWmLss


q;[><k;HF?U; ]] Km]WsmRVR KmV_Km_sV KmVVKmQQ]


aAI?>AD<YHCz;U>= ]V smVKWmRQs QmVWSmRSs Rmss_mLsR


�&%����&7��".�"%��%�7�%�����5+�"*�%���� ]s KRm_]Sm_QW KSmsSVmQRQ KRm]]LmSQR


{M=?N;==<9GI;<c<iN>;HIH?=;= ]R VmKSQmssR smSsQmRSS RmKRKmssQ


�&%�������5+�"*�%���� ]Q K_mKKRmsK] ]VmVVLm]ss ]LmVW]mVKK


9HAN=f;H=<eM> ]W smRK_mWL_ Rm__RmKVR SmVLRmsK_


9C>AD<Tjj<iEI;NB?>MH;=c9HAN=f;H=<eM> ]S ]VmQVRmK]K ]_mV]RmVW_ ]SmQWWmWVL


�5�������7�"����l��%$����&�������7�����|	"*��}��5+�"*�%����2���"�'������% ]_ K̀m__]mLs] s̀mQ_KmWL_ ]̀WRm_QL


{;O?NN?NO<dMNB<{ADANU;<~MDG<K VL KSmQsRmKR_ ]VmVVQmSQS ]VmQK]mS]S


�"*�"-���"*�
���"�����"��#! VK KQmQRVmKKW KSmQsRmKR_ ]VmVVQmSQS





		FY 22 Budget Approval Memo_Resolution

		FY 22 Budget Forms










City of Carroll 
Brad Burke, Chief of Police Police Department 
================================ ♦ ================================== 


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 


TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager~ v.J 


FROM: Brad Burke, Chief of Police@ 


DATE: March 4, 2021 


RE: Renewal of License 


(712) 792-3536 


The following establishments have applied for renewal of license: 


Carroll Brewing Company 
226 East 5th Street 


FAX: (712) 792-8088 


Class "C" Liquor License with Brew Pub, Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales 


Casey's General Store #3082 
510 Hwy 30 East , 
Class "E" Liquor License with Class "B" Wine Permit (Includes CaiTyout Wine and Native 
Wine) and Class "C" Beer Permit (includes Canyout Beer) and Sunday Sales 


RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval of these applications. 








City of Carroll 
. ♦=========================~ 


627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139 


MEMO TO: 


FROM: 


DATE: 


SUBJECT: 


Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager lud .,,...u-) 
Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and Recreation ~lµ 
March 3, 2021 


Memo to City Council - Professional Services Agreement- Northeast Park 
- Parking and Sidewalk Improvements Project - 2021 


❖ Professional Services Agreement 
❖ Resolution 


Last year the Miracle Baseball Field was constructed and looks great. Once weather 
allows construction will continue with fencing around the field and the dugouts will be 
completed. Their goal is to complete the ADA restrooms, concessions and covered area 
for picnic tables and chairs by late summer/early fall with games on the field this fall. 


Staff has met with Miracle Field group and their request has been for the City to construct 
a parking lot to sufficiently accommodate the parking needs for the games as well as 
others using any of the other great features the park has to offer. 


The City has requested a Professional Service Agreement from Shive-Hattery, Inc. to 
construct a parking lot, stormwater detention basin and sidewalk access to the Miracle 
Field. Shive-Hattery will also provide civil engineering and landscape architecture design 
services for the Miracle Field layout, rough grading, and stormwater/detention 
improvements. Shive-Hattery work will begin immediately once this agreement is 
approved. 


COMPENSATION 


$ 2,750.00 $ 2,750.00 
Prelimi ices Fixed Fee $3,700.00 Included $ 3,700 .00 
Civil/Sit Fixed Fee $13,350 .00 Included $13,350.00 
Construction Phase Services Houri w/a Max $ 5,000.00 Included $ 5,000.00 


Total $24,800.00 Included $24,800.00 







Cost Estimate 


Shive-Hattery developed a cost opinion for the parking lot as part of their work on the 
Northeast Park master plan. In July 2018 it was estimated that the parking lot would cost 
$340,715. This estimate includes the parking lot, surrounding sidewalks, needed drainage 
work, design fees, and contingency. By adding 5% of inflation per year for three years, this 
project would now cost $394,420. 


Funding 


There is currently $50,000 budgeted in L.O.S.T. funds for the Miracle Field. No additional 
funds are currently included in the budget for this project. Staff could review current capital 
items in the Parks and Recreation budget and eliminate or push back other projects to make 
additional funding available for this project. Likely additional funding will still be needed. 
This funding could possibly include up to $75,000 in Hotel/Motel funds with the remainder 
out of L.O.S.T funds. 


'.RECOIVIMENDAfiON~ For the Mayor and City Council consideration and approval of the 
Professional Services Agreement with Shive-Hattery for the Northeast Park Parking and 
Sidewalk Improvements Project - 2021 for the Total Compensation Fee of $24,800.00. 







RESOLUTION _____ _ 


RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. FOR NORTHEAST PARK PARKING AND 


SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT - 2021 


WHEREAS, the City of Carroll is desirous of completing the Northeast Park Parking 
and Sidewalk Improvements project; and, 


WHEREAS, Professional Services Agreement with Shive-Hattery has been 
prepared to further define required professional services. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Professional Services 
Agreement with Shive-Hattery for the Northeast Park Parking and Sidewalk Improvements 
Project- 2021 is approved upon review and acceptance by the City Attorney. 


Passed and approved by the Carroll City Council this 8th day of March 2021. 


ATTEST: 


By:-----------
Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 


CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 


By:----------
Eric P. Jensen, Mayor 







Project 4202870


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT


ATTN: Jack Wardell
CLIENT: City of Carroll, IA


627 N. Adams St
Carroll, IA 51401


PROJECT: City of Carroll - NE Park - Parking and Sidewalk Improvements


PROJECT LOCATION: Carroll, IA


DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 24, 2021


PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project purpose is to construct a parking lot, stormwater detention basin, and sidewalk access to 
the recently constructed Miracle Field located at the NE Park in Carroll, IA. Provide civil engineering and 
landscape architecture design services for phase 1 of the Miracle Field including field layout, rough 
grading, and stormwater/detention improvements.


SCOPE OF SERVICES
We will provide the following services for the project:


Land Surveying, Civil Engineering, and Landscape Architecture


These services will consist of the following tasks:


Limited Topographic Survey


1. Provide a limited topographic survey of the recently constructed Miracle Field and adjacent 
project area.  Field survey data may be supplemented with existing record documents and 
previously completed survey data.  The survey will create a single electronic base drawing 
showing existing topographic information and site features as follows:
a. Contours at one-foot intervals; error shall not exceed one-half contour interval. 


Preliminary Design Phase Services


1. Develop up to two (2) layout concepts for the proposed site improvements.
2. Review concepts with the owner to discuss the scope of proposed improvements and to 


determine the owner’s preferred layout preference. 
3. Update preferred concept one (1) time based on Owner’s review comments. 
4. Attend up to (1) meeting with the City and Owner’s Representatives to discuss the proposed 


project prior to moving into the next phase of construction documents.
5. Provide preliminary information on rough building sizing and restroom/fixture counts of future 


restroom facility to accommodate proposed Miracle Field facility.
6. Develop preliminary cost of opinion based on the Owner’s preferred site concept.







Page 2 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


Civil/Site Design


1. Prepare construction documents in accordance with the Iowa Statewide Urban Design and 
Specification standards (SUDAS). Construction documents to include the following sheets:


a. Existing Conditions and Site Demolition Plan identifying existing site features that will 
be required to be removed to accommodate the associated improvements.


b. Site Layout Plan illustrating proposed physical features such as parking lot, sidewalks, 
and existing adjacent Miracle Field location.    


c. Grading Plan illustrating 1’ contour intervals to communicate proposed grading of 
proposed improvements including spot elevation labels. 


i. The grading plan will identify the location and finished floor elevation for the 
restroom/concession building, which is being designed and built by others. 


d. Utility Plan illustrating layout of major site utilities which are expected to include storm 
sewer.  Pipe size, pipe materials, structure locations and types will be provided.  We are 
assuming that storm sewers will be able to be discharged at the property line and offsite 
drainage improvements will not be required.


e. Prepare a Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) and submit to the City for review.  
The SWMP will summarize the proposed drainage and detention pond, if required, as 
well as summarize proposed storm sewer piping design and capacities.  We have 
assumed an above ground detention basin will be utilized for this project.  


i. Additional services may be required if the site requires the use of an alternative 
detention method such as underground storage or offsite drainage 
improvements.  


f. Construction details representing the improvements being proposed.  References will 
be made to standard construction details as much as possible.


g. Technical Specifications for site work are assumed to follow and will reference the Iowa 
Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS).  Any deviations from this will be 
specified on the plans.


h. Assist in submittal of site drawings to City of Carroll and respond to City of Carroll 
Engineering/Planning comments made during initial plan review.  


i. Provide PDF copies of construction documents for printing and distribution by the Owner.  
(Any required printing expense shall be by Owner).


2. Update and provide cost of opinion based on the construction documents.


Construction Phase Services


1. Answer a reasonable amount of Contractor questions during the bidding and construction phase of 
the project.


2. Perform on-site construction observation to observe and report on work-in-progress.  This 
proposal is based up to three (3) site visits. This includes a post-construction review of the work 
and generating a written punchlist of items requiring attention.


a. If additional site visits are required, an agreed upon cost can be utilized at a per visit 
rate.


3. Assist with reviewing and responding to Change Orders, Supplemental Instructions, and Requests 
for Information.


4. Assist Owner with resolution of field conflicts and revise plans to reflect any required changes. 
5. Prepare closeout documents upon completion of construction and assist in obtaining executed 


documents to conclude the work.







Page 3 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES
It will be your responsibility to provide the following:


1. Identify a Project Representative with full authority to act on behalf of the Client with respect to 
this project. The Client Project Representative shall render decisions in a timely manner in order 
to avoid delays of Shive-Hattery’s services.


2. Legal, accounting, and insurance counseling services or other consultants, including 
geotechnical, or vendors that may be necessary. The Client shall coordinate these services with 
those services provided by Shive-Hattery.


3. Provide to Shive-Hattery any available drawings, survey plats, testing data and reports related 
to the project, either hard copy or electronic media. Electronic media is preferred.


4. Unless specifically included in the Scope of Services to be provided by Shive-Hattery, the Client 
shall furnish tests, inspections, permits and reports required by law, regulation or code including 
but not limited to hazardous materials, structural, mechanical, chemical, air pollution and water 
pollution tests.


SCHEDULE
We will begin our services upon receipt of this Agreement executed by you which will serve as a notice 
to proceed.


 We will meet with you to develop a mutually agreed-upon schedule for the Scope of Services.


COMPENSATION


Description Fee Type Fee Estimated 
Expenses Total


Limited Topographic Survey Fixed Fee $2,750 Included $2,750


Preliminary Design Phase Services Fixed Fee $3,700 Included $3,700


Civil/Site Design Fixed Fee $13,350 Included $13,350


Construction Phase Services Hourly w/ a Max $5,000 Included $5,000


TOTAL $24,800 Included $24,800


Fee Types:


 Fixed Fee - We will provide the Scope of Services for the fee amounts listed above.


Expenses:


 Included - For Fixed Fee Type, expenses have been included in the Fee amount. For Hourly 
Fee Types, expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with our Reimbursable Expense Fee 
Schedule in effect at the time that the expense is incurred.


The terms of this proposal are valid for 30 days from the date of this proposal.







Page 4 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


ADDITIONAL SERVICES
The following are additional services you may require for your project. We can provide these services, 
but they are not part of this proposal at this time.


1. Rezoning or variance requests.
2. Geotechnical Engineering services.
3. Survey services including boundary, plats, easement exhibits, or additional topographic survey
4. Exhibits/legal description to vacate, add, or relocate existing roadways, utilities, easements, etc.
5. Preparation of addition site layout concepts other than those previously noted.
6. Site lighting design and/or photometrics plan.
7. 3D Modeling, visualization, or perspective renderings.
8. Third party review and/or permitting fees.
9. Stormwater quality design.
10. Private utility locates or construction staking services. These services are anticipated to be 


completed by the Contractor.
11. Landscaping and Planting design.
12. Development of an Erosion Control Plan, Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and 


NPDES General Permit #2 with the Iowa DNR.  
13. Attendance at City meetings or other meetings beyond those listed above.
14. Design of any components beyond those listed above.
15. Drawing revisions due to Owner’s or Contractor’s scope changes may require additional 


compensation.
16. Additional bidding and construction phase services beyond those listed above.


OTHER TERMS


STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Copyright © Shive-Hattery June 2020


PARTIES
"S-H" or “Shive-Hattery” shall mean Shive-Hattery, Inc. or Shive-Hattery A/E Services, P.C. or Studio951 a Division of Shive-
Hattery or EPOCH a Division of Shive-Hattery or Shive-Hattery New Jersey, Inc. and "CLIENT" shall mean the person or entity 
executing this Agreement with "S-H."


LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND WAIVER OF CERTAIN DAMAGES
The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent of the law, to limit the liability of S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, 
employees, agents, subconsultants, affiliated companies, and any of them, to the CLIENT and any person or entity 
claiming by or through the CLIENT, for any and all claims, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses including  
reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees,   or any other legal costs  ,  in any way related to the Project or Agreement from 
any cause(s)  to an amount that shall not exceed the compensation received by S-H under the agreement or two hundred 
fifty thousand dollars ($250,000), whichever is greater. The parties intend that this limitation of liability apply to any and 
all liability or cause of action, claim, theory of recovery, or remedy however alleged or arising, including but not limited 
to negligence, errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty, express, implied or equitable indemnity 
and all other claims, which except for the limitation of liability above, the CLIENT waives.


CLIENT hereby releases S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, subconsultants, affiliated 
companies, and any of them, and none shall be liable to the CLIENT for consequential, special, exemplary, punitive, 
indirect or incidental losses or damages, including but not limited to loss of use, loss of product, cost of capital, loss of 
goodwill, lost revenues or loss of profit, interruption of business, down time costs, loss of data, cost of cover, or 
governmental penalties or fines. 


INDEMNIFICATION 
Subject to the limitation of liability in this Agreement, S-H agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and 
hold harmless the CLIENT, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, contractors, subcontractors and consultants 
against all claims, damages, liabilities, losses or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, or other legal 
costs to the extent caused by S-H’s negligent performance of service under this Agreement and that of its officers, 
directors, shareholders, and employees. 







Page 5 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


The CLIENT agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, 
shareholders, employees, agents,, subconsultants, and affiliated companies against all damages, liabilities, losses, 
costs, and expenses including,  reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert’s fees, and any other legal costs to the extent caused 
by the negligent acts or omissions of the CLIENT, its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or 
anyone for whom the CLIENT is legally liable.


HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - INDEMNIFICATION
To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold S-H, its officers, directors, 
shareholders, employees, agents, consultants and affiliated companies, and any of them harmless from and against any 
and all claims, liabilities, losses, costs,  or expenses including  reasonable attorney’s fees, experts’ fees and any other 
legal costs  (including without limitation damages to property, injuries or death to persons, fines, or penalties), arising 
out of, or resulting from the client’s negligent discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, 
acids, alkalies, toxic chemicals, liquids, gases, polychlorinated biphenyl, petroleum contaminants spores, biological 
toxins, or any other materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, or on, onto, upon, in, or 
into the surface or subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible or intangible matter, whether 
sudden or not.


STANDARD OF CARE
Services provided by S-H under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances on projects of similar 
size, complexity, and geographic location as that of the Project.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be 
construed to create, a fiduciary duty owed by either party to the other party.


BETTERMENT
The CLIENT recognizes and expects that certain change orders may be required to be issued as the result in whole or part of 
imprecision, incompleteness, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in S-H’s drawings, specifications, and other design, 
bidding or construction documentation furnished by S-H or in other professional services performed or furnished by S-H under this 
Agreement (herein after in this Betterment section referred to as S-H Documentation).  If a required item or component of the 
Project is omitted from S-H’s Documentation, the CLIENT is responsible for paying all costs required to add such item or 
component to the extent that such item or component would have been required and included in the original S-H Documentation. 
In no event will S-H be responsible for costs or expense that provides betterment or upgrades or enhances the value of the 
Project.


RIGHT OF ENTRY
The CLIENT shall provide for entry for the employees, agents and subcontractors of S-H and for all necessary equipment.  While 
S-H shall take reasonable precautions to minimize any damage to property, it is understood by the CLIENT that in the normal 
course of the project some damages may occur, the cost of correction of which is not a part of this Agreement.


PAYMENT
Unless otherwise provided herein, invoices will be prepared in accordance with S-H's standard invoicing practices then in effect 
and will be submitted to CLIENT each month and at the completion of the work on the project.  Invoices are due and payable upon 
receipt by the CLIENT.  If the CLIENT does not make payment within thirty (30) days after the date the invoice was mailed to the 
CLIENT, then the amount(s) due S-H shall bear interest due from the date of mailing at the lesser interest rate of 1.5% per month 
compounded or the maximum interest rate allowed by law.  In the event that S-H files or takes any action, or incurs any costs, for 
the collection of amounts due it from the client, S-H shall be entitled to recover its entire cost for attorney fees and other collection 
expenses related to the collection of amounts due it under this Agreement unless the invoices are disputed by the Client.  Any 
failure to comply with this term shall be grounds for a default termination.


TERMINATION
Either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience or for default by providing written notice to the other party.  If the 
termination is for default, the non-terminating party may cure the default before the effective date of the termination and the 
termination for default will not be effective.  The termination for convenience and for default, if the default is not cured, shall be 
effective seven (7) days after receipt of written notice by the non-terminating party.  In the event that this Agreement is terminated 
for the convenience of either party or terminated by S-H for the default of the CLIENT, then S-H shall be paid for services 
performed to the termination effective date, including reimbursable expenses due, and termination expenses attributable to the 
termination.  In the event the CLIENT terminates the Agreement for the default of S-H and S-H does not cure the default, then S-H 
shall be paid for services performed to the termination notice date, including reimbursable expenses due, but shall not be paid for 
services performed after the termination notice date and shall not be paid termination expenses.  Termination expenses shall 
include expenses reasonably incurred by S-H in connection with the termination of the Agreement or services, including, but not 
limited to, closing out Project records, termination of subconsultants and other persons or entities whose services were retained 
for the Project, and all other expenses directly resulting from the termination.







Page 6 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS
S-H shall indicate to the CLIENT the information needed for rendering of services hereunder.  The CLIENT shall provide to S-H 
such information, including electronic media, as is available to the CLIENT and the CLIENT's consultants and contractors, and S-
H shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof.  The CLIENT recognizes that it is difficult for S-H to 
assure the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of such client-furnished information, either because it is provided by others or 
because of errors or omissions which may have occurred in assembling the information the CLIENT is providing.  Accordingly, the 
CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, 
employees, agents, subconsultants and affiliated companies, and any of them,  from and against any and all claims, liabilities, 
losses, costs , expenses (including  reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and any other legal costs)  for injury or loss arising 
or allegedly arising from errors, omissions or inaccuracies in documents or other information provided by the CLIENT.


UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
Information for location of underground utilities may come from the CLIENT, third parties, and/or research performed by S-H or its 
subcontractors.  S-H will use the standard of care defined in this Agreement in providing this service.  The information that S-H 
must rely on from various utilities and other records may be inaccurate or incomplete.  Therefore, the CLIENT agrees, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees agents, 
subconsultants, affiliated companies, and any of them for all claims, losses, costs and damages arising out of the location of 
underground utilities provided or any information related to underground utilities by S-H under this Agreement.


CONTRACTOR MATTERS
CLIENT agrees that S-H shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the CLIENT’s contractor, or subcontractors, their 
employees, agents, consultants, suppliers or arising from contractor’s or subcontractors’ work, their employees, agents, 
consultants, suppliers or other entities that are responsible for performing work that is not in conformance with the construction 
Contract Documents, if any, prepared by S-H under this Agreement. S-H shall not have responsibility for means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and progress of construction of the contractor, subcontractors, agents, employees, agents, consultants, or 
other entities.  In addition, CLIENT agrees that S-H is not responsible for safety at the project site and that safety during 
construction is for the CLIENT to address in the contract between the CLIENT and contractor.


SHOP DRAWING REVIEW
If, as part of this Agreement S-H reviews and approves Contractor submittals, such as shop drawings, product data, samples and 
other data, as required by S-H, these reviews and approvals shall be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 
the design concept and the information expressed in the contract documents.  This review shall not include review of the accuracy 
or completeness of details, such as quantities, dimensions, weights or gauges, fabrication processes, construction means or 
methods, coordination of the work with other trades or construction safety precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of 
the Contractor.  S-H's review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in S-H's judgment to 
permit adequate review.  Review of a specific item shall not indicate that S-H has reviewed the entire assembly of which the item 
is a component.  S-H shall not be responsible for any deviations from the contract documents not brought to the attention of S-H in 
writing by the Contractor.  S-H shall not be required to review partial submissions or those for which submissions of correlated 
items have not been received.


OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST
If, as part of this Agreement S-H is providing opinions of probable construction cost, the CLIENT understands that S-H has no 
control over costs or the price of labor, equipment or materials, or over the Contractor's method of pricing, and that S-H's opinions 
of probable construction costs are to be made on the basis of S-H's qualifications and experience.  S-H makes no warranty, 
expressed or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs.


CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION
If, as part of this Agreement S-H is providing construction observation services, S-H shall visit the project at appropriate intervals 
during construction to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the contractors' work and to determine if the work 
is proceeding in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the CLIENT has 
not retained S-H to make detailed inspections or to provide exhaustive or continuous project review and observation services.  S-
H does not guarantee the performance of, and shall have no responsibility for, the acts or omissions of any contractor, its 
subcontractors, employees, agents, consultants, suppliers or any other entities furnishing materials or performing any work on the 
project.


S-H shall advise the CLIENT if S-H observes that the contractor is not performing in general conformance of Contract Documents.  
CLIENT shall determine if work of contractor should be stopped to resolve any problems.


OTHER SERVICES
The CLIENT may direct S-H to provide other services including, but not limited to, any additional services identified in S-H's 
proposal.  If S-H agrees to provide these services, then the schedule shall be reasonably adjusted to allow S-H to provide these 
services.  Compensation for such services shall be at S-H's Standard Hourly Fee Schedule in effect at the time the work is 
performed unless there is a written Amendment to Agreement that contains an alternative compensation provision.







Page 7 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


OWNERSHIP & REUSE OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
All reports, plans, specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all documents on electronic media, prepared 
by S-H as instruments of service shall remain the property of S-H.  The CLIENT shall not reuse or make any modifications to the 
plans and specifications without the prior written authorization of S-H.  The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
to defend, indemnify and hold harmless S-H  its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, subconsultants and affiliated 
companies, and any of them  from any and all claims, losses, costs or damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of, resulting 
from or in any way related to any unauthorized reuse or modifications of the construction documents by the CLIENT or any person 
or entity that acquires or obtains the plans and specifications from or through the CLIENT without the written authorization of S-H.


DISPUTE RESOLUTION
If a dispute arises between S-H and CLIENT, the executives of the parties having authority to resolve the dispute shall meet within 
thirty (30) days of the notification of the dispute to resolve the dispute.  If the dispute is not resolved within such thirty (30) day time 
period, CLIENT and S-H agree to submit to non-binding mediation prior to commencement of any litigation and that non-binding 
mediation is a precondition to any litigation.  Any costs incurred directly for a mediator, shall be shared equally between the parties 
involved in the mediation.


EXCUSABLE EVENTS
S-H shall not be responsible or liable to CLIENT or CLIENT’s contractors, consultants, or other agents for any of the following 
events or circumstances, or the resulting delay in S-H’s services, additional costs and expenses in S-H’s performance of its 
services, or other effects in S-H’s services, stemming in whole or part from such events and circumstances (collectively, 
“Excusable Events” or, singularly, an “Excusable Event”): a change in law, building code or applicable standards; actions or 
inactions by a governmental authority; the presence or encounter of hazardous or toxic materials on the Project; war (declared or 
undeclared) or other armed conflict; terrorism; sabotage; vandalism; riot or other civil disturbance; blockade or embargos; 
explosion; abnormal weather; unanticipated or unknown site conditions; epidemic or pandemic (including but not limited to 
COVID-19), delays or other effects arising from government-mandated or government-recommended quarantines, closure of 
business, access, or travel; strike or labor dispute, lockout, work slowdown or stoppage; accident; act of God; failure of any 
governmental or other regulatory authority to act in a timely manner; acts or omissions by CLIENT or by any CLIENT’s 
contractors, consultants or agents of any level on the project (including, without limitation, failure of the CLIENT to furnish timely 
information or approve or disapprove of S-H's services or work product promptly, delays in the work caused by CLIENT, CLIENT’s 
suspension, breach or default of this Agreement, or delays caused by faulty performance by the CLIENT or by CLIENT’s 
contractors, consultants, or agents of any level); or any delays or events outside the reasonable control of S-H.  When an 
Excusable Event occurs, the CLIENT agrees S-H is not responsible for any actual or claimed damages incurred by CLIENT or 
CLIENT’s contractors, consultants, or agents, S-H shall not be deemed to be in default of this Agreement, and S-H shall be 
entitled to a change order to equitably increase and extend S-H’s time for performance of its services, as well as equitably 
increase the contract sum to compensate S-H for its increased labor, expenses, and other costs to perform its services, due to the 
Excusable Event.


ASSIGNMENT
Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights under or interest in this Agreement (including but not 
limited to monies that are due or monies that may be due) without the prior written consent of the other party.


SEVERABILITY, SURVIVAL AND WAIVER
Any provision of this Agreement later held to be unenforceable for any reason shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force and effect.  All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all provisions of this 
Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between the CLIENT and S-H shall survive the completion of the services hereunder 
and the termination of this Agreement.  The failure of a party to insist upon strict compliance of any term hereof shall not constitute 
a waiver by that party of its rights to insist upon strict compliance at a subsequent date.


GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed pursuant to the laws in the state of the locale of the S-H office address written in this 
Agreement.


EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
It is the policy of S-H to provide equal employment opportunities for all. S-H enforces the following acts and amendments as 
presented by Federal  government or State governments: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1965, Age Discrimination in 
Employment ACT (ADEA), Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965, and Illinois Human Rights Act [ 
775ILCS 5].  S-H will not discriminate against any employee or applicant because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, gender identity, sexual orientation, marital status, ancestry, veteran status, or physical or mental handicap, unless related 
to performance of the job with or without accommodation.







Page 8 of 8


Project 4202870  |  March 4, 2021


COMPLETE AGREEMENT
This Agreement constitutes the entire and integrated agreement between the CLIENT and S-H and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations and agreements, whether oral or written. In the event the CLIENT issues a Purchase Order of which 
this Agreement becomes a part, or the CLIENT and S-H otherwise execute or enter into a contract into which this Agreement is 
incorporated, the parties expressly agree that, to the extent the terms of this Agreement conflict with or are otherwise inconsistent 
with such Purchase Order, or any other contract, this Agreement shall supersede and override the terms of the aforementioned 
documents, and this Agreement shall solely govern in those regards.


ACCEPTANCE
Wet signatures, digital signatures, electronic signatures or acceptance communicated by mail or e-mail from one party to another, 
are deemed acceptable for binding the parties to the Agreement. The CLIENT representative accepting this Agreement warrants 
that he or she is authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the CLIENT.


AGREEMENT
This proposal shall become the Agreement for Services when accepted by both parties. Wet signatures, 
digital signatures, electronic signatures or acceptance communicated by mail or e-mail from one party to 
another, are deemed acceptable for binding the parties to the Agreement. The Client representative 
signing this Agreement warrants that he or she is authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the Client.


Thank you for considering this proposal. We look forward to working with you. If you have any questions 
concerning this proposal, please contact us.


Sincerely,
SHIVE-HATTERY, INC.


Brent Strauch, Civil Engineer-Project Manager
bstrauch@shive-hattery.com


AGREEMENT ACCEPTED AND SERVICES AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED


CLIENT:  City of Carroll, IA


BY:  TITLE:
(signature)


PRINTED NAME: DATE ACCEPTED:


CC:    Craig Erickson
Garret Munch







/ __ _,, 


I 
/ ,,, 


-~ ~R~ RESTROOM 


\ 
\ 
\ 


OPEN PLAY SPACE 


\., ____ J / 


C 


\ 
\ 0 


0 


0 
0 
8 


E 


:::l 
0 
Cl:'. 


~ u 
LL 
0 


~ 
0 





		Professional Services Agreement - Northeast Park - Parking and Sidewalk Improvem

		Professional Services Agreement - NE park

		PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

		ATTN:  Jack Wardell

		CLIENT: City of Carroll, IA

		627 N. Adams St

		Carroll, IA 51401

		PROJECT: City of Carroll - NE Park - Parking and Sidewalk Improvements

		PROJECT LOCATION: Carroll, IA

		DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 24, 2021

		PROJECT DESCRIPTION

		SCOPE OF SERVICES

		CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES

		SCHEDULE

		COMPENSATION

		Expenses:

		ADDITIONAL SERVICES

		OTHER TERMS

		STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

		PARTIES

		LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND WAIVER OF CERTAIN DAMAGES

		The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent of the law, to limit the liability of S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, subconsultants, affiliated companies, and any of them, to the CLIENT and any person or entity claiming by or through the CLIENT, for any and all claims, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses including  reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees,   or any other legal costs  ,  in any way related to the Project or Agreement from any cause(s)  to an amount that shall not exceed the compensation received by S-H under the agreement or two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000), whichever is greater. The parties intend that this limitation of liability apply to any and all liability or cause of action, claim, theory of recovery, or remedy however alleged or arising, including but not limited to negligence, errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty, express, implied or equitable indemnity and all other claims, which except for the limitation of liability above, the CLIENT waives.

		INDEMNIFICATION

		Subject to the limitation of liability in this Agreement, S-H agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the CLIENT, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, contractors, subcontractors and consultants against all claims, damages, liabilities, losses or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, or other legal costs to the extent caused by S-H’s negligent performance of service under this Agreement and that of its officers, directors, shareholders, and employees.

		HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - INDEMNIFICATION

		STANDARD OF CARE

		BETTERMENT

		The CLIENT recognizes and expects that certain change orders may be required to be issued as the result in whole or part of imprecision, incompleteness, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in S-H’s drawings, specifications, and other design, bidding or construction documentation furnished by S-H or in other professional services performed or furnished by S-H under this Agreement (herein after in this Betterment section referred to as S-H Documentation).  If a required item or component of the Project is omitted from S-H’s Documentation, the CLIENT is responsible for paying all costs required to add such item or component to the extent that such item or component would have been required and included in the original S-H Documentation. In no event will S-H be responsible for costs or expense that provides betterment or upgrades or enhances the value of the Project.

		RIGHT OF ENTRY

		PAYMENT

		TERMINATION

		INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS

		UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

		CONTRACTOR MATTERS

		SHOP DRAWING REVIEW

		OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST

		CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION

		OTHER SERVICES

		OWNERSHIP & REUSE OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

		DISPUTE RESOLUTION

		EXCUSABLE EVENTS

		ASSIGNMENT

		SEVERABILITY, SURVIVAL AND WAIVER

		GOVERNING LAW

		EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

		COMPLETE AGREEMENT

		ACCEPTANCE



		AGREEMENT

		AGREEMENT ACCEPTED AND SERVICES AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED

		CLIENT:  City of Carroll, IA

		BY:       TITLE:

		PRINTED NAME:     DATE ACCEPTED:



		park map



